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L.C.F. Holt. Well, how far your Lordfhip
was concerned in thefz Papers, and whether you
were going. witli them into Fyance, is to be left,
upon the Evidence that liath been heard, to the
Confideration of the Jury.

L. Prefton. Bat I humbly fubmit that.

L. C.¥. Holt. Have you any more to fay ?

L. Preflon. As to what I offer, that nothing
has been preved in Aiddlefes, 1 hope your Lord-
fhip will take it to be a Point of Law, and then
it ought to.be argucd ; and I defire I may have
Council.
~ L.C. . Holt. No, *tis a Matter of Fa&t only 3
but if you pleafe, the reft of my Lords the
Judges may give you their Opinion ; for this Is a
Quettion upon a Suppofition that your Lordihip
was guilty of a Defign of going into France, and
this with a Purvofe to depote the King, and alter

the Government; then the Queflion 1s upon fuch

a Suppofition that you were guilty of that Defign,
whether you were guilty in Adiddlcfex or no ¢

L. Prefton, My Lord, they have not proved
that Defign.

L.C. ¥ Helr. We do not fay, it is taken for
granted now, ‘but ’tis a Quettion upon a Sup-
pofition. Now, my Lord, Iil tell your Lordthip
wn fhore my Opinion, the relt of the Judges
will tell you thairs: I am of Opinion, It your
Lordfhip had fuch a Defign to go with thefe
Papers into France, and thefe Papers were formed
by you, or you were privy to the Contents of
them, then it is plainly proved, that you went
into a Boat in the County of Middlefex, in order
to carry on this Defign, and that will make 1t a
good IndiCtment, and here is a plain Overt-
act of High-Treafon in Middlefex.

L. C. §. Pollexfen. 1 am of the fame Opinion ;
tor your Fact as to this particular Point in Law
ftands thus: You are indicted of High-Treafon
m two Points; one is, For confpiring to depofe
the King and Quecen, and alter the Government:
And the other 15, TFor aidiag and affifting the
Fiench Xing, and lis Subjecls, declared Enemies,
and I open War aganft the King and Queen,
and to invite the Ervemies of the Kingdom to
invade the Kingdom. Now this Defign, and
this Help and Affiftance, are written 1n thele
Papers; for they are Inflructions for the car-
rying on of this Defien.  You, my Lord, are the
Perfon that 15 charged to go with thefe Papers
to help on this Dalign s you began your Journey
m the County of Middlefex, for according to the
Evidence, you took Water at Surrey Stairs, which
1s in the County of Middlefex, and cvery Step
you made in purltance of this Journey, is Trea-
fon, where ever it was: So then here 15 a fuf-
fictent Proof of a Fa&t in Middlefex.

L. Preffon. That, my Lord, 1sa Point of Law,
and 1 humbly defire your Lordfhip, that I may
have Council m this Cafe, It is not proved by
any Body, that I faid I would go into France;
and in the next Place, 1t 1s not proved that T had
thefe Papers about me; there has been no Evi-
dence given that I did take Water with an In-
tention to go with thefe Papers into France.

L. C.F. Holt. The Jury are to be Judges of
that,

L. Preflon. Then, my Lord, what have I done 2

I have not done any Thing within the Dﬁ.ngen of
any Statute upon which I am indicted ;5 belides,

my Lord, what I have to offer further s this, I
think I ought to have two credible Witneffes to
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prove every Falt, and I hope the Gentlemep f
the Jury will confider, there is nothing bdt'S’up..
pofition as to me; and I hope I and my Famjjy-
fhall not be ruin’d upon a Suppofition.

L. G F. Holi. Has your Lordfhip any moye
to fay ? |

L. Preffon.  All the Judges have not give
their Opinion. |

L.C. 7. Holt.  The reft will give their Opi.
nians, 1f you delire it,

My Lord Chief Baron, what fay you ?

L. C. Baren. My Lord Preflon, 1 am called
upon, it feems, to give my Opinion in this Cafe,
but this I take it muft be left to the Jury, what
Credit they will give to the Proof, * Your Lord-
thip makes a Queftion, as’ the Proof ftands,
whether here be any thing done in this County 2
here are Inftructions given to the French King
how to mvade England, and carry on the War
againdt us. Thefe Inftri€tions are contained in
feveral Papers, and thefe Papers in a Pacquer
are carried to the Smack, which Smack was hired
to go to France, You are found taking Water at
Surrey Stalrs, which 1s in the County of Middlfy,
in order to go to the Smack : You did g0 1o the
smack 5 the Papers were taken in your Company,
and were feen lying by your Seals; and the Wit-
nefles fwear, they believe fome of them to be your
Hand 5 you took care to defire 1o have them
difpoled of. Now how far the Jury will believe
this Macter of Fadt, that is thus teftified, is left
to them ; this ftems to be the Proof, and if the
Jury do believe it, hére is a plain Evidence of
an Overt-act in the County of Middlefex.

L. Prefton, 1 do infift upon it, with Humble
Submiffion, it is not proved that thefe Papers
were taken upon me, or that I did take Water ar
Surréy Stairs to go to Framee,

L. C. Baron. That muft be collefted out of
all the Circumftances; the Credit of which is left
to the Jury,

L.C. 7. Holt. Al the reft of my Lords the
Judges are of the fame Opinion, as they tell me.
IHave you any more, my Lord ?

L. Preflon, I muft fubmit,

L.C.F. Holt. Gentlemen of the "Jury, My
Lord Preflor ftands indicted for' High-Treafon,
in imagining and compafling the Depofition,
Death, and Deftruction of the King and Queen;
and for that Purpofe, did write, or caufe to be
writ, feveral treafonable Papers and Letters, de-
figned to go into Framce, and there to corre-
fpond with the Frewch King and his Subjedts,
who are Enemics to the King and Queen ; and
to carry with him thofe treafonable Papers and
Leters, containing a Project, and a formed De-
hign how this Kingdom fhould be invaded by
Foreigners.

There 1s another Treafon in the IndiGment
mention’d, and that is for adhering to, and abet-
ting the King’s Enemies, there being open War
declared between the King and Queen, and the
French King,

You have heard, Gentlemen, a very long Evi-
dence, Witnefles have been produced wvive voee,
and feveral Papers have been read to you 3 fome
of the Papers that have been produced, tho’
they may feem myfteriousand canting, yet they
are not fo very obfeure and unintelligible, but if
you confider them well, the Meaning of them
will appear, Others of them are more exprefs,

and do plainly demonftrate a Defign, that this
| ~ Kng
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King and Queen thould be depoled, and that
there fhould be another Prince fet wpon the
Throne, and reftored to the Government of
this Kingdom.

Gentlemen, There are two other Perfons
mentioned in the Indi€tment with my Lord;
and tho’ my Lord is only now upon his Trial,
yet the Evidence which doth affeét them, doth
alfo concern my Lord,

You have heard how there was an Intention
of fome Perfons to go to Fraice, and how
Mr. Afton, one of the two others, that ftands
indicted with my I.ord, did treat with one
Mrs. Pratt, one of the Wimmefles, to hirea Veficl
for that Purpofe, and it was by the Means of one
Mr., Burdett, that lives in the City ;s they had a
Meeting, at Burdett’s Houle, where they treated
about the Price that fhould be given for the Hire
of this Ship to go to Framce, bur ar that Time
they did not agree. It was concluded, that the
Woman and Abeon and Burdett fhould meet ac
the Wonder Taverny but Mv. Burdeit not being
there, nothing was concluded upon them.

After that the Woman, Mr. Buidett, and
Abtonn, and Elljots, met at Mrs, Burde!f’s; the
Woman mhifted at firft upon 1504 After they
had been treating for fome time, the Bargan
was made to go to France for 100/,

Then the next Thing confidered was, how this
Money fhould be paid 5 by Agreement g3 Guineas,
and 6 4. which made up the roo /. was depolited
in Mrs. Burdets’s Fland 5 a Six-pence broken, one
Part Mrs, Burdett had, and the other Part of the
Six-pence Mr. Afpton had 1 And when cither Mis.
Piatt, or the Mafter of the Vellel did bring back
that Part of the Six-pence that Afbten had, to
Mrs, Burdett, the Money was to be paid.

After this Agreement, they were appointed
0 0o to the Seven-Stars in Covent-Garden, to the
Houfe of one Mr. Righy; and there the Woman,
Mrs, Pratt, and the Malter of the Vellel, A
and Eflie! met, and they were that Night to go
away and to take Water at fome Place near io
¢o on Ship-board 5 and having ftayed there il
it was about ten a Clock at Night, then they
went away Into the Sfaid, and o into Swriey-
Street, and took Water at Swrrey Stairs.

But before that they came from Mr. Rigy's,
fome Perions went to Swryey Stairs to fee for a
Boat, and met with that Fellow that was here
produced, who was a Sculler, and did hire him
to go through the Bridge when the Tide ferved,
and to carry fome Gentlemen on Ship-board ;
they agreed with him for half a Crown, and he
was to ftay i an. Houfe ncar the Stairs until they
came,

And at the Time appointed, Mr. Abloir and
Mr, Elliost, and the Maftér of the Veflel, came
to that Placey and my Lord Preffon and his Man
with them, to take Water, My Lord Preflor was
not at Burdets’s Houfe at the Hiring of the Ship,
nor at Mr, Righy’s ; but it 1s proved by the Mafter
ﬂf_ the Veflel, that he took Woater with the reft
of them at Swrrey Stairs, that he'went with them
on Ship-board, -and was to go along with them.

Being on Boaid the Ship, they did appear to
have fome Apprehenfions of Danger, and pafling
by a Man of War, my Lord Preston, his ' Man,
ind the other two went under the Quarter-
Hatches, where they lay down to prevent them-
lelves from' beirig taken ‘or 'difcovered ; and they
hid another time when they came near Gravef:
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eirdy and coming up they feeing a Boat coniin
towards them, they hid themfelves aomin.
Captain Billop, who it feems, was fong tonap-
prehend them, pretended he was to prefs- Sea-
men, and when he came on Board the Smack,
he faid he would pres the Mariners, who an
fwered they had a Protection: But he being up-
on his Search, pulled up the Boards of the Quar-
ter-Hatches; and there was my Lord Preffois and

the other Perfons lying down : It was not a Place

that was'very proper for Gentlenien, or, indeed,
for any Paflengers, to repofe themfelves in g it
was an uneafy Place, nobody could ftand or fit
upright i it; nay, there- was no convenient
Place for lying down, but they muft lean upon
their Elbows, which Pofture thofe Gentlemen
were inn 3 fo that their Purpofe was plainly to con-
ceal themfelves, and their concealing themfelves
mult be becaufe of fome Defign they were about,
which they would not have difcovered.

They being talken out from undet the Hatches,
onc of the Witnefls tells you, he faw a Pacquet
lying there, and Afton, pretending to fetch his
Hat, went down, took it up, and put the Pac-
quet mto his Bofom; and the Witnefles inform-
ing Captain Bi/iop thereof, he caufed Afbton’s Coat
to be fearched, and from thence took the Pacquet,
and a Plece of Lead tied to ir, which was pro-
duced here 1n Court, |

When they were bringing away in Cuftody,
they feemed all of them to be very much con-
cerned about this Pacquers fome of them, that
15, Ahton and Elliot, would have had it thrown
with the Lead over-board. My Lord Preflon did
not fay fo much, but complimented Captain
Billsp in this manner, He wa/ glad- he was fallen
into the Hands of a- civil Gentleman, a Perfon
of Worth, and he fhould iways acknowledge
his Kindnels, and would d¢ hmm all the Service
he could, if he would difpde of the Pacquet.

My Lord Preffon was feached at that time, and
Letters of no great Monent taken about him.
Afbton and Ellot would iave had Captain Billop
to take thofe Letters wiich were taken in my
Lord Preflorr’s Pocker, od tic the Lead to them
and have thrown the hcquet over-board, and
to report to the King :nd Council, That thofe
Letters were the Pacget thar was taken with
the Lead; and fo haveperfuaded him to be falle
to the Truft that was rpofed in him.

And Apton and Elet ufed many Expreflions
to induce him to that fompliance ; they told him
the Government was nftable, and every Dog had
his Day, and the Tie would turn; and that he
would deferve verywell if he would change
Stdes, and go with sem where they were going;
and that he had Oportunity t& get any Prefer-
ment he would have ,

L. Preffon, My Iord, I hope your Lordfhip
obferves that I faid rone of all this.

L. C. . Holt. Mo, my Lord, 1 do not fy
yoadids my Lord/Prefor did not fay any thing
of all this, but only abour difpoling of ]5!“3 P ac-
quet; that his Lordhip fpoke of to Captain Bz{?ag,
and complimented him, and prom:ﬁ:d him Km' -
nefs if he would dipofe of the Pacquet.

!
But, Gentlemen, as there wis a Pacquet
taken, fo there were two Seals taken at the ame

Time, and in the fame Place, Whi{}h ha‘.f:{:'hbﬁl‘:‘ll
produced and fhewn to yous they lay koth of
them upon the Ballaft under the ertei'-‘-ﬁatches,

near the Pacquet: The one of them is theé Seal of
my
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my Lord Preftor’s own Coat of Arms, the other
Seal belongs to the Secretaries Office, which
Office my Lord once held in the late Reign.

L. Preflon. 1 beg your Lordfhipwould be pleafed
to obferve that the Papers were not taken upon
me, and it can be no Treafon to have Seals, I
fuppofe. '

L. C, ¥. Hot. Good my Lord, T will not de
your Lordfhip any Wrong; I do not fay that
the Papers were taken about you, no nor the
Seals; but only, that they lay upon the Ballaft
from whence the Pacquet was taken : And [ fay
further, That thefe Seals are not denied by
your Lordfhip to be your Seals; the one 1s your
own Seal of your Coat of Arms which was
taken at that Time, and fo I do not your Lord-
fhip any Wrong, and by the Grace of God will

notl‘
L. Preftor. It is no Crime, I hope, to have

Seals.

L. C.¥. Holr. I do fay, my Lord, the Papers
were taken about Afbfon, and not about your
Lordfhip; but they lay upon the Ballalt where
the Seals were, and where your Lordihip lay:
But how far my Locd £roffenr is concerned in this
Matter, is to be confidered by you of the Jury
by-and-by.

Now, Gentlemen, you have heard how earneft
Mr. Ao and Mr, Eflist were; one of them,
to wit, Elfiaz, wilh’d a Thunder-Bolt might ftrike
the Boat under Water as they were coming back s
and when they came throngh Bridge, he wifh’d
that Loudon-Bridge had fallen upon them and
knock’d them upon the Head.

L. Prefion, But1 hope that is not to lie upon
me neither, for 1iid no fuch Thing.

L. C. . Holt. No: But Afhton and Elljet did
fay thefe Things, wd how the Cale ftands as to
that in relation to your Lordfhip, is to be confi-
dered. It is proved, they afterwards gave Money
to the Seamen, halfa Crown apiece, to two of
them, to fay.they wee going to Flandeis, and not
to france,

Now, Gentlemen, hat my Lord was on Board
this Vellel, that my Led was under the Hatches,
and that the Papers wee taken in this manner,
is beyond all Contradicion: So likewife that the
Ship was hired for Fruce; that my Lord took
Water at Swivey Stamrs,and was taken in this
Veffel in thar manner the you have heard.

The next Thing, Gatlemen, is about the
Papers : I muft tell you, though there are feveral
of them that do feem nyfterious, yet they are
Papers that do fhew a vey great Defign of De-
pofing the King and Quen, and a Purpofe of
altering the prefent Goverment. |

But, Gentlemen, I will mention to you thofe
Papers thac are very play, and leave you to
confider what Conflruction o put upon thofe that
are oblcure.  T'here is one Fiper that feems to be
Inftructions and Heads for : Declaration, that is

to fay, That the King of Fame muft not come
with a Deﬁgn to make an intre Conque[’r.

L. Prefion. My Lord, with Submiffion to
your Lordfhip, I hope you will pleafe to remem-

ber and obferve to the Jury, thar Paper is not
ptoved to be mine.,

L. C 7. Holt. No, my Lord, Pll do your
Lordfhip no Wrong, but I cannot fpeak all my
Words at once,

L. Prefton. - T am fure you will not my Lord;
but I beg leave to put your Lordfup in Mind.
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L.C. 7. Hot. Well, then, Gentlemen, the
Paper begins, That the King’s Declaration is ¢
be formed in general Tevms 5 that be will govern by
the Laws 5 that they fhall be the Rule of bis Aftions s
that be will endeavour to fettle Liberty of Conftience
by a Law, and that whatfocver was done by him that
gave any Occefiorr of Fealonfy, foall be fertled by
Parliament. That ithe King bath given fuffcient
Proofs and Evidence of bis not being willing 1
bring an drmy of Straugers into the Kingdom, by
refufiug the Succours the King of France offered bim,
and that were even ready lo be embarqued upon the
JSirft Notice of the Prince of Orange’s coming,  Thay
be brings fuch an Army only as is weceflary for bis
own Defence, and fecuring fuch of bis Layal Sup-
jets as fhould come to by and that he <will dif-
wifs thei as feont as be fball bave vid the Natios of
thofe Forcigircrs thot had invaded us, and trampled
stpoir 1he Loos,

So that, Gentlemen, here 15 a Paper in this
Pacquer, that has plainly laid open and proved the
Defign, and fhews the Meaning of it was to feduce
their Majeftics Subjects from their Allegiance ; it
was to be in fuch general Terms, making general
Promifcs, hoping thereby that People would be
the more cafily tmpoled upon to renounce their
Allegiance to their prefent Majefties.

But, Gentlemen, the Declaration imports far-
ther, that the Realm was to be invaded by Fo-
reigners; and to palliate 1t, it is pretended, thae
Foreigners were only brought in to rid the Na-
tion of Foreigners, and you know whoare meant
by that: So that this Projett was-only to colour
a foreign Invalion ; and this Declaration was
to dire¢t them how, and upon what Pretences
they fhould invade this Kingdom.

Gentlemen, there 15 no manner of doubt but
this isa treafonable Declaration, and if any Per-
fon had this in his Poffeflion, and was going into
France to carry, with an Intention there to
make ufe of 1, that 15 Treafon, though it be
couch’d under fpecious Pretences of reftoring
People to their Liberty : It was plainly a Defign
to invade Kugland by a French Army.

L. Prefflon. My Lord, that Paper was nor
found about me.

L.C. ¥. Holt. No, no, my Lord, it was not;
but, good my Lord, give me your Favour, I will
certainly obferve every Thing that 1s fteng ; bue
I tell you I cannot do 1t all at once.

Then, Gentlemen, there is another Paper found
in the Pacquet, that is faid to be the Refult of 2
Conference that was had between divers Lords
and Gentlemen, as well Tories as 7Wbigs, as they
cail them, to prove 1t pofiible to reftore the late
King by French Arms; and how this may be
cflected, were Propofals made : Yet ftll it was
pretended to preferve the Proteftant Religion,
and the Civil Adminiftration according to Law.

And that it mught be brought to pafs, the
Credulous were to be mmpofed upon, and made
to believe that the French King would not conquer
England for himfelf; no, but he would conquer it
for the late King ; he would be at that vaft Charge,
that great Expence of Men and Arms to reftore
King Faimes, and make no Profic of it himfelf,

And 1t was propoled how to feduce the People
of England into a Belief of the French King’s
Kindnefs; he was to indulge the Englip Pro-
teftants in France, and let them have the Exercife
of thetr own Religion there ac their own Charges s
and this to fatsfy the Ewglift Proteftants,

‘ that
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that his Perfecution of the Hugomots in France,
was not out of Averfion to the Proteftant Reli-
gion, but only hecaufe of their Antimonarchical
and refitting Principles. So that they were pro-
poling among themfelves what they were to do
to make the People belicve the Freach King had
no dangerous Defign againtt our Religion and
Libertics; and if they could mect with Perfons to
believe this, that was a probable Way thought
upon in this Conference to get a great many Ad-
Lerents to the French King, thereby this Invafion
was to be facilitated, and the whole Project ren-
dred more fuccefsful. '

There is another thing, Gentlemen, in this
Paper, and that is this; ‘They complained of the
Mifmanagement of their Affairs at St. Germasns
that though they did carneftly defire the Reftiry-
tion of the late King, yet there was always fome
foolifh thing or other that came from St. Gerinajiis
that obftruéted their Defign.

What that foolith Thing s, I can’t fay, 1t does
NOL appear ; but whether it were not too great a
Difcovery of their Zeal for Popery, and the Ad-
vancement of the Popifh Religion, 1s worth your
Confideration,

And fomething is to be done for Satisfaction of
the People as to that; and 1t is advifed that there
0 -mld be Seven or Nine, ot fuch a Number of
... fh Men, that fhould go over, and be received
- ; Favour at St. Gerinarns, and they fhould be
c. ‘ne Council there, and thefe were to be Prote-
{Lints 3 and that was to be a Colour and Pretence
that the late King was reconciled to the Prote-
flant Interefl, becaufe he chofe Proteftant Coun-
fellors, and had reccived them at St. Germains,
and was advifzd by them.,

This, fays the Paper, will make the World
‘believe, he is aurs, and that we have gamed him;
which was to delude a great many of the People
of England, that they fhould not be affrighted 1n
cal- there thould be fuch an Invafion ot Eugland,
but invited rather, and encouraged to Join with
the Freach when they came,

But, Gentlemen, the three laft Papers that have
been produced to you, are Papers that do fomc-
what more nearly concern my Lord Preffon.

The firlt Paper contains feveral Memoran-
dums; It begins with Lady D. 2000/ who that
Lady D. is, I muft leave it to you to Imagine,
tho’ perhaps it may not be hard to guefs.

It takes notice that the Ewglifh and Dutch were
like to join; and thefe Memorandums do allo
fhew a Delign and Purpofe of fomething to be
done for the Prevention of thar Conjunttion.
They feem alfo to be Inftructions to be made
ufe of upon going into Framce to negotiate or
tranfport fome Matters of dangerous Confe-
quence.

L.Prefton. My Lord, Ihope that your Lordfhip
will obferve, that thefe Memorandums are broken
kind of Notes, incongruous and mcoherent,

L.C. % Holt. Ay, my Lord, they are fo, they
are but broken things; but I fay full, they are
Memorandunis that were to be ufed for fome Pur-
pofe: Now I leave it to the Jury to confider of
the Matter of them : What can be plainer than
what is there expreffed ? The French are to come
in time, before the Dwich and the Englifh join ;
they are to watch their Opportunity and come be-
times, and they are to fight at the Chops of the
Channel,-and not to come fo far as Beachy,

L. Prefion. 'This isall but prefumptive Evidence
-my:Lerd,
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L. C, 7. Holt. 1 appeal to your Lordfhip if it
was not mn the Paper, and I appeal to the Memeg-
ry of the Jury, whether I mif-repeat it or not.

The Paper mentions Feanmgs and Strickland,
and Trevannion, that they were to come from St.
Malr’s 1n one Night; the King (meaning the
late King) was not to be on board; and there
were Ships to lie at Neweqftle, to plague London :
[tis eafy tounderftand what they meant. Among
thefe Memorandums, it ismadeasa Remark, that
the London Clergy are the worft. It gives an Ac-
count how Portfmouth was fortified, and Gafport,
and what Number of Men were in them 3 and of
the State and Condition of our Navy ; what Rates
our Ships were, and how many, and who were to
be the Commanders.

L. Preffon. 1 beg your Lordfhip to obferve this
15 not Treafon.
L.C.Y Holt, T fhall tell you that, my Lord,
by-and-by ; Iam now {tating the Evidence,
Gentlemer, my Lord Preflon infifts upon it,
that thefe Papers were not found about him ¢ It

s trug, they were not, but it does not therefore
tollow, that they were none of his Papers: But

you have three Witnefles, My, Towifend, Mr.
Bland, and Mr. Wair, produced to prove thefe
%apers to be my Lord’s Hand s Mr. Tewsefend fays,
he was acquainted pretty well with my Lord
Prefloi’s Hand 3 he was one of his Clerks 1n the
Office of the Wardrobz; he fays, he has feen my
Lord write feveral times, and does believe the
Writing to be his Hand ; and to the fame Pur-
pofe fays Bland; and Mr. Warr fwears to one of
the Papers, that he believes it to be my Lord
Prefler’s Hand.

L. Prefton. 1 hope your Lordihip will pleafe to
obferve to the Jury, that this is only a Proof of
Similitude of Hands: no-body fee me write
them.

L. C. . Holt. They only fay they do belicve
it to be your Hand ; no-body fays they faw you
write them; if T omit any thing, pray tell me
when 1 have done, '

Gentlemen, there are other Papers which have
beecn produced and read, that are writ in Cant-
ing Terms, which yet plinly thew the general
Dcfign ; they tell the Party, that Council are of
Opinion, he has a very good Title ; they hope
he will appear himfelf, and if the Caule be well
follicited, 1t may come to a Hearing before the
End of Eafter Terin.

There is another Matter mentioned in another
Letter which is under the Difguie of Trade,
That the Goods muft come before the frdt of
March.  And another of them fays, that unlefs
the Copper and the Linnen come before the
Tenth of Maich, they fhould lofe this Summer’s
Profit. ‘

Gentlemen, what can be the Meaning of all
this ¢

L. Prefton. 1 know not indeed, my Lord.

L.C.%. Halt. In another of the Papers it 15
faid, *Tis thought our Fleet will be ready by
March or April, but they believe not ull Fune,

Truly, Gentlemen, I have not been able to
sake Particulars of every Letter, but 1 n:iuft leave
it to your Obfervation; only there is one of
thery that makes Mention of acquainting my
Tord with the Condition of the Writer, and -
reCtion is therein given to fpeak to the Bearer ;

and what other Lq;d was there, but he, in'the

Company ¢ -
e L, Prefon.
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I.. Prejton. 1 defire to obferve, my Lord, that

T was not the Bearer,

L.C.%¥. Holt. Truly, my Lord, I can’t tell
who was meants T muft leave 1t to the Jury to
judge of thar; but there was no other Lord 1n
that Company.

L.Preion, 1 give yonr Lordfhip Thanks for ob-
ferving that it was not proved that they were ta-
ken upon me before ; but I beg your FPardon lor
interrupting of your Lord{hip.

L. C.f. fsir, Interrupt me as much as you
pleafe, if I do not obferve right; I will affure
you I will do you no Wrong willingly.

Now, Gentlemen, the Queftion is, in the firft
place, Whether this be Trealon? and T told you
before, without Queftion, if any Lerfons do go
into Frasce to negotiate fuch a Delign as this, or

do purpofe to go into Fruice, and do any Act

in order thereunto, that is High Treafon; and
thele Letters do import High Treafon as great as
can be commitied 3 a Treafon againft the King
and Queen, @ Defign to invade the Realm, to
fubvert the Government, to reftore another
Prince 1o the Throne by the Afliftance of Foreign
Force.

There was & Defign to delude and 1mpole up-
on a great many Peoples and thofe that would
not be deluded into a Beliet by thele fair Pre-
renfions of Friendfhip, they were to be fubdued
by an Army of Forcigners.

Then, Gentlemen, the next Queltion will be,
how my Lord Prifleis is affeCted by this Lividence,
and whether you have fufficient Proof from what
has been offered, to fatisfy you, that he 1s guilty
of this Treafon or no?¢

Firft, my Lord tells you, there has not bzen 2
clear Proof that thele are the Papers that were
taken; for, (fith he) they have been conveyed
from Hand to Fland, and therefore poffibly there
might be fome Alteration made in taem, You,
Gentlemnen, arc ro conlider, notwithftanding this
Obiettion, whether the Identity of the Papers be
not proved, |

Cuptain Billsp tells you, he took them, and In
what Manner ; and ziterwards carrted them to
my Lord Nottinghai, who laid them by for a lit-
tle while upon his Table, and Captain Bilgp
withdrew (that is part of my Lord’s Objection)
while my Lord Nettinghain examined my Lord
Prefton : after that, wy Lord Noftingham called 1n
Bilisp again, and Billep twears the Pacquet was
not opeiied, but rematned INtire I {uch manner
as they were delivered to my Lord Noitinghai s
and fo fays my Lord Nettinghain. Then Captain
Billp faw my Lord Nottinghzi open 1t at that
tinwe, and he {aw all thele Papers every one put
up again by my Lord Nesingbaim; fo that he
could not be deceived 5 and my Lord Nottinghasiz
delivered them to him, and he carried them to
my Lord Prefident, all fealed up with my Lord
Nottinghan’s Seal: and my Lord Prefident tells
you he opened them, aud brought them to the
King, and had them back from the King; but
they were never ont of his Sight while the King
read fome of them, but he took them all; and
brought them to the Cabinet Council, where my
Lord Siduey received all thefe Papers that have
been read, and marked them, You have my
Lord Siduey’s Oath thar thele are the Papers he
had from my Lord Prefident; youhavemy Lord
Prefident’s Oath that he had them from Billop,
fealed with my Lord .’Z\’bﬁf;{gbaﬁfs Seal 5 you
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have my Lord Nottinghan’s Oath that he had -
them from Billop; and Billop fwears that they
were taken in the Smack.

So that 1t is plain, if you believe this Evi-
dence, that they are the fame Papers, Befides,
as to feveral of them, Billop marked them, and
fwears directly to them. If you believe thefe
Witnefles, as you have no Reafon, 1 think, to
the contrary s it is plainly proved thefe are the
very Papers which were taken from the Bofom of

Afton, and taken up by him from under the
Quarter Hatches in the Smack.

L. Preffon. 1 beg your Lordfhip’s Pardon for

one thing.

L. G f. Holte. My Lord, what fay you, pray?
aay what you will.

L. Preflon. With humble Submiflion, there is
onc thing that I think the Jury ought to take No-
tice of, That when the Papers were fent from M.
Bridginai to my Lord Sidney, they were fent by a
Meflenger,

L. C.f. 1hlt. My Lord, you are miftaken as
to that Objection, for my Lord Sidiey did not
fend them to Mr, Bridginair by a Meflenger, but
he delivered them wich his own Hand, and after
he had fet his own Mark upon them ; and M.
Briaginai {ays they were never out of his Sight, he
copted them all but two or three, the other Mr.
Paultiey copied 1n his Prefence, and fo he fivears
he re-defivered them to my Lord Sidiey.

L. Pigflon, With humble Submiflion, my Lord,
if 1 remember right, they were in a third Hand,

L. C.J. Holt. Never, never.

L. PreSton. Did not my Lord Siduey fay {o, or
Mr. Bridgman 2

L. C. F. Holt, No, neither my Lord Siduy,
nor Mr. Bridgizan faid fo ; I fuppofe the Jury are
apprehenfive of the Matter; Iwould not miflead
them, I'll aflure you, nor do your Lordfhip any
Manner of Injury in the World.

L. Prefton, No, my Lord, T fee it well enough
that your Lordfhip would not; Tam for my Lite,
and beg your Lordhip’s Pardon for interrupting
of you,

L.C.#. Hdlt. Gentlemen, the next thing Is to
confider, whether my Lord Preffoir be anlwer-
able for thefe Papers, or a Party in this Treafon.

Firft, Gentlemen, [ would have you to confider,
that there was the hiring of a Vefiel for Framce : It
is trug, my Ld Preffon was not prefent at the Bar-
gain ; but you oblerve, that my Lord Preffon, his
Servant, Ahbton, and Lliiot took Water at Suyrey-
Stairs, on purpole to go on board that Smack.

Now, Gentlemen, whether or no you can 1n-
tend any other Ways than that my Lord Preffor
was privy in the Hiring of this Veflel, though
he was not prefent at the hiring of 1t; for how
thould my Lord Preffon be ready to take Water
with them at Survey-Stazrs 2 Can you 1magine my
Lord came there by chance, and took a fudden
Relolution? if you can imagine that he came on-
ly to go on Ship-board, without knowing the pre-
vious Defign, truly you imagine a very great
thing for my Lord’s Advantage,

It s plain he went voluntarily, without Com-
pullion; truly, I think the Evidence is very
itrong to induce you to believe he was privy
to this Delign, and that he did know of hiring
the Veilel. '

L. Preflon. 1 hope your Lordfhip will obferve,
at the fame Timé¢, that I was never feen before
we took Boat,

L.C.¥.
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L. C. . Holt. My Lord, 1 have obferved it,

and T lay that Weight upon the Evidence that dom, to depofe the King and

I think it will naturally bear, and no morey and
leave it to the Jury to confider, whether your
Lordfhip was privy to the Deflign or no, when
they weigh the Circumitances of the Evidence
together.

L. Preflon. 1 hope I fhall not be condemned
upon Prefumption and Argument,

L. C. F. Holt, What Weight the Evidence has
they will coniider.

And then, Gentlemen, there is another thing
that I would obferve ; Why fhould my Lord Pre-
flon, a Noble Mar, a Perfon of his Flonour and
Quality, pur himfelf in fuch a Place as he was
found in, and that twice? It muft fure be out
of an Apprehenfion of fome Danger. As for
the Seamen, they were- fecure cnough 3 they
were not frightned, becaufe they thought they
were prote¢ted, and my Lord Preffor knew he
was not lable to be preft; the Mafter of the
Veffel tells you they were fearful, and therefore
hid themlelves i a Place they could not ftand in,
nor fit 1, there was the Gravel and Ballaft, it
was uneay to them, dangerous to their Health
to be there,

Gentlemen, why do Men avoid the Light and
put themfelves under Covert, unkefs they have
lome Evil Defign ? Perfons that are innocent fegk
not Oblcurity. |

The Seals were found there, and my Lord
does not deny they were his Scals.

L. Preston, 1 do not deny that: T hope it is no
Crime to have fuch Seals.

L. C.} Holt, Ay but, fays my Lord, that
does not affect ——— becaufe the Papers were
not found about me, but were found about Af-
ton.  Gentlemen, if you can imagine my Lord
Preflon had a different Defign from the reft of the
Company that were with lum, thend you may ac-
quit my Lord, and find him Not Guilty, But ic
1s left to you to confider whether he had not the
lame Delign with them. Belides there’s Mention
made in one of the Letters, my Lord, and there
was 10 other Lord but he; and here are Papers
prov’d to be my Lord’s own Hand, contaning
leveral of the Matters of which he ftands indiét-
cd, and he would have had the Captain to have
difpofed of the Papers,

Now, Gentlemen, what Account does my Lord
give you were he was going ? It feems chey did
pretend at the Time they were taken, and they
would have had the Mafter of the Vellel faid,
that their Defign was for Flanders 3 but the Wit-
nefles tell you polinvely, That the Veffel was
hired for Frauce.

Truly, Gentlemen, I muft leave the Matter to
your Conlideration whether my Lord be guilty
of this Defign or Not Guilty.

There 15 another thing that my Lord has ur
ged (for I would not willingly omit any thing
material on the one Side or the other) he fays his
Inditment is laid in the County of Middlefex,
but the Papers were not taken there, the Ship
they went on Board lay at Anchor in Swrepy and
when they were taken, it was in the County of
Kent, and fo there is no Proof of Treafon in
._Mf}fd!qﬁzx. '

Ay, but Gentlemen, cive me leave to tell
you, 1f you are fatisfied upon this Evidence, that
my Lord was privy to this Defign, contained in

thefe Papers, and was going with them into
Vor. IV,

Jor High-T'reafon,
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Lhis King-
) Queen, and malke
ufe of the Papers to that End, then every Step
he took, n order to it, Is High-Treafon, where.
cver he went; his taking Warer a¢ Strvevfhatis
in the County of AMiddiefox, will be as much
High-Treafon, as the going a Ship-board in
Strrey, or being found on Ship-board in Ky
where the Papers were taken, J

Gentlemen, 1 have failed of recolletting fe-
veral of the Partculars of the Evidence, becaufe
they are many ; and you will not depend upon
my tholleﬂlqn of Things fo very incoherent gs
fome Parts of the Evidence in the Papers are,
but upon your own Notes and Obfervations,

It you do think, having heard this Evidence,
That my Lord was not concerned in this Matter,
that my Lord had no Defign to go mto France
with thefe Papers, but that he was an utrer
Stranger to all thefe Things, then you are to Ac-
qut my Lord. Bur if you believe mv Lord
was privy to, and knew of the I—Iiringiﬁf this
Vellel, and that he went to carry on the Defien
contained 1n thelke Papers; and that he wrome
fome of thefe Letters, and with the others he
was acquainted, then you are to find him Guilzy,

L. C. 7. Pollefen. - My Lord, if you pleate,
would obferve one thing to the Jury.

L.C.7. Holt. Ay, by all means, my Lord,

L. C. ¥. Pollzfeir.  Gentemen of the Jury, T
fhall fay but a few Words to you, becaufe in-
deed my Lord has fumm’d up the Evidence very
tully, for Matter of Law: I am fully of Opinton
there never was a more black nor horrible T'rea-
fon than is in this Plot that is now cdifcovered +
for I think Englifiinez have no greater Enemies
than the French and the Papifts, and you fee this
isa Plot to bring in both; and therefore I think
there was never any thing of greater Confe-
quence to the Government and the Nation, than
to have this Plot detetted and punithed ; tho’
perhaps never any thing was more improbable
than chis fame Plor, that it fhonld ever tale
Efiet, whatfoever they promifed to themfelves,
and their Defire of having 1t effected, might per-
fuade them to the contrary.

But, Gentlemen, the thing that I would men-
tion about the Matter before you now, is this;
Fere are three Papers, that by three feveral Wit-
nefles, acquainted with my Lord’s Hand-writing,
are tefhified, as they believe, to be his Hand-
writing 3 1f fo, then there 15 an End of all, for
therein is a horrid deal of Treafon contained.
It thefe Inftructions, thefe Memorandums, thefe
Heuds that were written down, were my Lord’s,
and he did intend to go with thele in a Voyage
towards Fiauce, that will be f{ufficient of it flf,
if there were nothing clfe 1n the Cafe, to main-
tain this Inditment,

But, Gentlemen, you have 1n the reft of the
Papers that were taken, A great Character of
the Bearer ; that the Bearer had done great
Things; that the Bearer could inform them fully
of every thing; and there fhould be full and
intire Confidence put in the Baarer, and a great
many fuch Phiafes. _

But, fays my Lord, I wasnot the Bearer, it
was Mr. Afbion that the Papers were found about ;
it does not appear directly who the Bearer was;
and they were not found about me. _

Now, Gentlemen, pray let us look a little
how this Evidence {tands: Pray where was this

M m m Bundle

Fraice, there to excite an Invafion of
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Bundle found? even upon the Gravel, where
my Lord Preflor and Mr. Ablon lay ; there was
it found, and my Lord’s own Seal with it.

How, in the Name of God, came my Lord’s
Seals to be found with other Peoples Papers, i
they did belong to any body elfe? How came
they together in that Place ? It may be, he had
a mind to leave his Seals behind him, becaule
they would difcover his Quality,  Bur why
thould my Lord Preffor have all this Fear upon
him? Why fhould two Men go and take a Ship
for themftlves and two others; and when they
came to take Boat, take in my Lord and his Man,
1f they were not the two others that were defign-
ed ? and this to be done at Night in the Dark?
Why fhould my Lord be under fuch terrible Ap-
prehenfions, as to creep 1nto a Hole fo unfit for
one of his Quality ?

Why do you not hear {from my Lord fome
oood Account from what Occafion my Lord and
his Man were going 1o France ? Or whither elfe
my Lord was really going? for fome where or
other 1t was plun he was going,

Gentlemen, no Man goss into an Lnemy’s
Country without fome Licence, unlefs he go
upon fome ill Defign: Tear feldom is without
fome Guilt; and there appears, throughout the
whole Mamagement of the Story, that there
was @ great deal of Fear upon thefe Gentle-
men.

Befides, afterwards, when he is taken, -and the
Letters taken with him in the fame Company,
you hear what Endcavours there were to fup-
prefs the Truth, even by my Lord’s defiring to
have the Pacquet difpofed of ; and my Loid’s
Man gave one of the Seamen half a Crown to
fay they were going to Flanders, not to France, 1
fuppofe the Man knew how unfit it was to be
known that they were going to Frame: And
my Lord’s two Companions ipared for no Pains
to get the Pacquer thrown over-board; tho’ ail
that my Lord faid was what great Kindnefs he
would do him when it ay in his Power, 1f he
would diipofe of the Pacquer; T fuppofle that is
very eafily intelligible.

Gentlemen, there 1s one thing, which is men-
tioned in one of the particuiar Lerters, that I
delire particularly to obferve to you, and that is
all T thall fay to you: Here is a Letter in my
Hand that in divers Places has fomewhat remark-
able ; it fays, 29w Daughter and [ umft flarve, if
this Goueritmieint can siake s : That the Party did not
vepuire af all for baviug loff all for your Sake, which
yotti Faveur bad beffezved,  And in another Place
this Letter doth fay, 2our Daughter grows wery
tell, aid very pretty, as T am told,  But that which
I chiefly mention it for, is, it’s twice mentioned,
My Loid <oill tell you oll my Condition, how I have
beeir wjed s and I Dave fold iy Lord my Condition :
what [ defire of you, be thinks very modeiate.

And pray confider and remember, that the
frit Article of my Lord’s Paper, that is taken
to be under my Lord’s own Hand, there is Two
thoufand Pounds to the Lady D.

Now if any Body fhould put thefe together,
do they lack any great Interpreter for? tor my
part I leave them to you.

Then 1n another Place, towards the End of
the Letter, it 1s faid, Pray, Sir, ask my Lord bow
{ bave been ufed.

Now this Letter being thus taken, and thers
is never a one of the reft that was a Lord, do
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you think any of the reft was meant? [ mys
leave it to you,

It my Lord Pigflon had produced any Teflimo-
ny to prove his own good Carriage and Beha
viour towards the prefent Government, it Lad
been very much for his Advantage, and might
have had great Weight with you; but when
Things appaar only mn this manner as they do
now, I mult leave 1t to you.

Gentlemen, *ts a great Matter, and of great
Moment 5 1f thole that confpire againft the
Kingdom, againlt the Proteftant Religion, and
agamit the prefent Government, may do it with
Jmpunity, it will be worth the Confidering what
the Conlequence of that may be.  Your own
Confciences require you to do Right and Jultice
on both Sides; and it you are fatsfied he 5 Not
Guilty, you will find him o if You are {atis-
ficd that he s Guilty, you will find him fo.

L. Preflon. My Lord, may I have the Liberty
to fay any thing betore the Jury go out?

L.C. 7. Helt. Your Lordihip thould have faid
what you had to fay before: It is contrary ro
the Courfe of all Proceedings in fuch Cafes to
hive any thing faid w0 the Jury afrer the Cours
has funmmed up the Evidence 5 bur we will dift
pente with 1. What has your Lordfhip to fay ?

L. Proflir. My Lord, 1 humbly thank your
Lordfhips I am not acquainted with fuch Pro-
ceedings,

L. C. 7. Helt. My Lord, you know T permit.
ted your Lordfhip to interrupt me as much as
you wouw’d, which was never done before in any
luch Cafe,

L.C. }. Pollexfen, It is contrary to the Courfe
of the Court: But yer if you have any thing
to fay to the Court or the Jury, for this once
We periit i,

L, Proflon.  Gentlemen of the Jury s

L. C. ¥. Iis. My Lord, what you have to fiv,
pray direct yourtelt 1o the Court, that we may
hear what 1t 1,

L. Prefior. My Lord, T only defire the Jure
may be formed, that T am a Proteftant, that T
was bapuzed in the Religion of the Church of
Luglond, and have always lived in it, aud hope
o dic 1n 1. My Lord, ’ts wue, things have
been urged with Severity againft me that are a
litde hard, in making thar, which I hope will
amount to but a Prefumption, to be a Proof; as
m the Cale o7 the Letters that are written in 2
Cant, and nwy Intention to go 10 france, and
thole Words in the Letter, where sy Ioid the
Bearer 15 named. But your Lordfhié oblerves,
That that Letrer 15 not direéted to any body, and
that 1s full of Cant as well as all the reft; Why
fhould 1 be fuppotzd to be the Bearer any more
than cither of the others, and they were found
about one of them ? Bur, my Lord, for the
Reafon of my going beyond Sea, it was this; I
defigned w go to Flawders, or any Place 1 could
be driven to, and thar cught not to be wondred
at; for really I who had lived quietly after the
Lofs of my Places, upon this Revolution, and
fuffered great Inconveniences in my Eftate, and
was reured to my own Houfe, with a Deliga
to live a retived Life, was imprifoned twice in
the Zower, and proclaimed a Traitor in every
Market Town, without any Indi@ment; and
my Imprifonment tended greatly to the Impair-
g my Health and my Fortune; all this'made
me very uncafy here: and, my Lord, I went

under
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under a fixed Refolution to go to Flauders, or any
Place where I thought I could be quiet.

L.C.¥. Holt. My Lord, your Lordfhip fhould
have faid all thefe Things before, for it is not
the Courfe to reply vpon the Court; if you had
had any Thing to fay, you know we heard youl
ont of Courfe, and I let you interrupt me as
much as you did think fir, though that has not

cen allowed at any Time before. But, my Loxd,
pray let me fay one Thing more: Suppofe your
Lordfhip did think yourfelf hardly ufed, though
I know not any Reafon you had to think fo:
yet your Lordfhip mult remember, it was in a
Time of Danger that your Lordfhip was taken
up before, and you had fhewed your Diffatis-
faction with the prelent Government, and there-
fore they were not to be blamed if they fecured
themfelves againft you; bur it you had a Mind
to retire into the Country, or to go Abroad, was
France the only Country you could choofe? A
known declared Enemy’s Country, at onen War
with the Government ?

L. Prefion. My Lord, I beg your Lordfhip’s
Pardon, 1f I give any Offence.

L.C. . Holt. No, my Lord, you give me no
Offence at all; but your Lordfhip is not right in
the Courle of Proccedings; I acquaint you with
it not by Way of Reproof, bat by Way of In-
formation,

L. Prefion, Then [ hope the Gentlemen of the
Jury will confider, that all that is alledged a-
gainlt me is but Prefumption; my Life and For-
tune, my Polterity and Reputation, are al}l at
Stzkey I leave all to the Jury’s Confideration,
and the God of Heaven direct them.

L. C. F. Holt. 1t you go on thus to reflect up-
on the Court, you will make the Court re-
et ypon you. The Jury hear how the Evi-
dence has been ftated 5 I think it has been done
very impartially, and without any Severity to
you: Why fhould you think we would prefs the
Fvidence further than it ought to go againtt
your You are a Stranger to moft of us, and I
am jure we do not defire your Life; but flill we
muit take Care that Jultice be doie to the Go-
vernment and the Kingdom, as well as to any
particular Perfon; and Evidence that is given
nuft have its due Weight and Confideration
1f any one can defign innocently to go into France,
at this Time of Day, with fuch Papers, and in

fuch a Manner, that I leave to the Jury’s Conli-
deratton.

Then the Jury withdrew, to confider of the
Ewdence, and the Court adjonried for a listh
while, aid retuiwed in balf an Hour 3 end the
Jury caie i, and were called over,y and ap-

peared,

Cl. of Ar. Are you all agreed of your Ver-
dict ?

Jury. Yes.

Cl. of Ar. Who (hall fay for you?

Fury, Our Foreman.

Cl. of Ar. Sir Richard Grabme, hold up your
Hand (which be did) Look upon the Prifoner.
How fay you ? Is he guilty of the Felony and
High Treafon whereof he ftands indiGted, or not
guilty ? -

Foreman, Guilty.

Cl. of Ar. What Goods and Chattles had he ?

Foreinan. None at all that we know of,

Then the Verdi& was recorded,

Vor, IV,

for High-Treafon.
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L. C. 7. Pollesfen.. 1 think, truly, Gentle-
men, you have done according to your Eyi-
dence; and though it be a hard Cafe upon par-
ticular Men that have brought themfelves into
thefe Inconveniences, yet it is neceflary Juftice
fhould have its due Courfe, or elfe there is no
longer living for any Man in any Socicty or Go-
vernment,

Thben the Prifoner was carried back 1o Newsate,

ard the Court Adjonrned 11l Monday Morn-
g following at Seven o*Clock.

- il

Die Lune, X1x Januarii, 1690.

The Court being fate, the Fury was called
over, and the Appearance of thofe who an<
fwered Recorded.  Then My. Afhton and
My. Blliot were brought to the Bar ;, but
M. Elliot wwas ordered 10 be carried back
to Newgate, the Kiug's Council refolving

to try Mr. Adhton by himfelf.

310 HN ASHTON, hold up thy Hand,
[WWhich be did.] Thofe Men that you fhall
hear called, and Perfonally appear, are to pafs
between our Sovereign Lord and Lady our King
and Queen, and You, upon your Tral of your
Life and Death. If therefore you will challenge
them, or any of them, your Time is to fpeak as
they come to the Book to be fworn, and belore
they be fivorn.

Mr. Afbton. Pray flay a little.

L.C.}. Holt. What fay you, Mr, Afbton ?

Mr. Ao, My Lord, T humbly defire your
Lordihtp will allow me the Benefit of Pen, Ink,
and Paper.

L.C.F. Holt. Pray let hum have Pen, Ink, and
Paper.

Mr., Afbior. And likewife that you would give
my Sollicitor leave to be as near me as poflibly he
can, only to refrefh my Memory, if 1 fhould for-
get any thing,

L. C. ¥. Holt. That 1s a Thing you cannot of
Right demand, the other of Pen, Ink, and Pa-
per, you may., | |

Mr. Afbton, My Lord, I fhall acknowledge it
as a very great Favour. i

L. C.¥. Holt. That is an Innovation that ought
not to be; the Court cannot allow i.

Mr. Afbton, I acknowledge it a Favour, but if
the Court thinks 1t not fit to allow it, whatloever

your Lordthip fhall order I readily fubmit
to.

L C. % Holt. You fhall have Pen, Ink, and
Paper; and what is fit for the Court to do they
will do 1t ‘

L.C. Baron. If the Witnefles fay any thing -
that you do not hear, yon muft fpeak to the
Court, and you fhall have them fay 1t over
again,

7 Pen, Ink, and Paper was given to the Prifoner.

Cl- of Ar. Sir William Hedges, Kmght.

(He appeared. )

Mr. Abtor. My Lord, I would not trouble
your Lordfhip and myfelf with unneceffary Chal-
ienges ; I intend to put myfelf with an ntire De-
pendance upon the firlt Twelve Men that appeat,

be they who they will,
Mmm 2 LC.7.
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L. C.F. Halt, What you pleafc for that mat-
ter, you have your own Choice.
Mr. Afton. Whoever they are, 1 fubmit to
them ; I know them not,
Gl of Arr. Swear Sic Williain Hedges.
(W hich was doie. )

Aud fo were the Eleven iext fucceeding i 152 Pamnel s
and the Naines of the Twelve fiworn folloo.

Sir Williain Hedres, Knt.
Fobn I olstenboln, Bl
Fasires Boddingtoir, EIqs
Thomas “Fobnfon, Elg;
Ralph Bucknall, Elgs
Lucy Knightly, Llgs
Thomas Cuthbert, Elqs
Yobir Herbert, Eiqs
“obu Tully, Elg;
Thomas Saith, Eigs
WWilliam TWitkers, Efgs and
Daniel Thoiias, LI
Then the Fury were nuieied, and Proclaization iade
for Inforination md Eoideice in the wizal Nenuer.

Mr. Ahion, Gentlemen of the Jury, if you
defire Pen, Ink, and Paper, ] hope the Court
will take care to provide them for you.

I.C.}. Holt. Ay, ay, let the Gentlemen of
the Jury have Pen, Ink, and Paper.

(IPhich was doiz.)
Cl. of Ari. Jobu diten, Hold up thy Fland.
(Which be did.)

Gentlemen, you that are {worn, look upon
the Prifoner, and hearken to his Caufe : He
fands indifted by the Name of Fob Afliton,
late of the Parith of St. Paul’s Covent-Garden, 1n
the County of Middlefex, Gent. For that he,
together with Sir Richard Grabme, late of the
Parith of St Am, in the Liberty of Weltminfter,
Baronet, who ftands convicted of High ‘Trea-
fon, and Edumuid Elfiot, late of the Parifh of
St, Fames, in the fid Liberty, Gent, For that
they, as falfe Traywors, &v. (Prout in the Indict-
ment, mlatis stendis) and againft the Iorm
of the Sratute in that Cafe made and provided,
Upon this Indictment he has been Arraigned,
-nd theraunto  hath  pleaded No! Guilly, and
for his Trial hath put hunfelf upon God and the
Country, which Country you arc; your Charge
s, to enquire whether he be guilty of the Fe-
lony and High Treafon whercof he ftands In-
dicted, or not Guilty 5 if you find him Guilty,
you are to engire what Goods or Chattels, Lands
or Tenements he had at the Time of the Felony
and High Treafon committed, or at any Time
fince; it you find him Not Guilty, you are to
enquire whether he fled for it; if you find that he
fled for it, you are to enquire of his Goods and
Chattels as if you had found him Guilty ; it you
find him not Guilty, nor that he did Ay for it,
you ate to fay fo, and no more, and hear your
Evidence.

Mr. Kiapp. May it pleafe your Lord(hip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury s This is an Indit-
ment of High Trealon againft Fobn Afbton, the
Prifoner at the Bar, and the IndiCtment, Gentle-
men, charges him, That he, as a falfe Traytor
againft their prefent Majefties King 77illiam and
Queen Mary, his Supreme and Natural Lord and
Lady, not weighing the Duty of his Allegtance,
did, upon the Twenty-ninth of December laft
palt, together with Sir  Richard Grabine, who
ftands convifted, and onc Edund Elliot, and
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divers other ill difpofed Perfons,

2 W.&M.

unknown to
the Jury, did confpire, imagine, and intend
to depofe and deprive the King and Queen,
and to bring them to Death and Deftruction,
and to fubvert and alter the Government ; and
to caufe War and Rebellion within this King-
dom againft their Majefties; and to bring thefe
Intentions and Purpofes to pafs, the Prifoner,
with the reft of them, did prepare divers Notes,
Papers, Letters, and Memorandums in Writing,
which were to inftru&t the French King, and
other Enemies of the King and Queen, of the
Number of their Majefties Men of War, how
they were mann’d, and the Names of the Com-
manders of feveral of them, and to inform them
how the Caftles and Forts of Partfouth, Soutbfea,
and Gofport were fortified, and how they might
be furprizsd by the King’s Enemies, and of the
Times, Ways and Means how they might invade
the Kingdom, in order to depofe the King and
Queen ; and to procure and incite fuch an In-
¢alion s and further to bring thefe Purpofes to
pafs, the Prifoner, and the other Traytors, did
fceretly conceal, and detain in their Cuftody,
foveral Bills of Exchange, for the Payment ol
Money to the King’s Enemies, and the {everal
[ etters, Notes and Memorandums before men-
tioned, which were for the Purpofes 1 before
opened to yous and further, to bring thefe Pur-
pofes and treafonable Intentions to pafs, they
did for One Hundred Pounds hire and prepare i
Ship, which was to carry them fecretly out of
this Kingdom into France, with an Intent there
‘o deliver thefe Inftru@ions, and Memorandums,
and Bills of Exchange into the Hands of their
Majefties Enemies ; and did hire a Boat to carry
them to the Ship, and did enter into it at St, Cle-
sent Danes, within your County, and rowed to
the Ship, and went on board the Ship, and there
with the Bills of Exchange, Notes, and Memo-
randums, they fet fail to go to France, n order
to deliver them to the French King, and other
Enemies of the King and Queen ; and the Indict-
ment doty further fet forth, that there hath, and
(il is, 2 War berween the French King, and ovr
King and Queen, and that he and his Subjects
are Enemies to the King and Queen and therr
Subjects ; and that during this War, the Prifoner
together with the reft that were “before named,
were adhering to the King and Queen’s Enemtes
in this War; and in purluance thereof, did pre-
pare fuch Letters and Inftructions before opened,
and had, and concealed in their Cuftody, and
hired a Ship and a Boat, and went into the Ship,
and fet fail in order to go for Fraice, to aid and
affift the King’s Enemies there with Money,
Intelligence, and Counfel ; and this 1s laid to be
apainft the Duty of his Allegiance, againit the
Peace of the King and Queen, their Crown and
Dignity, and againft the Form of the Statute in
that Cafe made and provided. To this he hath
pleaded Not Guilty; if we prove hum Guilty, you
are to find him Guilty.

M. Serj. Thampfon. May it pleafe your Lord-
fhin, and you Gentlemen of the Jury, The Pri-
(ner at the Bar ftands indicted of a very heinous
Offence, no lefs than High Treafon, the areatelt
Offerice that can be committed againft any Hu-
o Law. You have heard' the Particalars n
the [ndictment read. I wiil not trouble you with
any Repetition, but go o 0pen the Evidence ac-

cording to the Steps that are obvious in the Cale.
You
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Vou have heard in general, the Defign was to de-
pofe -this King and Queen, which the Law ex-
pounds to be fo bring them to Death and De-
firuction: You have heard it was to alter the Go-
vernment, and caufe a Rebellion in the Kingdom,
and to bring in a foreignPower ; and thefe are Iaid
+0 be the Heads of the Offences that the Prifoner
ftands charged with.

Gentlemen, the firft Step that wasmade in this
Matter was by the Prifoner at the Bar ; for there
was one Mr. Burdett, which it {eems had been
one of his Acquaintance, and had undertaken
to bring him acquainted with 2 Perfon that could
farnifh him wich a Ship; and In order to that,
one Mrs. Pratt, that had the Management of the
Smack which belonged to her Flufband, fhe, by
Burdzt£’s Means was brought to Birdett’s Houle,
where fhe met Mr. Abon, the Prifoner at the
Bar, and they had fome Treaties about the Hi-
ring of a Ship; the Purpofc declared by the Pri-
foner then, was to hire 1 Ship to go to any Part
of France, and he would give a confiderable Re-
ward for it; he faid it was for bimielf and Three
more. They did not come to any Conclufion
about the Ship, but there was an Appointment
made, to have the Malfter of the Ship to mect
with them at the Wender Tavern, n Ludgale-
freet; and 1 order to that, Pafeley, that is the
Mafter, and the Woman came there, and nict
with Mr., Afbton; but becaule Mr., Burdett was
not there, they came only to this Propofal, One
Hundred and Fifty Pounds was demanded for the
Hire of this Vefle] ; but there being no Conclu-
fion then made, they thought 1t better to do it at
Burdet’s Houfe, and about a Day after they came
to Mr. Burdet?’s, and then it happen’d that Elios,
one of the Perfons that 1s indicted, but not ons
bifore you, came thithertoo; and at that Time
it was agreed to give One Hundred Pounds for the
Hire ot the Shin. Ninety-three Guineas were
depofited in Mrs. Buidett’s Hands 3 and there was
a Token paft berwixt them by the bieaking of a
Six-pence, one Part whereof was to lie with Mr.
Abton, and the other with Mhs, Beedett 3 and
whenever the Mafter of the Veficl brought back
the broken Piece of Six-pence that Mr. 4his
had, then fhe was to pay the Money, that being
the Sign that they had atained thewr Ends, and
were fafely landed m France,

The next Step they take is this, they appoint
to meet at the Seven Stars in Covent-Garden, thither
the Mafter of the Veflel and the Woman were to
come, and that was near the Ttme, that very Day
that they defligned to go down; and there was
Mr. Afton and Mr, Elliotz, but the other Perfon
did not appear as yet 5 there the Seamen were or-
dered to go along with them, and thence they went
down to the Water-fide, to Swrrey-Siairs, and the
Waterman was called, and in the mean time came
my Lord Preffenn and his Man to them, and they
four did go in that Boat, by the Direttion of the
Mafter, and were carried on Board his Smack.,

After they came on Board (for I would note
the particalar Circumnftances) they were very
apprehenfive of Danger, for they knew what
they went abont, thetr own Guilt gave them
Reafon of Fear, and when they came near a Man
of War, which lay at Anchor in Lsup-Reach,
In' the River, they defired the Mafter to hide
them, that they might be fafe from any Search,
and they were hid and put clofe under the Hat-
ches for fome time; afterwards, when they came
to another Place of Danger, 1t was by the Bl
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Houfes at Gravefend (as they apprehended ) there
they defired to be hid again; and (o they were put
in that Place, where they were in very difficult Cir-
cumftances under the Hatches, and there they re-

mained till 2 Pinnace, that had been fent o inquire
after them, came and boarded this fime Vefel,

Upon its boarding of them, the Captain made
a Search, and found thefe Gentlemen, my Lord
Prefton, Mr. Abton, and Mr, Ellet, and | {uppofe
his Man alfo, all hid under the Hatches.

Then the next Thing which is obfervable,
Gentlemen, and the great Matter that will fhew
where the Treafon was, is this, There was a
Bundle of Papers that was on Board, ready pre-
pared, if they had not been furprized, but could
have had an Opportunity for ir, to have been
caft over-board, and there was Lead fixed to it,
to have funk it, and Mr, Afbton, the Prifoner at
the Bar, was the Perfon that concealed this Bun-
dle of Papers, betwixt his Body and his Coat,
and from thence it was taken by the Captain that
took them.

When they were fo taken, the Captain, accord-
ing to his Duty, was bringing the Prifoners to
Whiteball, they delired to go on Shore at Gravef.
end, but the Captamn did not think that fo fit, but
carried them on Board the Gesrge Frigat, and then
you will hear thefe Gentlemen did fall into a
Treaty with the Ciptain to fupprefs thefe Pa-
pers ; and one Inftance I remember they did rell
him, that fince there were a Parcel of Papers
that he had taken out of my Lord Prgflon’s Poc-
ket, hemight takeoff the Lead and fix 1t to thofe
Papers, and fink the others ; and what fhould he
have for it? They promifed him great Re-
wards, they told him he might be a great Man,
he had an Opporwinity of making his Fortune;
and when that would not do, they ufed many
Threatnings to him, all which will appear in the
feveral Circumftances that the Witnefles will tell
you of.

I come, Gentlemen, in the laft Place to fhew
you, That all the whole Confpiracy, all this
Treafon, did hie hud under this Bandle of Papers
that were taken from Mr. 4fbton, and fo he might
well be afraid of having them opened, for there
you will find a formed Delign to alter this Go-
vernment by a French Power and Affiftances; and
they contain fo many Particulars, that in regard
I would not do the King’s Evidence Injury on the
one hand, nor the Prifoner on the other, I will
forbear repeating the particular Inftarices.

Gentlemen, you will have all the Letters and
Papers read ; but in the General, I m_u{’c needs
fiy, you will find it manifeft, that there s a black
and wicked Confpiracy to introduce a foreign
Power to cftablifh the Proteltant Religion, and
that by a Popifh Intereft, and to fertle our
Laws, Liberties, and Propertics, by a Freich
Army. And let them pretend what they will,
for the Proteftant Religion, when you hear thefe
Papers read, no-body will imagine it was o any
other Purpofe (if the Plot had taken Effect) but
to have what Religion, what Laws the Freuh
Kine had pleafed to impolfe vpon us.

If the Pprifoner be Gt?i]ty, Gentlenien, of thele
Matters, I know you will do'your Duty; but if
he be not Guilty, God forbid that you fhould find
him Guilty. _ |

L. C. ¥. Holt. Call your W!tneiﬁis, Brothe;.:“

My, Serj, Thompfon. We begin with Mrs, Prait.

She was fwoin.

Sit /.
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Sir . 17il. Look you, Mis. Pratt, here 18 a-

148. The Trial of Sir Richard Grahme, 2W.&M.

Mrs, Pratt, Yes, they gave me one Note to

nother Gentleman at the Bar to be tried, againft  meet at the Dog Tavern, and another to meer at

whom you are called as a Witnefs.

Mrs, Pratt. Yes, my Lord.

Sir %, Wil, Pray hear what we ask you. Pray
do you give the Court and the Jury an Account,
what Treaty you had with that Gentleman, about
a Veflel to g0 to France, and what was done in
it ?

Mrs, Prast. If it pleafe you, my Lord, 1 was
fent for to Mr. Burdet’s Houfe in Duecir-Stieet by
Cheapfide, to know whether he could have a Smack
to go for Frame; 1 told him yes, I could help
him to one; he told me, there were two or three
Gentlemen bound for Fiaiice, as Merchants to
ferch Silk, and I was at Mr. Bidett’s twoor three
Times, and at laft Mr, 4/ten met me there,

L.C.¥. Holt, Look upon the Gentleman, Is
that he?

Mrs, Pratt. Yes, that is the Gentlanan, and
he met me theie, and meeting with Mr, fbion,
he hired the Veflel 5 but frlt of all, he defired
us to meet at the Dog Tavern upon Liudgate-Hil:,
to make the Bargain, and we did meet there,
and were there about an Hour, or an Hour and
a half, and Mr. Baracr! did not comes and the
next Morning, Mr. Afbion defired me to meet
him at Mr. Durdeir’s again 5 and the next Morn-
ing I metat Mr, Burdets’s, end there we made
the Brraatn for 10c/ and there was a Six-pence
broke in two Preces.

Mr, Serj, Treinaiz, Was the Hundred Pound
paid

Mrs. Pratt. Yes, but we agreed on the Tuef-
day Morning, and there was a Six-pence broken
in two, and Mr, A/ton had both the Six-pences in
his Hand, and the Tuefday Night the Hundred
Pound was paid at Mrs. Burdett’s.

Mr. Sof. Geiz. Who was by ?

Mors. Praiz. ‘There was one Mr, Elliot, and the
Mafter of the Smack, and Mrs, Burdett,

Mr, Seij. Tiginzn. Ihd they pay the Money In
Gold or Silver?

Mrs, Pratt, This Gentleman, Mr Afbion, told
the Money, there was g3 Guineas and a Six-pence,
and Mr. Afbton gave one half of the broken Six-
pence with the 93 Guineas, to Mis. Dride!s s and
when the Mafter of the Veflel brought the other
Half of the Sig-pence, or I, cither of us, we were
to have the 100/,

Sir 7V, I¥il. Pray to what Place did they hire
the Ship to go ¢

Mrs. Pratt, To France.

Sir 7. 7il. Who hired the Ship 2

Mrs. Prass. That Gentleman,

Sir 7. IVil. Who paid the Money ¢ |

Mys. Pratt. That Gentleman, Mr. Afhion,

Sir 7. Wil, To what Hand was the Money
paid ?

Mis. Pratt. Tt was paid in Mrs. Brrdetf’s Bed-
Chamber, into her Hand. ,

Sir %7, }il. Who broke the Snxpence ?

Mrs. Pratt. Mr. Afbton, that Day the Bargain
was made.

Sir /7, Iil. Who carried it away ?

Mrs. Pratt, When the Money was pad, Mr.
Afbton had one, Mrs. Burdeit hiad the other Pare,

Mr. Serj. Tremain. To which Part of France
were you hired to go?

Mrs. Pratt. 'To any Part where they could
touch.

Mr. Serj. Tremain. Pray did they give you any
Note about any Thing ?

the Seven-Stars \n Covent-Garden.

Mr, Serf. Tremain. Who gave you the Notes 2

Mus. Pratt. Mr. Afbton and Mr, Eliot,

Mr. Serj. Treinain. Look upon that Note.

(Which fle did. )

Mrs. Pratt, "This to my beft Remembrance Mr.,
Afbten wrote, [ cannot well remember the Hand.

My, Serj. Tremain, Did Mr., Afbton defire to
meet at the Dog Tavern ?

Mrs. Pratt. Yes, and he did meet at the Dgp
Tavern ; but Burdest did not conme.

L.C. 7. Holt. When did you meet at the Dgg
Tavern ?

Mis. Pratt. On the Monday Night before New-
Year’s Day.

L. C. f. Holt. When was the Money paid ?

Mrs. Prait. On TuefdayNight, at Mrs, Burdztt’s,

Mr, Serj. Tremain. After the Money was pad,
what did you do the next Day ?

Mrs. Pratf, Mr. Apbton ordered a Note to be
written, to meet at the Seven-Stars in Cevent-Gar-
deir, at one Mr. Rigoy’s.

L. C. F. Hslt. Arvwhat Time were you 10 go to
Rtig'!)_}',ﬁ ]

Mus, Pratt, A Wednefday Night.,

L. C.¥. Holt. But at whar Time ?

Mrs, Pratt, Some Time zbout Ten o’Clock,
and we came there accordingly.

M. Sol. Gen. Who was with you at Righy’s?

Mrs, Prett, There was the Mafter of the Vel
fel, Mr. Afbton and Mr., Elfist, and two Gentle-
men more, that I never faw before nor fince.

Sir /7. Wil. 1 afk you again, who firft treated
with you about hiring this Veflel

Mis. Pratt. Mr, Burdett firlt treated with me
about it

Sit /7. Wil \Vho next?

Mrs. Pratr. Mr. Albten.

Sir 77, I7il. 'Who made the Bargain with you ?

Mrs. Pratt, Mr. Afbton.

Sir 7. il Who paid the Money ?

Mrs, Pratt. Mr, Afbtoi.

Sir /7. I7:l. What can you fay more ?

Mr. Serj. Tremain, Pray let me afk you, when
youy came to Mr. Righy’s, in what Manner did
you goaway from his Houfe, and what was faid
at parting ?

Mis. Pratt. Mir. Afbton was not there himfelf,
at frlt, but he and Mr. Eflioz, and two other
Gentlemen were there afterwards, and Mr. b
toi’s Wife faid fomething about Papers hove 1n
a Hat at Court, and about fomebodies being
chofen ; and one of the Gentlemen faid, there was

nothing in that, I was one that was chofen laft
Year.

Mr. Serj, Tremain, Did Abtonand Elliott go out
together from Mr. Righy’s?

Mrs. Pratt. 1 did not fee them go,

Mr. Trevor. Had youany Diretions from Mr.
Aflton, to fend for a Hamper or a Trunk ?

Mrs. Pratt. Yes, that was at Mr. Burdett's
Houle.

M. Trevor. When was that Hamper and Trunk
to be fentfor?

Mrs. Pratt, On the Wednefday Night before we
went to Righy’s Houfe. *

Sir /7, Will, Do you know one 7 Pafeley ¢
Mrs. Pratt. Yes.

Sit W, I7il, Was he with them ?
Mis, Pratt, Yes, he was with them.

r

Sir /7.
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Sir /7. 17l WhatOccalion brought him thither?

Mirs. Prati. I carvied him to Mrs, Burdet? sHoufe,

Mr, Trevor, Pray did the Prifoner defire to
e the Mafter of the Veffel, or Ipeak with him ?

Mis. Pratt, Yes, and when I brought him,
he faid he liked him very well,

Mr. Trevor. What 1s the Maflter’s Name ?

Mrs. Praott.  William Paftley.

Mr. Sery. Tresnain, Had you any Difcourle
with Mr. Atei’s Wife after they went away ?

Mrs. Pratt.  We had hietle Difcourfe, only fhe
gave me fome Victuals and Drink ;5 and fhe fud
fhe hoped 1 would not tell of her IHusband,

Mr. Serj. Tremain,  Whatclfe did fhe fay 2

Mrs, Prait.  She hoped God would deliver
them out of the Lyon’s Mouth. _

Mr, Serj. Tremaim. Did fhe fay any Thing
about Cock-crowing ?

Mrs, Praif. Yes, fhe faid fhe thought fhe
fhould have no good Luck, for the Cock crowed.

Mz, Scrj. Zremain.  VWho was by in the Cham-
ber when the Money was paid ?

Mrs. Pratt, There was the Maller of the
Vellel by, and Mus. Burdett,

Fuiyinaie My Lord, T heard her fay foime-
what of fome Papers, which I do not very well
underftand.  Does fhe know of any Papers that
the Prifoner had ?

M. Sery. Tresmein,  That was only aboutr the
Two Notes, .

L.C. 7. Iolt. Shetalks of Papers being thaken
in a Hat, but nothing can be made of it

L.C.F. Pollexfen. 1F you wonld ask her any
Queftions before fhe goes, now 1s your time to do
It

Mr. Afbton. My Lord, Idefire the may ftand
up again.  Mrs. T ask a Queftion, not fo much
m Kindnes to mylelf, as Juftice to another
Gentleman, You fay Mr, Ellis writ one of the
Notes,

Mrs, Prait. Yes, as I remember, it was that
to mect at Mr. Rigly’s.

Mr. Afbteir. 1 do it to uftify that Gentleman,
I take that Note upon myflf; and you fay I
hired the Ship, and Mr, £/et was by,

L. C. 7. Holt, Look you, Mr. Abton, Mr. Elfiot
15 not now upon his Trial, it concerns you only
to ask fuch Queftions as relate to yourfelf, What
s fud now concerning Mr, Elfiot, goes for no-
thing againft him.

Mr. Afiton. My Lord, I do it only to do
him Jufhice.

L.C. 7. Holt. But you are to ask Queftions
only for yourfelf.

Mr., dfbten,  Remember, good Woman, Yol
are upon your Oath; and have a Care of [or-
lwearing yourfelf s my Blood isat Stake,

Mis. Pratt, 1 am fure I fay nothing but the
Truth.

Mr. Afbton.  Did Lever fpeak to you of going
to Fraice ?

Mirs, Pratt, Yes, you did.

Mr, Afbton.  As I hope tor Salvation I did not,

Mrs, Pratt,  And another Thing you told me
more, 1f I helped this well away, you would help
me to the Earning of 1000 4 before Lady-Day.

Mr, Afbton.  Gentlemen, as to what was faid
of that kind, of helping her to 1000/ is no great
Matter to the Thing in Hand; for if T was
minded to go out of the Kingdom, it was necef-
fary to ule all Arguments I could, to perfuade
her to help me to go away.

Jor - High-Treafon.
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~L.C.}. ok, Mr, Afbton, you muft ftay your
time before you fpeak to the Jury; make your
Obfervations upon the Evidence to yourflf, you
fhall be heard at large all that you can fay in your
proper Time.

Mr. Aton. 1 do aflure myfelf, my Lord, of

all the Favour that can be fhewn to a Man in my
Circumftances.

L.C. . Holt.
I do affure you.

Mr. Afbtor. My Lord, I am glad in the Cir-
cumftances I am m, that I am to be tried before
your Lordthip. But, good Woman, by Virtue
of the Oath that you have taken, did I ever {peak
to you diretly or indiretly of going to France ?

Mrs, Pratt,  Yes, and yon asked for a Hole
to hide what you might have occafion to keep
fecret.

Mr. Abion. Bat T ask you about golng to
fraice 5 did I fpeak to you about going to Frauce ¢

Mrs, Pratt,” Yes, you did.

Mr. Afhton.  Then, as I hope to be faved, T
never fpoke directly or indire@ly of eoing to
Liance to her, o

Mrs, Pratt,  You were not to oo for Hellaind
or Manders, Tam fure,

Mr. Afbtor.  Nay, T did take it for granted,
that you did know before I met you, that we
Were to go to fiaice; but I never fpoke to you
of it In my Life, that Tam fure of ; but I only
urge this to let your Lordfhip know, that Wo-
man has forgotten herfelf,

L. C. 7. Pollsxfen. Mr, Afbton, You will have
all fawful Favour; but your Time for arguing
upon the Kvidence is not come.

M. Serj, Thowpfoir. You muft ask your Que-
ftions now, and make your Obfervations after-
wardss you muft referve yourfelf for tha, g
after we have done.

Mr. Afston.  But then, my Lord, I fhall have
too many Things for my Memory to retain; and
therefore T beg leave, as they occur to my Me-
mory now, and as the Witnefles go along, 1o
make my Obfervations.

Mr. Serj. Ticinain.  Mrs. Pratt, Pray, when
the Vfle] was hired, and you were told it was
to go to Liraiice, what Perlons did Mr. Afbson fay
were to go with him? -

Mus. Prait. Three Perfons he faid were to go,
Lut he did not name them,

Mu. Sery. Ticinain. Then fet up I¥illiain Pafelcy.

[(hich was dowe.]

Sie IV, Williains.  What can you fay of any
for the hiring of a Veflel ?

Pafeley. 1 did not know the Vefiel was hired
hefore 1 came thither.

NMir. Sery, Thoinpfoir.  Prithee tell us what thou
dofl know.

Pafeley.  The Woman came to me when I was
at Billizgfrate, and faid T mult go a lictle Way
along with her; and as we were going, fhe told
me 1t was to go to M. Burdett’s w Queen-Street
and when we came there, Eflict and Afbton were
not within: But by that time we had been there
a little while n came Mr. #lfbton, and prefently
after hum Mr. Elfiot; and M. #fbton bid the
Woman give lum the Money out of the Place
where it was.

Furyinan. My Lord, we do not hear him.

S 7. Williais, - Pray beginagain, and fpeak
Out,

Pafeley, T met with this Woman at Billing fpate,

and

You fhall have all that is juft,
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and fhe told me I muft go a litle way along
with her.

L. C. . Hol, That Woman, name her.

Pafelzy.  Mus. Prasty and 1 went along with
her, and askt her where the was going; fhe faid
up into Quecin-Street : And coming to Quecit-Stieet,
we went to Mr. Burdzt’s Houle, 1 was never
there in my Life before. When I came there,
Afbton nor Elior were neither of them therc;
after a little while in came Afbron, and prefently
after in came Elfiot, and he went up Stairs 1nto
the Bed-chamber; and being in the Bed-cham-
ber, they brought the Money out, rolled up In a
half Sheet of Paper, fzt up an Edge, and told it
out at the Window.

L.C. 7 Holr. Who told 1t ?

Pafeley. Afbton told the Money out; and
after the Moncy was told, he pulied out two
pieces of a Six-pence, and when he had pulled
out the two pieces of a Six-pence, he gives one
half to this Mrs, Bridezr, and the other half he
kept himfelf; and he bid her pay this lame Money,
when the other half Six-pence that Afbfon kepr,
came to this Woman, to match that which fhe
had 5 and after the Money was told, we ftaid but
a fmall while there, and came down Stairs 5 and
when we came down Stairs we went down o
Billingfoate. 1 think Jobu Fifler was there, and
we carried away with us a Trunk and a Hamper ;
Yobin Fifber carried the Trunk, and another Man
the Hamper ; and after that we had carried the
Things on Board, I came up to the Houfc again;
and after T came up to the Houfe, they directed
us to go to the Seven-Stars In the little Piazza,
there was a Note written to direét us, which or-
dered us to go thither betwixt roand 11 at Night.
When we came there, I think there was neither
of them there prefent, but by that time we had
been there a fmali Space, m they both came
and fite down ; and 2 Gentleman came m and
faid the Cock crowed, and theretore they fhould
have no good L%, And then. they talked
about Papers being wiled in a Hat, T dow’t know
whar, and in cune two Gentlemen more, Juil
before we went away, to fee thems and alter
thofc Gentlemen had feen themy, they ftud but
a litele while,  Says Eize! to me, Mafter, come
along with me; {o I went along with him, and
we came to Saver-lais, and on the Corner on
the LefteHand, there was an Alchoufe. He
ciled the Warerman out of the Ale-houfe, and
he bid me go before, and I went down ; and by
the Time thae I had gotten down, the Warerman
came and halled his Wherry to, and T went
in, and by that ume I was gotten to the Stern,
down came by and Effior, and my Lord, and
his Man,

L. C. Y. Holt. You mean Aflton, not Afbby

Pafeley. Yes, my Lord, that is the Man,
And after they had got into the Wherry, and
were feated, they bid the Waterman put oft
from Land, and fo we went through DBridge s
and after we were throngh Bridge, we got on
Board the Smack, and they got into the Cabbin ;
and when they were got nto the Cabbin, T cal-
led my Men, and bid them hale vp the An-
chor, and they did fo; 1t proved to be but hetle
Wind, but that Tide we got below half-way
Tree, and were forced there to drop our An-
chor, and ftay till the nexc Morning: The next
morning we weighed Anchor, and Dby that time
it was Nine a Clock, we got to Loug-Reach,
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where lay the George Man of War, and thepe
they hid.

Mr. Soll, Gen,  And how was the hiding pray >

Mr. Pafeley. It was down m the Quarters
under the Hatches.

Mr. Soll. Gen.  Why did they hide ?

Pefeley.  We reckoned they would come on
Board a Prefling, and they bid me fhew my
Protection.

Mr, Sery. Tremain, Did they defire to be
hid ?

Pafely.  Yes, and after we came by the
George Man of War, they came up again, and
rematned afterwards m the Cabbin, tll we came
almolt to Gravefend : A lintle before we came 1o
Gravefend, they all hid again; and when they
were hid, remained hid all, T think, but On]-y
Ilfiot, 1 think, he popt up; and they were ye-
folved to go cat their Victuals; but then 1 told
them there was a Barge @ coming, and [0 he
went down aeain, and there they remaned il
they were taken, for the Barge was on Board
prefently, and found them there.

My, Ser). Tremern.  What kind of Place wis
it that they were hid in 2
 Pafelyy. They could not fir, nor ftand up-
nght in 1t, but Ly all along, or leaned on thor
Llbows.

L. C 7. Ikl What did they licupon there,

pray ¢
Pafeley.  "There was Ballaft, and {lir Dail
top of the Ballaft,

Mr. Ser. Thompfon.  Well, what happened
when the Captain canie on Board ?

Pafelev.  When Captain Biflop came on Board,
Mafter, fayshe, you have gota Couple of ftous
young Men, T mult prefs them, or to that Ll
fect. I hope not fo, Captain, fud I, Why
what have you to fhew, fays he? ] told lim, I
had a Protection. Letr me fee it, fays he: So I
fhews him oy Protetion, and he looks in it
Well, fays he, Mafter, I muft look farther;
and went to rights to the Place where they lay,
and found them lying all together,  After they
were taken, and were come out, Captan Biisp
commanded them into his Boat, and commanded
me and my two Men, w0 go Into the Barges;
atterwards he fet his Man on fhoar at Huigei ford
Stars; and when we came to Wuitehall Bridge,
the Gate was not opened, and we ftud a little
while ar 7Pitehal! Bridee ; and when we came
a Shoar, Elist gave me half a Crown, and bid
me fay, when I came upon my Examinaton,
that we were bound for Flanders, and not for
Fiance,

Mr. Scry. Tremain,
for, pray?

Lafeley.  They examined me in the Chamber,
when they paid the Money, 1t 1 knew they
went to Frence s and 1 otold them, Yes, wvery
well, .

Mr. Scry, Thompfon.  Did they defire you 1o
oo to any particular Port m Fiance ?

Pafcly.  No, we were to touch at any Place
we could,

Siw W [Villieins. Did they mention any thing
of Lladers to you ?

Pafeley.  No, they did not.

L.C.}. Holt. Did any bady mention going
to Lraice to you ?

Pafeley,  Yes, they did. They ask’d me,
whether I could carry them to France fafe.

L.C. 7. .

Where were you bound
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L.C.¥. Hil. "Who did ask you thac?

Pafeley, Ellot or Afbton, one of the two, I
cannot dire@ly fay which; but if I be not mif:

taken, it was Afbton.
Mr. Serj. Tremain.  When came you from

Righy'’s at the Seven-Stars ¢ Who came away with
ot £
y Pafeley,  Afbton and Ellet.

Mr. Serj. Tremain.  Did Elliot and Afbloir both
come out with you ?

Paféley, ~Yes, they did.

Mr. Serj, Treimain. And did they part after
they were come out ?

Pafeley. Yes, Afbton did go away from us pre-
fently after we were come out,

Mr. Serj. Thompfor, When you came on Board,
had you any Difcourfe with Afbton about going
to France 2

Pafeley, No, not that I remember.

L.C.¥. Holt. Did you go on Foot from the
Seven-Stars ¢

Pafeley.  Yes.

L. C. ¥. Holk.
come out ¢

Pafeley.  Yes, they did.

L. C. ¥. Holt. And who went with you, did
you fay

Pafeley,  Elliot came with me,

L.C. . Holtr, Whither went Mr. Afblon then ?

Pafeley. 1 cannot tell, my Lord.

Mr, Sof, Gen, 'What did he fay to you when
he went from you ?

Pafely. He bid me go along with Eljot,

L. C. . Holt. 'Was Mr. Afpton there as {oon
as you ?

Pafeley. Not quite ; but by that time the
Waterman had got the Boat to the Shore, and I
in the Stern, they were all come down.

L. C. ¥. Holt.  When 4bton came, who cune
along with him ?

Pafeley. 1 faw them all upon the Stair-head ;
I was in the Boat when they came. I never faw
my Lord, till he was upon the Stairs.

Furyman, My Lord, I defire to ask him,
What the Sum of Money was, that was paid ac

Burdet’s ?
" Pafeley, It was g3 Guineas and Six-pence.

L.C. 7. Holt. Who brought 1t?

Pafeley, It was laid down in the Window.

L.C. ¥ Holt, But I ask you, who brought
it ?

Pafeley. 1 did fee Afbton bring it; and lay 1t
down in the Window, and he told it out, and
put it up again, and gave it to Mrs, Burdett.

Furyinan. My Lord, I defire to know what 1s
the ufual Rate to go to Flanders; what may 2
Smack and three Men deferve ?

Pafeley. ‘Fruly 1 cannot tell, I never went
upon my own account in my Life.
~ L.C. J. Holt. Mrs. Pratt, what fay you, what
is the ufual Rate to go for Flanders or Holland ?

Mrs, Pratt. 1 believe they may go for a mat-
ter of 20/, or 30/

L.C. ¥. Holt. You hear them; Gentlemen;
what they fay ?

Suryman, Yes 3 but, my Lord, he fays, he
gave them Notice the Barge was a coming : 1
defire to ask him, Did he know there was a
Defign to fearch him or no? ‘

Paftky, Sir, I knew that there was a Search
for Seamen,

L. C. . Holt. But did you know there was to

Vou IV.

And 'did they part after you
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be a Search, in order to the taking thefe Gentle-
men on Board you? For that is the Queltion, I
believe, the Jury would ask you.

Pafely. No, 1 did not know of it _

Mr. 8ol..Ger. But you fay; thele Gentlemen
defired to be jud?

Pafely. Yes. : . :

Mr. Sof, Gen. And you hid them according to
their Defire ¢ o

Pafeley. Yes. o |

Mr, Serj, Tremain, Before you went on Board;
had you any Drfcourfe of hiding ? Did they ask
you for 2 Place to hide in?

Pafeley.  Yes, they did.

Mr, Serj. Tremain, Who did?

Pafeley.  Afbton and Elliot both ask’d if there
were a Place in the Ship to hide them, and T told
them, yes, there was,

L. C. F. Pollesfen, Mr. Afbtoin, will you ask
him any Queftions ?

Mr. Afbton. My Lord, 1defire toask him this
Queftion: Did we defirc you to come and hide
us, or did you defire us to go down?

Pafeley. You defired this of us, that if we faw
any Man of War’s Boat we would el you, that
you might be hid.

M, Serj. Treiain. Pray repeat that over againg
did they defire you to give them Information
when any Boat was coming, that they mught
hide, or did you defire them to hide yourfeif ?

Pafeley.  They defired it of me.

Mr. Serj. Thompfor. Then fet up Charles |
Bet fevorih.

Mr, Ser). Tremain,
amined, I would ask Pafely one
there any Coat left on Board you?

Pafelzy. . Yes, there were two Coats of the
Waterman’s left on Board, and I took them and
lock’d them up.

Mr. Seri. Treinain, Is that the Man that own’d
the Coats?

Pafeley. Yes, 1.

Sir 27, Williams. Then, Betfworth, will you
give an Account of what you know againit the
Prifoner at the Bar? |

Betfiworth, 1 cannot tell, my Lord, 1 never
fiw the Gentleman in my Life before, that I
know of. -

Sir 2. Williams, Prithee hear, Friend, tell
what you know of carrying any Gentlemen on
Board the Smack.

Betfiworth.  If it pleafe your Lordfhip, I was
going Home from our Stairs about 7 of 8 a Clock
in the Evening ; that 1s, from Swurrey Staws, and
2 Gentleman called, Sculler. Said 1 to him, Sir,
where do you go? Says he, As far as the Tower 5
faid I, *Tis againlt Tide, T cannot go; 1t will be
Ten a Clock before it be high Water.  Says he,
Will you go with us at that Time? Sard I, What
will you give me? Will you give me half q
Crown ? then Pl carry you down, for I cannot
ftay our fo late for nothing. Yes, fays he, I
will give it you. Then I came and brought my
Boat to the Shore ; he asked me then, What my
Name was; I told him Charles Betfwrth,  Says
he, Will you be fure to ftay till we com::_? Yes,
faid I, if you will be lure to conic ; :and if I be
not here, 1 will be at fuch a Houfe, an -Ale-
houfe, that was thefe by s the Sign of the Swan :
So I {taid, and carried a Fare or two over, the
Water ; and about 11 a2 Clock comes a Gentle-
man down, and calls Charles, and I went out a
N nn Doors

efore Betfworth 15 €Xe
ueftion? Was
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Doors down towards my Boat, and there comes
dne Gentleman down, and a kind of a Seaman,
as I thought; and the Seaman went into the
Stern, and the Gentleman fat down at the Back-
Board, and there was three Gentlemen more
came down the Stairs into the Boat; one had a
whitifh Cloak, and the other a loofe Coat; and
they brought a Leather Bag that would- hold
about a Peck ; fo I put off with them, and rowed
down the River, and all that I heard them fay,
was, when we came under the Temple, fays one
of the Gentlemen, When do you hear the King
goes away ? Saysanother of them, He goes away
a Tuefday; and when we got through Bridge,
one of the Gentlemen ask’d where the Veffel lay,
ind 2 Man in the Stern fid, On Southwark Side,
over-againft the Tower s and when we came a lit-
tle below Battlebridge, near Pickle-Herring Stairs,
the Mafter {aid, There lies the Veflel, and 1t had
a long Pendant and a Top-Sail loofe ; fo they paid
me before they came on Board, and when they
were got a Board, away rowed I ; and when I came
to Land to take out my Sculls and Things, there
1 mift my Cloaths; "and I rowed after them, think-
ing they could not be got far; but when I came
to the Place where they went on Board, the Veflel
was gone, and I rowed down as low as Lime-
boufe Reach, and in Blackwall Reach 1 overtook a
Veflel, which I thought was the Veflel, T ask’d
them who they belonged to, and they faid they
came from Horfeleydowon, and 1 made anfwer, I
brought two Fares on Board a Veflel at Pickle-
berring Stairs, and had forgot to take my Cloaths
that they had ; they made Anfwer, I brought no
¥are on Board them; fo I rowed on farther be-
yond Barkinfbelf, and becaufe there was no Wind,
I thought none could have gone beyond that
Place, and therefore refolved to row back again
when it was Flood ; and 1 rowed up to Grezinwich,
but could not meet with the Veffel ; and I heard
nothing of my Cloaths, tll laft Frvday was Seven-
night 1 had my Cloaths brought to me.

Sir . Williasns.  Can you fay this Gentleman,
Mr, Afbton, the Prifoner at the Bar, was one of
them that you carried on Board the Smack ?

Betfworth, No, I know never a one of them,

Mr. Serj. Tremam.  But you fay the Perfons
that you took in at Swirey Stairs carried away
your Cloaths wich them?

Betfwworth,  Yes, Si.

Mr. Serj. Tremain, Then Task you, Pafeky,
is that one of the Perfons that he brought on
Board your Smack ?

Pafeley. Yes, he was.

M. Ser}. Tremain, -How many came on Board
the Smack ?

Pafelyy.  Four; my Lord Prefton, NMr, Albton,
Mr. Elliot, and my Lord Prefloi’s Man.

Mr. Serj. Tremain, Did you take in your
Pendant 2

Pafeley,  Yes, 1did, .

Mr, Serj. Tresain, When did you take it in ?

Pafeley.  Asfoon as we weighed Anchor,

Mr., Serj, Treimsin.  How came you to take it
in?

Pafeley,  Elliot fpoke to me take it in,

L.C. % Holt. Did they mention how many
were to go in the Smack ?

Pafeley. He faid, there were three of them, not
four, as I remember, that were to go.

Sir . Williams. 'Will you ask him any thing,
Mr, Abion.-
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Mr. Abion. No, Sir: But I defire the Wo-
mian may not go out of Court.

L.C.¥. Hott. No, no; She fhall ftay,

Mr. Serj. Lhompfon.  Then call Fobu Fiffer
and Faues Ainonds. ( Fither flood up.)

Sir . Willieims. Pray do you acquaint the
Court and the Jury what you know of this Mat.
ter, whether you carried any Things on Board
the Smack, and what, and who came on Board,
and what hapned. "

Fifber. My Lord, a matter of fix Hours befare
they came on Board, my Mafter carried me 2
Shore, and brought me to Mr. Burdetr’s Houfe,
and gave me a Trunk, and I went with it, and
another Man with a Hamper, and brought them
on Board 5 and about 11 or 12 a Clock, my Ma-
fter comes and brings Mr. 4bton and the other
aboard ; and he bid me go forward, and heave
up the Anchor, and fo I did, and we went down
the River; but we could go but a little way be-
caufe there was no Wind ; and when we came tg
Halfiway-Tiee, the Tide turning, we were forced
to caft Anchor again, and ftay till the Morning
and in the Morning we weigh’d Anchor again,
about § a Clock, and about 9 we came into
Long Reach, where lay the George Man of War,
and then Mr. Afbtorr and they hid 3 and when we
came below them again, they came up again till
we came almoft near the Alock-Houfes at Gravefend,
and there they hid again y and Mr, Aflron, 1 think,
came up afterwards, and bid me go down to the
Hamper, and fetch them up fome Victuals for
their Dinner, and I went down and fetched u
fome Beef, and Mr. Afbton took hold of fity and
I took a Bottle of Wine or two out; and juft
before I brought all the Victuals up, the Barge
was fpied a coming to us; and then he went
down agam, and there they hid, and the Picce
of Beef was a Top of them, Captain Biflop, when
he came near, waved his Fat, to bid us lie by
and we did lie by ull he came up to us; and
when he came up to us, fays he, Malter, you
have gotten a Couple of good likely Men, worth
the coming on Board for. Siys the Mafter, 1
hope, Captain, you won’t prefs them. What
have you to keep you clear? Says he, I have
a Proteftion. Have you, fays the Captain?
Let me fee it.  So he thewed him the Proteétion,
and he read both our Names in it. Then, fays
he, Mafter, I -muft look farther; and he went
down to the Quarter-Hatches, and took them up

juft where they lay. Firft my Lord came out;

and he fearched them all, as they came out.
Mr. Elliet came out next, and Mr, Afbton ftaid
within, being the laft Man, And after he had
fearched them, and done what he pleafed, he
got all the Papers and Writings ; then he com-
manded us all to go into the Barge, and they
came on Board the George Frigate in Long Reach.
And at the Ship, Mr, Elliot came to us, and
bid us fay, we were going to Flanders, And
after we came to Phitehall, Mr, Afon gave me
a half Crown Prece, and bid me fay, we were
bound for Flaiders, and not for France,

L.C.J. Holt. Was that after they were taken,
or before ? |

L. C. f. Pollxfen. When was the firlt time,
that they would have you fay, they were bound
for Flaudeis ¢
- Fifber. 1t was on Board the George Frigat in -
Zﬂ.hg’ Rt‘ﬂfb. *

L. C. J. Holt. 'Who was it that bid you fay fo?

Fifher.
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Fifber. Mr. Elliot and Mr. Ahion both, in the
Ship’s Steerage, where they came to us.

L.C. . Pollzxfen.  Where was the next Place,
that they bid you fay fo?

Fifber. At Whitchall Bridge Afblor gave me a
half Crown Piece, and bid me fay fo.

Furymian. Did he fpeak that aloud, ot {oftly
at Whitehall ¢

Fifber.  He whifpered 1t my Ear,

L.C. ¥ Heit. Did they ever fay they were
bound for Flauders, till after they were raken?

Fifher. No,

Mr. Serj. Tremain. What manner of Place was
this that they hid in?

Fifber.  Anugly Hole, where a Man has no
Room to lie along at Kafe; he can neither {tand
upright, nor fit upright.

Mr. Serj, Tremaiz. Did you fee the Warer-
1an that brought them on Board ?

Fifer.  No,

Mr. Sett. Tremein. Was there any Waterman’s
Coat left ?

Fifber.  Yes, there was two,

L. C.%¥. Iblr. But didft thou fee the Boat?

Frfber.  We viere afleep when they came on
Board, and the Boat was put ofl affoon s cver
they came on Board.

Mr. Serj. Trciiciin,  Then afioon as ever tacy
were on Board, you got up the Anchor, and
puiled In the Pendant 2

Fifer, Yes. We immediately hove up the
Anchor, and took in the Pendant.

Mr. Serj. Trcizain.  Did any Sculler hale you
afterwards, as you were going down ?

Fifber,  Yes, as we were going down there did.

Mr. Sery. Tremain, What did you fay to him ?

Fifper.  1wasnort fleering then; but this other
Man made Aniwer.,

L. C.F. 1k,
any Thing ?

Mr. hen. \When T gave you the hall Crown
that you fpeak of, what did Hay to you?

Ziffr. You bid me whea I came to be ex-
amined, fay we were going to [Meandirs, and not
to fraie.

Mr. Abton. What did I fay elfe?

Ffier,  You bid me take that half Crown for
to Night, to help to bear my Charges, and To-
morrow you would take farther Care of us.

Mr. Aien. 1 told you, you were Prifoners
pow, and I gave you that, and told you ! would
take farther Care of you.

Fifber. You did not fay we were Prifoners,
but you faid you gave me that to help bear
Charges for that Night, and on the Morrow you
would take farther Care of us.

Mr, Ser). Theupfon. Then fet up Fames Ainonds.

Sir /7. IWillicins.  Are you fworn, Friend ?
cends,  Yes, Sir.

Sir. . Williems. Then let the Court and the
Jury know what you can fay in this Matter,

sAmonds. My Lord, they came on Board about
ti ar 12 a Clock at Night; I was afleep in the
Cabbin, and heard a Boat coming aboard, and
I turned out, and before I could get out of the
Cabbin, they were got aboard, and I fee no
Boat, nor nothing. So fays the Mafter, Go
forward and heave up the Anchor; and after
we had heaved up the Anchor, I goes into the
Ship to tow the Veflel down, becaufe there was
no Wind, and we would not let the Veflel go

foul on the Ships that were in the River, and a
Vo, 1V,

Mr, A tonr, Wil you ask him
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little after we came on Board again 3 and when
I came on Board again, they were all on Board,
all Four. After that comes a Waterman, and [
was at the Helm fteering, and he called out o
us ! Oh hee, fays he; did not T bring a Parcel
of Gentlemen on Board this Smack ? Not as T
lknow of, faid I, Says he, I carried a Parcel of
Gentlemen on Board fome Smack that had a
Pendant out, and I know not where it is; they
carried my Cloaths on Board with them. Said
[, I know nothing of it, nor I did not; for I
faw neither Waterman nor Boat; fo away the
Waterman goes, and we went down the River,
and when we came to Holfway Tive, we came
to Anchor, and my Mafter went and laid him-
felf down, the Tide being almoft done, and
there being no Wind, and Mr. 4bion and they
lay in the Cabbins and fays Mr, Abten to me,
Take Care of us now, and we will take Care of
you hereafter; fays he, we fhall help you to many
a Ireght, and many a Pound. Ay, ay, fad
I, you will be taken Carc of to be fure at Day-
break, or when the Day comes on: About § a
Clock, we hove up the Anchor again, and fell
down as low as Lsug Reach, where the George
Frigate lay 5 and when we came there, they went
down to hide mn the Quarter-Hatches, 1 fleered
it down fhill; and when we were got paft that
Man of War, the Hatches were taken up, and
they came up again out of the Quarters, and
fate 1 the Cabbin again, and we had a frefh
Gale of Wind, and run down to Gravef2ud quick-
ly, and when we came near the Block-FHoules,
fard 1, We are almoft at the Block-Houles; then
faid they, We will go down and hide a litele ; and
fo they did till they were paft there, then refolv-
ing to go to Dinner,

L.C. 7 Ibl. What time o Day was this?

wends,  About 11 a Clock, as nearas I can
ouefs.

M. Sef. Gen.
then, did they ?

Aionds.  Yes, they did go down and hide,
and came up again, I am fure fome of them; 1
heard fome of them 1 the Cabbin.

Mr. Sol. Gen,  Well, what followed ¢

Amonds.  After they were gotten up, and paft
Gravefend, this Man was fent for Vituals for
them, and fo he fetch’d them fome Roaft Beef,
and fome other Things; and juft as the Roaft
Beef was going nto the Cabbin, ﬁ"nifl I, Here comes
¢ Barge off to Prefs.  So when I cried, the Barge
was & coming, they took the Victuals down Into
the Quarters, and there lay they, and the VI-
Guals a-top of them. And when the Barge
came near us, the Captain waved his Hat to

command us to lie by, Said I, /e amft lie by,
for the Barge is coming up fo us.  And we clapp’d
the Helm-a-lee, and lay by ; and alter we were
laid by, the Barge came on Board vs.  Says the
Captam of the Barge, Zor bave gol & Couple of
Jikely, good Men, Maftcr, faid he. Ay, fays the
Mafter, bat I hope yor woi't prefs thein.  Says the
Captain, Have you got aiy thing o keep yoi clear ?
Yis, if it pleafé you, iohie Caplai, I bave got a Pro-
teftion. 1 am fory for thot, fays he, and comes
on Board, for he ftaid all this tune 1n the Barge 5
and fmiling upon him, he comies on Board, and
fays he, Coie, ler’s fee your Proteilion. And the
Mafter {thew’d it him, and he read it. Says the
Captain, I muft look a little farther. And he goes
into the Cabbin, and took up the Hatches, and

Nnn?2 there

Well, they did go down to hide
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there lay all thefe Gentlemen. They were
fomething longer in coming up than he would
have them; fo fays the Captain to his Men 1n
the Barge, Come on Board, cnd fee who is bere.
And fo fome of his Men did come on Board ; and,
to the beft of my Remembrance, my Lord was
the firft Man that came up: And when my
Lord came up, the Captain ran his Hands into
his Coat Pockets, to feel for Papers, as T fup-
pofe; and my Lord defired the Captain to be
kind, and take nothing away. Says he, Pl take
70ihing but Papers 5 *tis Papeis T look for : And he
pulld ouca Watch, and gave it him again, After
that, Elfist came outy and whether he found
any thing upon Mr. Elfiet, or no, I cannot tell.
Mr, Afitonn was the laft that came up; and when
he came up, 2 Waterman of the Captamn’s calls
to him, and fays, Thet Geatleinan ihat caie up loft
bas put foinething into bis Bofoin, but what I cair't tell.
So the Captain took Mr. b’ by the Arm, and
torn’d him about; and, fwys he, /Fbat did you put
i your Bofeiin 2 Says Niv. #fitonr, Nothing but wiy
Haudkerchief y and pull’d out his Handkerchic,
and fhew’d him. Then the Captain put his

Fland in, and puli’d out Papers, wich a picce of

Lead tied o them.  And thar s all that T aw,

Mr. Serj. Treimaii, Buat tell us what happen’d
aftervards,

Amgids,  When that was done, the Captam
commanded us all mro his Barges and 1 rowed,
and fome of the reft row’d, 1t bemng cold Wea-
ther, till we came up to Loadon.  After we came
up to London, they did not fay any thing to me,
becaufe [ was a rowing till then. It feems they
did give them fome Money, but they gave me
none, not till I came into Whitehall 3 and then
my Lord’s Man came to me, and calf’d me 2 one
Side; fays he, Fe’s belf a Crowon, will firve
yor to Nighty aind be fuie, wonein jou coiie fo e
exennedy that you fav, vou <were bonnd for Flan-
ders, and ot for France, eid you will be taken
farther Caie of To-rioriss.

Mr. Seif. Ticimei What manner of Place is
that Quarter-Hatches ?

Aionds. They could neither fir, nor ftand
upright in it.

Me. Sery. Theipfon,  What did they heupon?

Amoids,  There were three or four flit Danls
that were Laud over the Ballaft, but it feems they
had fhoflled em on one Side when they were
taken, for the Bathit lay open.

M. Ser). Treinain,  Did the Waterman  that
brought thefe NMen on Board you, leave his
Coat there?

Amoinds, T dd not fee the Boat, nor the
Waterman 5 and therefore T am not able to fay
any thing about it, .

Mr. 8ol Genr,  Hlow came the Pendant to be
taken down ?

Amoids, 1 can’t tell that, T was in the Skiff
when 1t was taken down,

Furymer. My Lord, T do not well underftand
how the Papers came to be taken away from
Mr. Abton.

L. C. . Holt. He tells you, My, ADtonr was
feen to put his Hand with fomething into his
Bofom ; and being tax’d with ir, he faid it was
his Handkerchief'; and the Captain put i his
Hand, and pull’d out a Bundle of Papers.

Furyinan, Did he fee Afbren take away the
Papers from any other Place ?

Aiioinds.  No, an’t pleafe your Honour, I did
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not fee them all they were taken out of his Bo.
fom.

L.C. 7. Hlr. Did you fee Caprain Billop take
the Papers from out Mr, Aien’s Coat?

Aionds.  Yes, T did.

L.C. 7. Holt. Where were they before they
fpy’d the Barge a coming ? '

Aionds.  1f 1t pleafe your Honour, I heard
em talk ;3 I thought they had been up, but it
feems there was but one of ’em up when they
faid, the Barge was coming aboard : T wasat the
Flelm, and heard ’em talk.

L.C Y I, Then you knew nothing of
thefe Papers, but when you faw them taken out
of Afbteir’s Bofom ¢

onds.  No, my Lord. _

Sic 117, if7%illiams,  If yon will ask him any
thing, Mr. 4fton, now you may.

Mr. Jdfbten. Pray, Friend, had not I been up
frft, and fearch’d before the Papers were taken?

Amsiads.  Notas T know of.

Mr, Afszen. Didnot T go down into the Hold
to talie my Hat, and call to you, and defired
that [ might oo down for my Hat?

Aiinds, 1 can’t well 5 for when I faw che
Papers taken from you, T was ia the Stern 5 I
wds not down,

My, Afpien, Flad not T been fearched fift?

Awonds.  Nor thar I know of, till VO WL
in the Stern.,

Mr. Serj. Theiipfon.
Billgp.

IWhich <cas doney be fanding ap by the Sheyiff

Mr. Ser), Tremain.  Captain, T fuppofc you
may be heard from that Place.

Mr. Abten. My Lord, I defire the Wirnefs
may come down, elfe I fhall not be able o di-
ftinguith what he fays: It is the propzr Place
for him T think.

L. C. 7. olr. Let him come down.

My, Afbten. T humbly delire, my Lord, that
the Wimefles may all be obliged to itay in
Court.

L.C.F. I, Let them all ftay.

Sie I W illigns. You are fworn, Sir: Are
yOuU not ?

Capt. Billgp,  Yes, T am.

Sic /., IWilliains.  Then, pray, will vou give
an Account where you took thele Perlons, how
you took ’em, what yvou found, and how you
diipofed of 1t.

~Capt. Billgp,  Muit T begin from  the Begin-
ning ¢

St I [¥Filliains. Yes; Tell your whole Know-
ledge, in Order of Time, as it fell our.

Capt. Billsp.  \What, from the Time I wene
Qut?

Mr. Sary. Thompfor,  Make it as fhort as you
can.

Sit 7 1 ilfiaims. Yes, you muit tell all for
you fpaak now to a new Jury, and here is an-
other Prijoner at the Bar to be tried,

Capt, Buiep.  The laft of Dzeeinber, about
Two a Clock, or between One and Two, my
Lord of Dandy came to me at one of the Doors
of the Hoofe of Lords, and told me, his Father
muit fpeak with me; and he carried me up o
my Lord Lindfey’s Chamber; and in a lictle time
my Lord Prefident came there, and told me, he
heard ‘there were divers Perfons that had Papers
of dangerous Confequence, and were going to
Fraice, and defired me to ufe my Skill for my

ferzing

Then {wear Cdp‘i.li!l
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feizing and fecuring of the Papers. T began then
to talk of what was proper for fuch an Under-
taking ; and I told my Lord, I thought the beft
way was fo go to 7t ﬂﬂf‘W{Cb or DEP{fﬁJ‘(l, and to
rke a Man of War’s Pinnace with us: Upon
thar, my Lord of Daiby being by, faid, he knew
of a Boat that he could have, which was my
Iord Duke of Graftew’s ; and my Lady Datchels
had lent it him, and he would go and get it
ready : Upon this my Lord Prefident faid, he
would give me a Note of the Name of the Vef-
fel, and where fhe went out; and likewife a
Letter to another Perfon, that would mftiué me
farther, and fhew me the Vellel; accordingly
my Lord Prefident gave me the Leter, and I
went away to look for the Perfon, but could not
find him, My Lord Danby came to Tower-1Vbarf
himfelf with the Boat; and I left a Man there to
bring me Word when the Boat came up at the
Place where I was; and Captain §fgger, and
Sir Thomas Tayler came there to me.  After my
Lord of Dauby had told me what I had in the
Boat, Itold him, I thought there were not Arms
enough; and thercfore it were belt to go to the
Gower, to borrow fome Arms from thence :
When we canmie to the Tower, my Lord Lucas
was not come ; and when T had fid a lietle
dme, he did come in: And when I had acquaint-
el him with my Bufinefs, he fent for an Officer
of the Guard, and there we borrowed fome
Arns, a Blunderbuls of his, and a Carbine, and
the likes and about a Eleven a Clock, or fome-
what paft, we put off from TowerVhaif. It
was Calm, and we rowed down towards Gravef-
end s and we went aboard a Veflel or two, but
[ was not willing to lofe much time, becaufe I
vas refolved to take them before they were got-
ten too far: So we rowed away for Gravefond,
where I vefrefbed my Men, and afterwards wene
dewn into the Hope; and I did Judge that no
Veffe! that came from Lowdsn that Tide could be
a head of me. I went on Board feveral Veflels
that lay in the River, in order unto the prefling
of Men and I went oa Board all Sorts of Vel-
lels, becaule I would give no Sufpicion of what
[ was about; and having been on Board of fe-
veral, T preffed two or three Barkin Mens and
one particularly, that knew all the Veflels upon
the River, and I made him to row very near to
me, that I might talk to him; I had got the
Names of a great many Smacks, and gave it out
that I would prefs a Smack to carry for a Tender
to my Ship, when the Fleet went out; and
mming thic Smack that I was to go fearch, I
old himy 1 beard fuch e Sinack failed well, and [
had Thoughts of picffing ber 5 he told me, She wes
ofdy bur faid 1, She will ferve e Swminer well
enough 5 and that is it Lintend to prefs, if I can find
ber, Says he, Pl fbeww you bery I kiow bei wben 1 fee
bei 5 fo we went on Board feveral Vefiels as we went
along, And as we were rowing along, before we
came to the Ngf Point by Tilbury-Fort, vie faw
teveral Smacks coming down the River ; and
when we came about the Point, the headmoft
Smack of all, the Fellow lookt out, and fud,
Vonder is the Thomas and Elizabeth, Then T cal-
lod to one of my Men to wave, and bring them
to lie by, which they did, and they hy by il I
came on Board, When I came on Board; I faw
two lufty Men ftand by the Mafter; fud I,
Mofery you bave got two good lnfly Fellows ihat
would ferve the King 5 but 'l be kind and civil to you,
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D1} take but one.  Says the MaRer, 1 hope ot 7+
ﬁF?‘ I bave a P?’foﬁfﬁﬂ; with thﬂ.t, I came on
Board, and took his Protetion in my Hand, and
read it, As foon as I had read it, 1 ask’d him
If he had no more Men upon Deck than what 1
faw? He faid, No. Ther faid I, T wuft look ¢
little farther, And I went into the Quarters, and
took up the Scuttle, and the Hatches, and I faw
fome Gentlemen lie. Oh, faid 1, #hat 4 pictty
Pofture is this ? Where are we  going ? Geutlemen,
you sntft furie ont,  The firft that came to hand was
my Lord Preflon s but I did not know him then,
nor fome time after I was in the Boat with him :
50 I took hold of him, and help’d him up 5 and
when he was up, faid I, Siv, I waft fearch 1oL,
Says he, 1 hgpe you will toke nothing from we. Na-
thing, fad 1, but Papers: So I fearched all his
Pockets; and as I found any Papers, I put them
into my own Coat Pocket. And I took his
Watch, and pulPd it out, and gave it him again :
After that I had fearch’d him, came up Mr, E/-
liof the firlt Man, and the next was Mr. Afhron,
who crowded up while Eliot came up, in his
Night-Cap. I think, Mr. Alhton, you bad your
Night-Cap on.  So Mr. Afiton gocs down again,
and puts on a Perriwig, T think 3 but coming up
agan, one of my Scamen fees him take fome-
thing, and put 1t into his Bofom: He follows
Mr, Afson quick, and pulls me by the Coar;
and, fays he, That Gentleincn bas got fowethivg in
his Bofein: So 1took hold of him, and turned
him round ; faid I, Ad. Aflhton, what bave you
got in your Bofoinn 2 Nothing, fays he, bt a Hand-
kerchief 3 and immediately he put his Hand into his
Bofom, and pluck’d out the Handkerchief, and
fhew’d me. As foon as he had pulled out the
Handkerchief, 1 put my Hand mnto his Bofom,
and there 1 met with the Pacguet that had the
Lead affixed to’t; and pulling 1t out, I clapp'd
it into my own Pocket; for I thought that was
the Matter of Moment that I was to fecure.  So
[ ordercd them to go into the Boat, and the
Mufter of the Vellel ro let go lis Anchor 3 and
two Men 1 left 10 the Vellel, whom 1 ordered
to fearch, and to fecure what they found till
farther Order; and I left two Mufquets with
them, And after we were in the Boar, they
defired to have fomething handed in, which
gave Order for, a Hamper, and a Night Bag s
and away we put off ﬁ om the Veflel, and rowed
up 5 it was againit Tide, and very cold Wea-
ther. Ina Dttle time Mr, Eliot called one of
the Gentlemen, my Lord ; then I whifpered
him, and ask’d him who that Lord was, and he
told me, It was wy Lord Prefton,  Then 1 faluted
my Lord; and my Lord was pleafed to fay, he
was very well fansfied they were fallen mnto the
Flands of a Cwil Gentleman.  So rowing up
;1g;ﬁnft ’I‘ide, and 1t being 1k V\Tﬁﬂt‘l‘]y W’ind,
which blow’d very freth, my Lord defired that 1
would let them ftop at Gravefend, ull the Tide
turned, that they might rcfreth themfelves. 1
begged his Pardon, and faid, there was 2 Ship m
Long-Reach, the George Frigat, and we would itop
there ; and I did not doubt, but I could command
the great Cabbin for his Accommodation;; and
there he might have any thing that he wanted, My
T ord feemed contented with it; but before we
came on Board the Man of War, there happer}‘d a
oreat deal of Difcourfe betwixtusof feveral Things,
Siv W, Williains. Pray repeat it, as well as you
can remember ; what Difcourle happened ¢ -
apt.
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Capt. Billsp. Truly, my Lord Pireffor being cold,
and the Hamper ffanding by, fays he, Caplai
Billop, we bave wat eatenr, we will eaty if you will
And there was a piece of Beef at the Top of the
Hamper, and Bottles of Wine; and I opened
the Hamper, fuing faireft for it, and handed
out the Beef, the Bread, and the Bortles 5 and
after we had eaten what we would, my Lord
ordered the relt to be given to the Mea that
were the Boat’s Crew, and after we had done
this, and taken out a Bottle or two, and f{hut up
the Hamper again, my Lord Preflen drank to me
once or twice, and feemed very well fatished and
pleas’d with his Ulage, He told me, he was
ienfible of my Civilities; and if ever it Jay in his
- Power, he would not foreet me. So we drank
again, and talk’d again; but before we came to
she Ship, my Lord Preflon tola me, that 1f gver
it lay 15 his Power, he would be fure to make an
Acknowledgment of the Civility T had fhew’a him,
And, 1o the bett of my Memory, he had this Ex-
preffion, If there cver wwas any thing be could ferce
e in, Pocoontd do itecith all bis Lecit,y if Twornid
it f]:‘f:f‘?fc; 5'):‘ e ,P{?t"?':’ff.

Mr. Ser|. Trcipien.  What would My, i
have had you doac? What did he fay to you ?

Captain Bilea, Br. e id, 1t would
do me no geod to imure fo many Gentlemen s
and defired me dhas I would rhrow the Pacquet
over-board.

MMy SEI‘:'}. Troinsiil,
many Gentlemen ?

Captain Billap. My Lord, I cannot tell, but
that was hi: Expreflion.

Mr. Serj. Treiain,  Wio defired you to throw
the Pacquet over-board ?

Captain Billip.  Mr. Abton did feveral times,

Mr. Serj, Tremain.  What did he fay to you ?
What Arguments did he ufe ? |

Capt. Billhp. Ny Lord, it was {o many times
over, and 10 much mixwie of Difcourte we had,
that L amt no: able o i the Particulars.

L.C. % Heo Boowhat Argoments did he ufe ?

Captin Biirp, 1 don’tknow that he uled any
more creat Argumints, more than what I have
told you :‘;fl‘t::‘:[i}"_ N

L.C. % Ikf. Say that again that you fad
tofore.

What did he mean by fo

Captain Disp,  He fad, ‘twould do me no
cood 1o 10 {0 many Gentlemen,  Prithee,
Ceprar Billop, fays he, ibisw it 6ver-Loaid.

Mr, Sert, Trgiea:, What did he fay farther ?

Cupmh{ Bilfgp.  Plltell vou, it vou’ll aive Imie
feave, My, Ao did fivy a e afeer s,
with a great deal of Infinuation, Capiain Thillop,
[£70at if vou fhonld tniin aburt, aisd go aloig with us?
No, Mr. Atheon, fud I, 14a 1 cannior do. - Says
Mr. fffior, Prithee, throw the Pacguet over-doaid,
T'his they did as we came up the River; and ’os
the mott that T can remember, *all we came o
Board the Gezige s and when we came on Board
the George, Effior called me into the Steerage,
and defired me, of all Love, that [ would difpole
of the Pacquer: And he faid, that now I had an
Opportanity to make mylelt as Rich, and as
Great as I would, and nobody could fee ir, if I
did throw it away. While T was in the Ship,
Mr. Afbten, my Lord, and Mr. Elliet, were with
me in the Steevage. Said I, [hall be teiea iotic:
of, to be whifperingy pray forbear.  Affon then
fvake to me again, to defire e to throw the
Pacquet over-board 5 by this time the Victuals was

I"I‘l L
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handed 0, and there we eat and drank, and my
Lord finoaked a Pipe of Tobacco before the
Tide wwned ;5 and when the Tide made, we
went nto the Boat again, and rowed up towards
Londoir, and they were ufing thefe Sorts of Argu-
ments over and over again, And once Mr. E-
lot, 1 think ’twas, to the belt of my remems-
brance, told me, New vou bave it in your Power
10 wake yorr Isiiune, and may be as great a Ma,
aind as vich a Mait as you con defire.  And Mr.
Afpton fund fome Words fomething to the fame
Purpole; Prithee, fad he, threw it over-loard.;
I7bat good will it do ya? So 1 refufing it, as
I did many womes, Mr. Lot told me, that I
might take the Letters that were taken in my
Lord Picflos’s Pocker, and te the Lead to them,
and throw the Pacquet over-board.  No, faid ],
Mir, Elfio:, Sure you <wwonld take the King’s Cotsneil
to ke o very odd Sort of Men, that they connot find
ont fuch a thing as this.  Pritbee, dear Billop,
faid he, threw 7t cver-board 5 many umes whil
pering me n the Ear; and fo did Mr. A
many times, laying, Zou may dp s @ great Kind-
wefi i it. And we draplk, and had {everal In-
termiilions s and they at me agam, and I denied
thems, and they defifted 5 and then they ot it
acaln: And M, Elfef then wold me, Prithe,
cear Billop, thiew iz ever-beard. Said 1, Af, El-
lior, I I flenll be fo sreal a Viliein to do fuch ¢
thing, if cver it was your Day would you troft e
agoin ? Fut it to be your 0wz Cafe. Says he, 254
bave Genlewza to deal wwizhal. Buat, faid 1, T
will wever put it wte yorr Pewer. My, Efliot
feemed to be angry at this, and faid, Evey Dog
bad bis Day.  Said 1, I bope newer to fee if vour
Day : But Ipray, forbear this Difeourfe 5 et we beg
that of yous for 1 do nal defive 1o be provoked to uje
you otherisife thain as Gertlanen.  And after that,
they never urged me more to throw the Pacquet
over-board: But Mr, £liot was angry, and very
much difturbed, and withed a2 Thunderbolt might
firike the Boat and fink it.  So T brought them
un, through Lsidon-Bridze, and they faid no
more about the Pacquer 5 but Elfof wifked, that
Lsuisa-Bridge mighe have fallen on our Heads.
At length I brought them to 77itchall 5 and 1
put my Man afhore at Hengerferd Stairs, that he
might get before, and give the Porter notice at
Whitehall-Diiage, that he might open the Gate.
I brought my Lord Prefion, and the reft to the
Bridge 3 and while I was arming my Men, to
guard them up to my Lord Nottingban’s Office,
I fuppofe they then took the Opportunity to
cive the Men Money, getting near to thems; 1
know nothng of that: But I carried them up o
my Lord Nettiughain’s, and there I delivered them,
and the Pacguer to my Lord.  After fome time,
the Pacquet lay upon the Table, and my Lord
Nottiyghaint lends me for my Lord Preflon. When
my Lord Pigfonr came in, T withdrew without
bidding, and the Pacquet lay upon the Tuble
unopen’d : And when my Lord Preflor; came out,
I went m on myfelf, and the Pacquet lay in the
famic Piace and Pofture, and not opencd.  And

[ fay’d whie Mr. At was called in,. and
my Lord Nottinghamr asked him a grear many
Queflions,
Mr. dfbton.  Pray repear thofe Queitions,
Captain Billop; and what Aniwers I made.
Captain Biflap.  Truly, my Memory does not .
fsrve me to remember all of them, and 1 was in

r very uneafy Condition at that time, and would
much
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much rather. have been in my Bed, than any
where elfe : Jor the Night before I went down,
I had a Plaifter of Spanifd Flies put to my Back,
and they had raifed” a great Bli&er, and 1t had
not been dreffed fo long, that the Napkin that
was applied fuck fo to 1t, that the Flefh was
jagged, and I was in 2 great deal of Pain, fo
that I did nogt mind {6 much as I fhould have
done at another time, what was faid.

Mr. Afpton. But pray, Captain, remember as
much as you can what pafs'd,

Captain Billsp. But Ill tell you what T re-
member 3 I remember my Lord Nottinghaii ask’d,
who I took the Packet from? And you owned,
I took it from you.

Sir Will. Williams. Pray, Mr. dfbton, give us
léave to have done with him, and then you fhall
ask him what you pleafe. Pray go on, Captain
Billop.

Captain Billop. Then my Lord Nottinghois
fent for Mr. Effiot in, and ask’d him whither he
was going ? And he faid for Flanders. My Lord
asked him, what he was going there for? He
faid, He was going to feek his Bread s he was
turned out of all at Home, and he had rather go
Abroad to feek his Bread, than ftay at Home to
{tarve.

Mr. Serj, Tremain. Was this the Lead that
you took fixed to the Packet?

Captain Billpp. Yes, Sir; that is the Lead.

« Mr. Serj. Trcmain. Did you take that Lead,
with the Pacquet, out of Mr. Afbton’s Bofom ?
" Captain Billp. This was tied faft to the Pac-
quet that was taken out of Mr. Ahten’s Bofom,
Thefe honeft Men faw me take it.

Sir 77ill. Williams, Now, if you have a Mind
to ask him dny Queftions, you may.

Mr., Afbton. Pray, Captam Bilsp, did not
you fearch e before you took the Pacquet upon
me ?

Captdin Billsp, No, not that I remember.

Mr. Afbtonr. Had not you taken fome other
Papers from me before ?

Captain Billsp. No, Sir; I took none from
you but the Pacquet.

Mr. Apion. Pray recollelt yourfelf, for, per-
haps, my Life may turn uvpon 1t: You are as
much a Wimefs for me, as for the King; you
are to fear the Tiuth, and the whole Truth,

- Captain Billpp.  And I will do you all the
Juftice T can, I will affure you.

L. C. ¥ Holt.  Anfwer his Queftion, Captain
Billop. - |

Mr, Abton. Was not 1 the firft Man that
fpoke to you after we came up?

Captain Billgp. No, Mr. Elliet was the firlt
Man that fpoke to me, that I knew.

" Mr, Afbton. Did not 1 ask you to give me
leave to go down for my Hat?

Captain Billsp. Truly, I don’t remember that.

Mr. Afbton, Did not you reply, That the
Man fhould go down and fetch my Hat?

Captain Billp, °*Tis likely 1 might, but I
don’t remember it.

Mr. Abton. Had not you featched me then,
and taken my Papers from me?

Captain Billsp. No, Mr. Abten; for, uporn
the Oath that I have taken, I took no Papers that
I remember, but the Papers that I took out of my
Lord Prefon’s Pocket, and the Pacquet that T took
out of your Bofom; for my Lord Nottinghan
ask’d me, if that Pacquet was all the Letcers I

- for Higﬁ-Tréafon;
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took T told him no; and fhewed him the Pa-
pers took out of my Lord Preflei’s Pocket, and
they proved to be of no Confequence, and my
Lord Nottingham gave them me again, and I car-
ried them to my Lord Preffon.

Mr. Abron.  Did I not go down into the Hole
for my Har?

Captain Billsp. 1 believe you might.,

Mr. Afbioin. And was it not afeer that, that
you took the Papers out of my Breaft?

Captain Billbp.  Yes, 1 believe it was.

Mr. Abtsn. Where is your Man that called to
you, and faid, I put fomething in my Breaft 2

Captain Billsp, Here he s, by me, if you
would ask him any thing.

Mr. Afbton. You fay, 1 fpoke to you about
difpofing of thefe Papers: Pray, from the Time
that we came into your Boat, before we came on
Boar;i the George Man of War, did I fpeak to
you

Captain Billop.  Yes, of the Pacquet you did :
You faid, What Good wworld it do ane to injure fo
many Gentleinen 2

Mr., Afbtan.  There paf’d no more than ge-
neral Difcourfe before we came on Board.

Captain Biflop. Yes, Mr, Ahron, TNl tell you
another Thing you put me in mind of, When
you faw thar, though you were fo eager with
me, nothing would prevail, you faid, [ kiow
Capiain Billop, and have kiwwon bim wwany Years s
and wothing will prevail on bim, if be bave no mind
to it: Aud I know, if he will ferve usy be will
Jeree s generoufly, and like a Gentleman.

Sir 7, Williains.  Speak that again.

Captain Billsp, He faid, I know Cept. Billops
if ke will forve us, ke will do it gencroufly, and
like a Gentleinen,

L. C. % Helt. Who faid fo?

Caprain Bifhp,  Mr. Abton.

Mr. Aftor. Did I fpeak to you to difpofe
of the Papers after we came from on Board the
Ship ? I fuppofe you remember it was cold, and
the Tilt was call’d for, to be laid over us, and
I fell afleep; and you know I never wak’d, nor
fpoke, till I came to Loudoi-Bridge. |

Captain Billbp. Yes, yes; e had the Tiit
over us.

L.C. 7. Holt, Pray fpeak your Queflions out,
that we may hear ’em, Mr. Afbton,

Captain Billpp. Mr. Ao did go to Sleep a
while, but he had many times urg’d me, and
fpoke to me to throw the Papers over-board.

L.C. ¥ Hplt. Who wasit that told you, Every
Dog had his Day ?

Captain Billop. That was Lfliot.

Siv V. Williams. Was there any Diicourle
about turning of the Tide?

Captain Billsp. Mr. Elliot faid, 2on have now
an Opportunity lo wmake your ewon Forluig, aid Yois
oy be as Great, and as Rich as yor plafes for
ts impoffible the Tide can run long this way.

Mr. Sery. Tremain.  Did Mr. Afbtoir fay any
thing about going along with them ?

Captain Billp. Yes: You may remember,
Mr. Apton, that you faid, Come, go aloig with us,
jon may do as well there, or better than you do bhere,

- M. Setj. Tremain,  Did he tell you where you
were to go with em ? | |

Captain Billp, No, Sir; nor 1 did not ask
him the Queflion. |

Mr. Afbtan, Pray, When did
Lord Nottingham thefe Papers g

you gwe my

Capt,
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Captain Billsp. Do you mean that Bundle that
{ took out of your Bofom ? )

Mr. Abton. Yes.

Captain Billsp. As foon as ever I followed my
Lord Nottingham into his Room, 1 pull’d “em out,

and gave ’em him.

.. Mr. Afbton, Did not you go out of my Lord
Nottingha’s Room, and give my Lord Notting-
bam fome loofe Papers ?

Captain Billsp. Yes.

Mr. Afton. After this, was not my Lord Pre-
fton called in to be examined ?

Captain Billsp. Yes.

Mr, Apton. How long was my Lord Pre-
fon 1n the Room while you were out ?

Captain Brlop. I can’ttell very well.

Mr, Afbton. Pray, Sir, anfwer that Queftion.

Captain Billsp. 1 believe it nught be half a quar-
ter of an Hour: I do not think it was much
1ore,

Mr. Afbton, 1 believe you muft remember fome
jort of Difcourfe that was betwixt you and Cap-
tain Ji/of, even to a Quarrel almoft, And did
you not fpeak to my Lord Nettingha’s Servants,
to fetch your Hat out of my Lord Nottinghain’s
Room ? -

Cuptain Billsp, Yes, I do remember that,

Mr. Abton. This muft be a good confiderable
Time: It was all the Time that my Lord Preffor
was within with my Lord Nottingbain, that you
were out.

. Captain Billsp. Yes, it was,

Mr. Abton, And all that while was not the
Bundle of Papers out of your Sight ?

Captain Billop. It lay upon the Table,

Mr. Afbton. Pray, anfwer my Queftion: Was
1t not out of your Sight ?

Captain Billop, Yes, 1t was,

L.C. 7 Holt. Yes, yes; it muft be, for he
was out of the Room,

Mr, Serj. Tremain, When you came into the
Room, did you find the Papers in the fame Conp-
ditton ?

Captain Bilfop. Yes, they were un-opened, ex-
cept that my Lord had taken off the Lead, and
a httle Paper fell loofe from the reft.

Mr. Afbion. Pray, take Notice of that, Gen-
tlemen.

L.C. 7. Hslt. But pray don’t infer more from
thence than it will bear,

Mr. Afbton. 1t feems fome of the Papers were
taken ou.

L. C. ¥. Holt. He does not fay any fuch thing,
that fome of the Papers were taken out.

Mr. Afbton. He fays, fomething was cut, and
fome Papers fell out.

Captain Billop. There was a lietle Paper or two
tied to the great Pacquet. |

L. C. 7. Holt. What became of them ?

Captain Bifflop. They were cut loofe, but not
opened.

Mr. Afton, How can you tell they were not

opened,
Captain Billsp. Becaufe I flood by when they

were cut.

Mr. Afton, But how can you tell that ; for
you fee the litle Papers taken, and they were
loofe from the others.

Captain Billsp. They were taken from the great
Bundle before T went out,

Mr. Abton, Had not my Lord opened thofe

Papers before you came in,
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Captain Billsp. No.

Mr. Afbton. How can you tell that?

Captain Biflsp, 1 tell you, as near as I cap
judge, they lay in the fame Pofture that I lefe
them in,

Mr, A4fbtor, Was the Pacquet fealed when you

‘took 1t?

Captain Bilisp. Noj; but it was tied. There
were feveral Letters 1n it that were fealed 5 it wag
tied up very hard.

Mr. Afbton. 1 do not queftion but my Lord
Nottingbam will do me the Juftice to fay how long
he was in the Room,

L. C. ¥. Holt. You muft not comment, nor make
your Obfervations till your proper Time,

FJuryman. Pray, my Lord, [ defire he may be
asked, who was with my Lord Nottingham when
my Lord Preffon was there ?

Captain Bilfsp. There was nobody elfe then.

Suryman, Then *us not probable they were al-
tered before Captain Billgp came 1n, |

Mz, Afbton. Butl hope Probabilities fhall not be
Evidence to condemn any Man,

Jiryinan, Thofe two little Papers you fpeak of,
were they fevered from the Pacquer?

Captain Billsp. 1 cannot tell whether they
were or no; they feemed loofe upon untying the
Bundle.

L.C.7. Ik, Were they cut in your Pre-
fence ?

Captain Billsp. Indeed, my Lord, I cannot fay,
that [ did fee them cut.

Mr. Aflton. Pray take Notice of that, Gentle-
men of the Jury.

L. C.¥. Hols. They are Twelve honeft Gentle-
men, they will do you right,

L.C. . Pollexfen. Obierve what the -Witnefs
fayss he fays, That he does not remember that
they were cut in his Prefence, but he does not
fay they were not, |

Mr. Afbton. If he does not {wear they were, it
15 reafonable to conclude they were not cut in his
Prefence,

L. C. 7. Eblt. He fays, the great Pacquet was
not opened, the two lietle Papers were loofe from
the reft of the great Bundle. ~

Captain Biflsp, There might be two or three
of them, lefs or more, J cannot tell, i

Mr. Serj. Thompfon, You will be farther fans
fied 1n this Mateer upon my Lord Nottinghais
Evidence, 1 fuppofe.

Mr. Serj. Tremain, We have done with Capt,
Billop for the prefent, Pray call Fobnfon.

(Hho was fwoin.)

Sir /7. Williams. Were you at the taking of
that Gentleman, and the other in the Smack ?

Jobnfon, Yes, 1 was.

Sir W, IWilliams. Then pray give an Account

of the Matter how 1t was.

Fobifon. We went down in a Pleafure Boat,
and went to the ‘Tower, we fet through Bridge
agam{t Tide, my Lotd of Danfy was with uss
and when we came to Tower #harf, there they
went to the Toewer for Arms, and we ftayed il
Ebbing Water, and rowed to Gravefind; and
when we came to Gravefend, we went on Board
feveral Ships, and I thought we were going =
Prefling 3 and we ftayed at Gravefend the Time of
the Writing of a Letter, and then we went both
into the Boat again, and rowed after a Smack
that had gained of us, but that not being the

Smack, we turned back again, and then it was
2 High
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end of the Hope we faw feveral Smacks coming,
and there was a Fifherman on board that faid,
That was the Smack the Captain enquired after,
that was coming down there; and when they
came on board, the Caprain faid, there were two
ar three brave Men, and he hoped he could fpare
one of them: and the Mafter faid, he hoped he
would take none of them, becaufe they had a
Protettion, which he fheweéd to the Captam,
Then the Captain went in and bid me take fome
finall Arms, and go on board with him, and told
the Mafter he muft ook a Iittle further ; and the
Boards were taken up, and I faw a great Piece
of Roaft-Beef, and under that, my Lord Preffor,
and Mr, Elliot, and this Gentleman, Mr, 4fbton :
My Lord Preflon came up firlt, and Mr. Elliof
next to hims and I fee this Gentleman take up
fomething and put it into his Bofom, and I told
the Captain of it,Aand he asked him what it was,
and he faid, Nothing but his Handkerchief, and
plucked out the Handkerchief ; but the Captain
put his Hand into his Bofom, and pulled out fome-
thing elfe.

L.C. ¥ Hol.
 Yobufon. It was a Parcel of Papers tied up,

with a Piece of Lead tied to it, for I came up

clote after him, and fee him take it up.

Sit 77, Filliams,  What clfe were there found
with the Papers? was not there fome Seals ?

Yobufon. That was afterwards; but when the
Captain asked“him what he had gotten in his
Boforn, he pulled out his Handkerchief, and
faid, Nothing but his Handkerchief 5 but the Cap-
tain took the other Papers out of his Bofom, and
fo I went down, and there were the two Seals,
and I took them ups and when I came up, Ellio?
had a pair of black Whiskets on, and he borrow-
ed a Pair of Sciffars and cut them off, and faid, he
thould remember me again if ever he lived, he
fhould know me by my Tooth being out. And
coming up into Loug-reach, Elfiot was a cold, and
got to the Oarand Rowed, and faid, You row as
if you were rowing to Prifon; and he withed
that a Thunder-bolt might drop mto the Boat,
and that London-Bridge might drop down upon his
Head. And when we came up to Whitehall I
ftood a Guard over them.

Furyman, Did you fee Captain Billop take the
Packet of Letters from that Gentleman’s Breafte

Fobnfoir.  Yes, Idid.

Furyman. Did you belong to Captain Billop ?

Fobnfon. Yes, I was one of the Boat’s Crew.

Mr, Afton. Had not I been up and fearched
before ?

Fobufon. Yes, I think you had been up before.

Mr. Abton.  And then you faw me take up the
Pacquet off from the Ballaft ?

Yobufon. Yes, I faw you take it out of the
Ballaft and put it into your Bofom.

M, Apton. Gentlemen, [ hope you will be
pleafed to take notice of that.

L.C.%¥. Holt. No doubtofit they will.
Mrc. Afton. Did not that Bundle of Papers

that was taken out of my Breaft, did not they
lie near to the Place where the Seals lay ?
Fobnfon. Yes, it lay juft by them. '
M. Serj, Thompfon. Pray fet up Captain Brllop
again (which wwas done.)
When you brought thefe Papers to #hitehall,
Captain Billsp, who did you deliver themto?
Captain Billop. Tomy Lord Nottingham,
Vou. 1IV.

What was 1t ?

for High-Tfeé'foﬁ.:-
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Mr. Serj. Thompfon. Afier he received them,
what did he with them?

Captain Billsp. After he had examined all
thefe Gentlemen, he went to opening of the
Papers, and he defired me to ftay in the Room
till they were opened, which I did 5 and my
Lord looking on fome of the Papers faid, If this
Pacquet had gone, we had quickly been vifited by
the French. With that I took them up, and look’d
into them. My Lord faid, I might ook into as

~many Papers as | pleafed 5 but 1 was very uneafy,

and full of Patn, and had more mind to be gone,

and be a Bed, than looking into Papers; but
feveral of the Papers [ did look into, and feveral
I put my Mark upon; and the next Day at the
Council, what of them [ did know, Idid put my
Mark upon.

M. Serj. Thompfon. After my Lord Nottinghan
had perufed them, what did he do with them ?

Captain Billsp. My Lord put them upin a
Cover, and tied them with a Piece of Twine,
and put his Seal upon them, and gave them me,
and defired me to carry them to my Lord Pre-
fident 5 which I immediately did, and, without
ftopping, carried them to my Lord Prefident.

Mr. Afbtor, When was this, Sir? Was 1c that
very Night chat we were brought to #hitehall ?

Captain Billsp.  Yes.

Mr. Serj, Tremain,  Then we muft defire my
Lord Nattinghain to be Iworn,

The Earl of Notungham Seworn,

Mr. Serj. Thompfen, Will your Lordfhip pleafe
to give the Court an Account how thefe Papers
came to your Lordfhip, and how your Lordfhip
difpofed of them,

Earl of Nottingbam. Captain Billep came to
my Office ==

Mr. Afbton. 1 humbly defire your Lordfhip
would pleafe to fpeak louder ; for 1 cannot hear
your Lordfhip, and I fear the Jury cannot.

Earl of Nottingbam. I fpeak as loud as ever 1
can, but I have a great Cold.

L.C. . Helt. You may hear my Lord very
well, if the Court be but filent.

E. Notiingham. Captain Billop brought to me
a Pacquet tied about with a Packrhread, to which
there was 2 Piece of a Leaden Pipe fixed, in
which Pacquet there was ftuck in another Paper;
I think there was but that one befides the Cover,
but what it was particularly I do not remermnber:
this Pacquet was laid upon the Table while he
was by; and I called in my Lord Piefton, not
being willing to make him ftay, and after had
fome Difcourfe with my Lord, to examine him
what Account he could give of thefe Proceed-
ings; then I called in yourfelf, Mr. Abton, and
Captain Billsp was by alfo, but the Pacquet fo
fed with the Packthread, I cut open in Billgp’s
Prefence with a Pair of Sciffars; the fame Pa-
pers that were in that Pacquet, together with
the little Paper that was ftuck in, I tiedup; 1
am fure 1 fealed them in a Sheet of Paper, and
eave them back again to Captain Billsp to carry
them to my Lord Prefident.

Si¢ 7. Williaws, Captain Billsp, you have alrea-
dy declared, that all you received from my Lord
Nottingham, you carried to my Lord Prefident.

Captain Billop. All the Papers that 1 received
from my Lord Nottingharir, juftas I recmv_ed them,
fealed with my Lord’s Seal, I went @re&ly tc
my Lord Prefident’s, and gave the_m him,

Ooo S W, Williams,
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Sir W. Williams, Pray, my Lord, did your
Lordfhip deliver to Captain Biflsp all the Papers
that you recewved from him ?

~ Earlof Nottingham. My Lord, all the Papers
that Captain Billsp brought to me, that were n
the Pacquet (for he brought fome Letters that
he took out of my Lord Preflo’s Pocket, that
were of no Confequence) but all the Papers that
were 1n the Pacquet, I delivered back to Captamn
Billop, fealed as 1 received from him, and no more,
and no others; for the other Letters, they being

from my Lord Preflon’s Children, and not relanng

to the Publick, I gave them to him to give my
Lord Preflon again,

 Mr, Afton. My Lord, 1 humbly befeech your

Lordfhip to tell the Court how long my Lord

Preflon was with your Lordfhip in the Room.

E. Noit. Truly T am not able to tell you par-
ticularly how long it was, T believe it might be

about a quarter of an Hour, or {carce fo much.

Furyiman, Was there no body wich your Lord-

fhip, when Captain Billsp was out, but only my
Lord Prefloi ?

E. Noit. No, not that I know of,

My, Afstoi,

Lord.fhip

you asked me how I came by thofe Papers,

E.Nvtt. As near as T remmember, the Account
that you gave of them was, That you went

down agamn after you were come up, as you faid,

to fetch your Hat; and that when you did go
down into the little Hole to fetch your Hat, you

brought up thefe Papers with you.

Mr, Afbton. My Lord, this was the Account

Now this very well correfponds
with that Man’s Evidence, that fays he faw me

I did give.

take up the Papers and put them into my Breaft,

L. C. 7. Holt. He does fay fo, and this docs

all very well agree,

Mr. Sof. Gen, Now we defire my Lord Pre-

{ident would be pleuicd to be fivorn,
The Lord Prefident fuwora.

M. Sery. Thoinpfenr.  Pray, my Lord, will your
Lordfhip pleafe to declare to the Court what
Papers Capt. Billsp brought to your Lordfhip,
and how your Lordfhip difpofed of them ?

L. Prefdent.  Caprain Billp did bring me a
Pacquet tied with a Packthread, and that was
fealed with my Lord Nottinghau’s Seal, T knew
1t to be his Seal 5 and he told me, that my Lord
Nottingbam commanded him to bring the Iacquet
to me, I opened the Pacquet, and perufed all
the Papers; it was very late, and I locked them
up till Morning, and I then carried thofe very
Papers 1o the King, and in the King’s Clofer,
at Kenfiugton, the King read fome of them, and
in my Sight, for I never parted from the King,
but was by all the while: The King put up all
the Papers agamn, and cemmanded me to call a
Cabinet Council, and to let them be delivered
there to the Council ; accordingly I did deliver
them Paper by Paper, and they were all marked
there by my Lord Sydiey, who is here prefent;
and they were then delivered into the Hands of
my Lord Syduey.

L. C. 7. Pollexfen. 'Will you pleafe to ask my
Lord any Queftions, Mr., Afbion?

Mr. Afbton. My Lord, if your Lordfhip will
be pleafed to pardon me, I would ask your Lord-
fhip, Did any of your Lordfhip’s Servants, or
Family read any of thefe Letters ?
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L. Prefident. No, not one.

Mr. Afbton. Were they locked up where any
of your Lordfhip’s Secretaries, or Servants could
come to themn ¢ _,

L. Prefigent.  No, Ilock’d themup in 2 {trong
Boxin my Clofet. r

Mr. Afbton. My Lord, I only defire this Fy.
vour further of your Lordfhip: Your Lordthip,
at the Committee of the Council was pleafed to
ask me, how I came by thofe Papers; I prefume
you may remember, and I pray your Lordfhip
to declare, what Anfwer I gave,

L. Prefident, ‘Troly, Mr. dfbton, to tell you
Trath, I do ot remember the Particularss T re.
member you denied every Thing 5 I can only fay
that, tn the general 5 but what you faid in particy-
lar I Caiinet remember,

L.C.7. Tdlexir. Do youput my Lord inmind
if you ¢y fee v cher he does remember it.

Mr diier. My Lord, I only defire to ask my
Lord Prefident, whetier I did not tell him
went down, after I had been {fearch’d, into the
Hold, and there I fee the Papers lie, and brought
them up, and put them into mv Breaft s they
were no fooner in my Hands but Cape, Bilop had
them in his; for the Man called and faid, This
Gentlernan has fomething  in his Breaft, and
the Captain put i his Hand and pulled it out,

L. Pregfident.  Truly, Mr. Afbton, 1 do not re-
member the Words that you ufed, but remember
you faid fomething to which I made anfwer,
What makes 1t matter, They were found upon
you, and taken out of your Bofom, do you look
to 1t how you came by them. I do not remember
what you faid, for I cannot remember particular
Words, but 1 believe you might fay fome fuch
thing.

Mr, §ol. Gen.  Then, pray, my Lord Syduey,
will you be pleafed to be fworn.

The Lsrd Sydney foorn,

Mr. Sof. Gen, Wil your Lordfhip be pleafed
to declare what Papers you received from my
Lord Prelidene?

L. Sydney. At the Cabinet Council my Lord
Prefident delivered a Pacquet of Papers, I recei-
ved them every one there, and mark’d them, and
put them Into my Pocker,

Mr. Sery. Tremain, Did your Lordfhip deliver
them to any Perfon afterwards ?

L. Syduey, The next Day, or the Day after,
I gave them to Mr. Bridzinan 1o copy out, and
he delivered them back to me again.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Pray, my Lord, give me leave
to ask this Queftion———

Mr. Ser). Thompfonn. Your Lordfhip had mark*l
them before you delivered them to Mr, Bridewais
to copy ¢

L. §ydiny. Yes, 1 mark’d them at the Council
Table, at my Lord Nottinghain’s Office.

Mr. Sol, Gen, Miy Lord, thofe Papers that you
mark’d, were the {ame Papers that my Lord Pre-
(ident brought, and dclivered in at the Council 2

L. Sydney.  Yes, the very fame.

Juryimain, My Lord, fhall we have Leave to
ask my Lord Sydiey a Queftion ?

L. C. F. Holt, Ay what i it ?

Juryman, Pray, my Lord, did the Pacquet come
to you fealed ? That which was taken fiom this
Gentleman, was it fealed when it cairc 1o you?

Mr. Sol. Gen, No, it had been opened by my
Lord Nottingham, and my Lord Prefident,

L. C, . Holl.
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L.C. . Hols. Sir, you are under a Mifappre-
henfion of the Matter, My Lord Nottingbam, af-
ter he had opened them, fealed them up again,
and delivered them to Captain Billsp ; Capt. Billsp
carried them fealed to my Lord Prefident; my
Lord Prefident opens them, and lays them up;
they were never out of his Poflellion ; he carries
them to the King ; the King read fome of them
in his Lordthip’s Prefence; he delivers them at
the Cabinet Council to my Lord Sidiey; and my
Tord Siduey twears he read them there, marked
them, and when he had done, put them in his
Pociket.

Mr. Sol, Ger, My Lord Siduey, will your Lord-
thip be pleafed to look upon thefe Papers, and
fee if thele be Part of them.

L. Sydney. 1 know them very well, T have read
them ten Times, I marked them at the Council,

and that is my Mark.

Me. Sof, Gen. Pray, my Lord, are thofe two
Papers that you have in your Hand, Two of thofe
Papers that my Lord Prefident delivered at the
Cabiner ?

L. Sydney. Ycs, that they are.

Mr, Sol. Gen. My Lord Prefident, will you
pleafe to look upon them.

(TWhich bis Lordfbip did.)

L. Prefident, Thele are two of the fime Papers
that Captain Biflsp brouzht me.

Mr. So/. Gen. Now we fhall defire to have them
read ; bur give me leave to oblerve to you, That
one of them isa Copy of the other; only in the
one fome Words are written fhort, that are writ
ten out at length in the other.

Furyiair, Pray, my Lord, I defire to afk, are
they of the fame Hand ?

Mr. Sol. Gen. No, theyareof different Hands.

Mr. Sery, Thompfon. Pray, Gentlemen of che
Jury, take Notice, and obierve thefe Papers, for
there 1s a great deal of Matter of great Moment
in thent; for you cannot expect the King’s Coun-
cil fhould repeat every thing that 1s in fo many
Papers as we fhail read 5 1t 15 impofhible we {hould
take Notice of all.

L. C. . Holt. Or Ieither, therefore pray, Gen-
tlemen, obferve what 15 read, for I fhall be able
only juft to flate the Evidence to you.

Mr. Abton. My Lord, T hear them fay, one of

thofe Papers 1s a Copy of the other; I defire, the
Original may be read, and not the Copy.

Mr. Serj, Thounpfon. Who knows which is the
Original ?

L.C.¥. Holt, 1.ook you, Mr. Afbten, we don’c
know which is the Original, or which 1s the Co-
py, they are both found together, they contain
the fame Matter, and the fame Words: It may
be you can tell which is the Origtnal.

M, Serj. Thompfor. You may look upon them
your felf, and tell us which is the Original, if you
pleafe. .

Mr. Afbten, That 15 very well obferved, Sir.
That 15 throwing Water upon a dead Moute.
Then I defire both of them may be read.

Mr. Sol Gen, Indeed, Mr. Afton, I think there

Is a particular Reafon why you fhould not defire
to have the Copy read, becaufe leaft it fhould

L

prove to be your own Hand-writing,
Mr, Afhton. Pray, let both be read.

Cl, of Peacereads. The Relult of 2 Confe-

TENCE v

Mz, Serj. Trenmin. Pray attend, for this is the

Scheme of the whole Work.
VoL, IV,

Jfor High-Treafon.

471k

Cl. of Peace reads. The Refult of a Confe-
rence, Coc.

And the ather was likewife vead as before,

L.C. J. Pollesfen. Pray let Mr. Afron foe that
Paper.

The Paper was haided to My, Afhton,
of the Papers before read,

L. C. . Pollexfen, M, Abion, look upon that
fame Paper a little, fatisfy your own Mind a little
whofe Hand that Paper is in. Look upon it wel}
I 'would have you be fatisfied abou it. Look p&ri
ticularly upon the lateer Part of it

Mr. Afbion. My Lord, I have looked upon 1t
have feen it all. :

L. C. J. Pollexfen. Come then, aive it me back
agam, and think of it a little in your own
Heart,

Mr. Sol. Gea, My Lord Syduey, pray, will your
Lordthip look upon this Paper,

L. §ydiey. This is one of the Papers that was,
among the reft, delivered by my Lord Prefident ;
at the Cabiner,

Mr, Sol. Geir. Pray fhew it my Lord Prefident s
What fays your Lordfhip to ir?

L. Prefident. This was one of the Papers I gave
my Lord Syduev, and was brought to me in the
Pacquet by Caprain Billp.

CL. of Peace yeads, That the King would return
with a Defign of making an entire Conqueft of
his People

Mr. Serj. Thompfon, Pray, my Lord, give me
leave, before it be read, to acquaint the Jury
what this 15, that they may make the better Ob-
lervattons upon it.  This, Gentlemen, is the
Heads of a Declaraton that was intended to be
publifhed when the Freuch came; and you will
lee what it s when itis read.  Pray obfurve i,

Cl. of Peacereads, That the King will return,
e, As before. *

Mr. Serj. Tremain. The next Paper Is an Ac-
count which they had waken with them of the
Force of the Kingdom, of the Ships, particularly
how many in Number, what Rates, what were
in Repair, what out of Repair, and what a Build-
ing. Pray [hew 1t my Lord Sydiey.

L. Sydney. This 1s another of the Papers that
I received from my Lord Prefident, and marked
at the Cabinet.

Mr. Serj. Thompfon. Then fhew 1t my Lord
Prefident.

L. Prefident. This 1s one of the Papers that
were in the Pacquet that Captain B:llpp brought
me. Clerke of the Peace reads.

Mr. 8o, Gen. Pray, my Lord Sydicy, look up-
on thele Papers, and tell wheve your Lordfhip
had them,

The Papers were fhewon both to the Lord Prefident and
the Lord Sydney.

L. C. ¥ Holt. My Lord Prefident fays he re-
ceived them from Captain Billgp, and gave them
to my Lord Sydneys and my Lord Syduey fays,
they are the fame he received from my Lord Pre-

fident.
Yuryan, Are thofe the Papers that have been

read, my Lord ? .*

Mr. 7. Eyres. No, but they both fay the fame,
as to thofe that have been read.

Furyman. Then pray, my Lord, what are thofe
Papers that are gaing to be read ?

Mr. Serj. Tremain. Thele are two Letters,
Gentlemen, that are written, giving an Account
how the Affairs in Eugland ftood with reference

Qoo 2 to

being one
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to the Perfons Concerns that they are written to s
and there 1s a particular Pafflage in one of them,
How their young Mafter prevailed in his Intereft,
and got Ground of his Adverfaries. If you ob-
ferve them, you will ecafily underftand what s
meant by them.

Clerk of the Peace veads. This is direCed for
Mr. Redding, New-year’s Eve, Though the Bea-
ver of this, {Jc. As before.

Clerk of the Peace veads. 'This is direfted for
Mrs. Redding.  As it is impoffible for me to
exprefs, &, | A bifore.

Mr.So!. Gen. Now we defire myLord Sydizey, and
myLord Prelident would look upon thefe Papers,

Furyman, My Lord, 1 delire the former Part
of that Jaft Letter may be read again.

Which <cas done,

L. Sydwey. Thefe 1 had from my LordPrefident.

L. Prefelent., And 1 had them out of the Pac-
quet that Capt. Billsp brouglic me.

Mr. Serj. Tremain. If your Lordhip pleafe, 1
will open them to the Jury,  Here are two Let-
ters, in one of them there is an Account given,
that they were hearuly forry they were difap-
pointed, and that they had not bzen here alrea-
dy, but hoped they would be here as falt as they
can; that the Match was concluded, the Scttle-
ment prepared, and no doubi but the Daughter’s
Portion would be well feeured, if they would come
quickly.

Clerk of the Pecee reads. Dec. 31, 1690, *Tis
directed for Mrs, Charlten. T muft not let this
Bearer depart, Madam, &, As before.

M. Seif. Treimain, That Letter tells you that
the Daughter’s Portion would be well fecured ;
this that we now produce will tell you, how it
fhall be raifed. It fays, the old Tenants are
weary of their Mafter, and a little Marter, if he
would but appear in #eflminflei-Hall, would re-
decin the Eftate 5 and the Caule might be brought
to n final Hearing betore the End of Egfier
Term, if they ma. '~ halte, and it were well {ol-
licited.

Clerk of the Peace reads, This 1sdirected for Mr.

Fackfon, Dec, 31, 1690.  The Bearer hiereof will
give you, &I¢. As bifore.

Mr: 8o, Gen. ' We mult defire my Lord Prefi-
dent, and my Lord Sydiey, would be pleafed to
look upon thefe Papers.

L. Prefrdent. 1 received thefe from Capt, Billop
in the Pacquet, and gave it to my Lord Syducy.

L. Sydney. Thefe are fome of the Papers I had
from my Lord Prefident.

Mu, Sery. Tremain. The Letters we now. pro-
duce to be read, feem to be written by a Man that
was involved m a great Trade, that had great
Projeéts in his Head, and drawn many Schemes
in his own Brain how to carry on the Tradey he
directs what Sort of Wares he would have fent,
what was proper for their Markets, that he had
got many a new Cuftomer, and hoped they
fhould not be difobliged 5 that all muft be fent be-
fore the Firlt of March, at leaft before the Tenth,
or the whole Sumimer Profits would be loft

Clerk of the Peace reads. 31 Dic, s

L. C.}. Holt. Read the Superfcription firft,

C!. of the Peace. There is no Superfcription, my
Lord, at all.

L. C. F. Holt. Well, read on,

Clerk of the Peace reads. Dec. 31. The Inter-
ruption of the former Correfpondence had a very

il Effe®t many ways, (e, A before,
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Mr. Serj. Tremars. Gentlemen, doubting that
Letter might not be prefling enough, here is ano.
ther to the fame Effeét.

Clerk of the Peace reads. Dec, 31, It 1s a Pre-
fumptton incident to thofe that are any ways up-
on the Spot, &, As before.

Mr. Serj. Tremain. One would imagine this Let
ter were written by fome Perfon that ufed to talk
Cant, that he s fo ready at it.

Mer. 8ol Gen. Pray, my Lord Prefident, what
fays your Lordfhip to thele Papers:

L. Prefident. Thefe two Letters were i the
Bundle that Captain Billep delivered to me, and [
delivered them to my Lord Syduey.

L. Sydiigy. Thefe are fome of the Papers T had™
from my Lord Prefident, at the Cabinet,

Mr. Serf. Treiein, That firft of thefe Papers
is a Letter wherein the Party gives an Account of
his own Condition here, and how he would ven-
e to bring about what was defired.

Cl. of the Peace veads. 31 Dec, 169o. Was my
Condition more defperate and uneafy than it 1,
. As before.

Mr, Seif. Tremain, This little Paper was inclo-
fed In the other, -
CL of the Peace vends. 1 beg, &, As before,

Mr., Seij. Trewmarn, Now fhew this Paper to my
my Lord Prefident, and my Lord Sydizy.

IVhich wes done,

L.C.%7 Holt., My Lord Prefident, and my
Lord Sydircy fwear the fame for this Paper, as {or
the reft.

Mr. Seij. Treman. This Paper fhews they
were going about a Deed that they did not defire
to have known; ’tis a Key how to explain their
Meaning,

Clevk of the Peace veads. For Mrs, Aune Ruffel,
&c.  As before.

Then thice other Papers were fhewwn to, and fiwerin by
the Lord Prefident, and the Lord Sydney, fo be
Pait of the faine Papers.

Mr. Seiy. Tremain. The Papers that we are go-
mg to read are thefe. Gentlemen, here is a Let-
ter of Recommendation in behalf of one Mr, Op-
biirety which 1s a Name, they pretended of fome
Perfon that was at Paris, or 1o go there, and *tis
written by one Mr. Dzllivere, to his Correfpondent
there ; and he tells him, the Bearer had fome-
thing to difclofe to him, and that he might have
an entire Confidence In him: but the Letter of
Recommendation alone, without a Sum of Mo-
ney, they reckoned would meet with a bad Wei-
come In Fraice, and therefore they-take gcol.
with them, and here are two Bills to pay ir

Thei My, Humphrey Levermere was fivorn to

iterpret theiny being i French, (which he
drd) aid read them as in the former Trial,

Juryinan, Were thefe Bills found in that Pac-
quet ?

Mr. Serj Tremain. -Yes, Yes  they are fivorn to
by both thofe Lords.

Mr, 8ol Gzn. Now, pray, my Lord, will you
pleafe to look upon thefe Papers ?

The Lord Prefideint and Lord Sydney both teftified,

That thofe were Part of the Papers.

Mr. Serj. Thempfonr. This next Paper that we
give 1 Evidence is very fhort, It feems to be =
Table for the Memory of the Perfon that was to
carry 1t? They are fhort Heads for the Memory,
confilting of a great many Particulars; You will -
make your Obfervations upon them, and- what

Judgment you think fit of them,
Mr, Serj. Tremain,
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to read ; you will oblerve thefe Things in them,
which are worth your remarking, Gentlemen ;
becaufe thefe Papers that we now read to you,

are of themfelves fufficient to prove every Article

in the Indi@ment : For thefe Papers give an
Account of the Ships, their Number and Force,
the Forts of the Kingdom, how they are Man-
ned, how they may be Surprized, where the
Erench Fleet Thould Fight, where they fhould
Affault us, how they {hould hinder the Dutch and

Enelifp Fleets from joining, what Number of

Soldiers would be fufficient, and what Number
of Ships in Newcaftle to plague the City of Lan-
o, how to manage this whole ARairs and it
aives Characters of the Clergy of Eigland, and
particularly of the City of Louden, and fays,
they are the worft of Men. ‘

Mr. Serj, Thompfor. No,; Brother, ’us the

worft of all the Clergy.
L. C. ¥. Holt. Come rcad them,

Clirk of the Peace reads,  Lady D, 2000/ &t

As before.

The Fury defired to fee the laft Papers, aid bad

them delivered to theim,

Mr. Sol. Gen,  Then we reft it here, to fee
what the Prifoner will fay o it

L. C. ¥, Holt. Mr. Afbton, the King’s Council
have done their Evidence for the King, what
have you to fay for yourlelf?

Mr. Abtonn. My Lord, I humbly defire to
know of your Lordfhip, whether all the Letters
are read, that were read at the Trral of my Lord
Preflon

L. C. F. Hoit. "What is that material to you,
whether they be or not?

Mr. Afbton. My Lord, I am informed that
there were feveral Letters, that particularly name
my Lord, implyling him to be the Bearer, and I
defire thofe Letters may be read.

Mr, Ser). Thenpfon,
you do defire 1t, 1t (hall be read, we do not think
It material.

Mr. Abton, 1 do defire 1t it will be plaun, 1
believe, from hence, that I could know nothing
at all of this Matter ; and if your Lordfhip pleafe,
my Lord, to obferve ir, three or four of thefe
laft Papers, as Mr, Serj. Tremain oblerved, were
the Ground-Work of all this Bufinefs, which re-
fers to Portfinonth and South-Sea, and fome other
Papers; thefe I think, with Submiffion, were
proved to be the Hand of another Gentleman,
and I defire it may be proved again to the Jury,
by which I think it will be plun, that they do
not affect me,

L. C. F. Holt, Look you, Mr. Afbton, 1t 1s not
proved to be your Hand, nor pretended to be fo.

Mr. Afhion, But pofitively proved to be an-
other’s Hand, as I am informed, and *us$ thac
which Mr, Ser.. Zremain obferved, was the
Ground-Work for carrying on the whole Defign.
I prefume the Witnefies are in Court that proved
t then, and I hope your Lordfhip will be fo
Kind as to let it be proved now ; they did prove
it to be another Perfon’s Hand upon a Trial not
long ag0.

L. C. ¥. Holt, If you have a Mind to call any
Witnefles to prove the Papers to be another’s
Hand, you may call them.

Mr. dfpton. 1 hope the King’s Witnefles are
now in Court that did prove them to be his

jfor High-Treafon.

Mr. Serj. Tremain. My Lord, I defire to take

Notice of thefe Papers that we are now going

With all my Heare, if
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Hand-writing, and they’ll prove it now T -
pole. d
L. C. 7 Holt. If you have a Mind,
call them, they have not
them for the King.
Mr, Afbton. 1 know not where they are, my

Lord.  Pray Mr. deron Smith, be you fo kind as
to call them.

L, C. ¥. Pollexfen.  You fhould have fent and
Subpeena’d them to be here.

Mr. Apton.  Mr. Warr is there, my Lord, T
delire he may he ask*d the Queftion ; and I believe
Mr, Blane is in the Court, pray let him be ask’d.

L. C. F. Holt. Mr, Warr, you are called by
the Prifoner, as a Wimefs, to prove my Lord
Preftow’s Hand,

Mr. Abion. Mr, Warr, Mr. Townfond, and
Mr, Blane, 1 defire may be all ask’d.

L.C.§, Holt. Mr. Ao, you have infifted
upon 1t, that thefe Papers were my Lord Pigffoi’s
own Writing.

Mr. Afbton. My Lord, I do infift upon it, to

know whether they were not proved to be his

Hand.

Mr. Serj, Treizain.
agreed.

Mr. Serj. Tooupfor.  We do grant the King’s
Witnefies proved, that they did believe them to
be my Lord Proffsn’s Hand,

L.C. 7 Holt. The King’s Council do admit,
that thele three laft Papers were not your Hand,
but they admit them to be my Lord Preffon’s
Hand, and ’ds very well done of them to admi
it; fothat now *tis to be taken for granted, that
thole three Jaft Papers were my Lord Preffon’s
Hand,

Mr. Afiton.  Then, . my Lord, T delire the
Subftance of thofe Papers may be the more prefs’d
upon the Jury, becaufe Mr. Serj. Trematn ob-
ferved that the whole Defign in the Scheme of it
lay in thole Papers, and they are not my Hand,
but another’s; and for what 1s in them, I know
nothing, nor am concern’d.

L. C. }. Holr.  What have you farther to fay,
Sir ?

Mr. §o/, Ger. You mentioned another Letter
which you did defire thould be read,

M. dfbton. Ay 5 two or three where my
Lord 1s nam’d.

Mr, Sol, Gen. This is the Letter I.fuppofe
you mean, the Clerk fhall read It

Clerk of the Peace reads. Sir, 1 <ow to you, I
do ot vepine at baving lof all for your Sake, &c.

( As before. )

Mr, Afbton.  Gentlemen, I hope you will ob-
ferve, n that Letter my Lord is call’d the Bearer;
and it tells that he brings Papers with him, by
which it is plain, that you cannot imagine I
could know any thing of thefe Papers. And,
Gentlemen, it has not appeared by any Evidence
that has been given, that I knew any thing
more, than that they were unfortunately -found
upon me: Bur with Submiffion, I believe there
is another Letter, if I am informed right,
wherein my Lord is named, and called, my Lord

the Bearer,
Mr. Sof. Gen. Sir, 1 do affre you now, we

have to my Obfervation, read every Letter, and

every Paper, that was read on Saturday. |
Mr. Abton. Mr. Sollicitor, I am fatished,

for { am confident you would not affrm it if ic

were otherwile.
LC.7.

_ you may
a Mind to Pi‘{]duce

Yes, they weie {o, ’ois
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L.C. . Pollexfen, There is not any Letter that
fays my Lord the Bearer, but my Lord will give
you an Account, fo and fos; the Bearer will tell
you thefe and thefe Things ; will you have it read
again ¥ You fhall if you will.

Mr. Abton. 1 am unwilling to take up your
Lordfhip’s time, unles the Jury defire to have it
read again,

Furyman. Pray, my Lord, when that Lct‘ter
was read on Sattiday, how was it conftrued by

the Court? How did they take 1t then?
L. C. 7. Holr. We did take it then, becaufe

my Lord was mentioned, that he might pofiibly

be the Bearer. _

L.C.¥. Pollexfen. 1t is very probable, and {o 1t
was underftood then, that the Lord mentioned in
the Letters was my Lord Prifloiz, and 1o thac my
Lord was the Bearer that could give an Account
of the Countefs’s Condition; and in the Begin-
ning of thofe Papers that are of my Lord’s Hand,
there is mentioned fo much Money for the Lady
D, which is my Lady Derfet, Tiuppole, that s
there mieant, and that writ that Leteer.

Mr, Abteia. No, my Lady Dazichefier.

L. C. F. Pallesfen.  Deichefter, L cry your
Mercy 5 and it is probable the fame Renton is a
Reafon ftill to make it believed that my Lord
Preflon was meant,

Mr, Afron, T think my Lord Chief Juftice
was pleated to obferve, as | have been Informed,
in giving his Charge to the Jury, thar thele
Papers, fome of thetn naming my Lord, muil
be meant of my Lord Preffen, there being na
other Lord but he; and he likewife gave another
Reafon ; fays he, They lay by my Lord’s Scals
that were produced, and therefore 1t was platn,
they could not be Ablei’s nor Ellor’s.

L.C. F. Helt. No not fo, but my Lord might
be concern’d, becaufe my Lord’s Seals were there
where the Papers were found.

Mr. Afsten. 1 am wrong inform’d, if thofe
were not the Words my Lord Chief Juftice Pol-
fexfon uted,

L.C.}. Pallexfen. What do you fay were the
Words? It you wiil repeat them, Il well you as
pear as I can.

Mr, Afbton, Your Lordfhip feenv’d to infer,
That my Lord being nam’d, and the Bearer 1n
the fame Paper, that of Confequence that mult
be my Lord Preflsz, and the Papers muft be
his; and you did give another Reafon for ity to
inforce it, that the fume Man that faw me take
them up, [aw them [ic by the Seals, which were
proved to be my Lord Preffon’s, from whence
your Lordfhip did fay, it is plain they were my
Lord Preflor’s, and that Afbwen or Elliet conld
not be concerned in then. |

L. C. ¥. Hol:. You miftake that matter, fure
there was net any fuch Word faid, for that Evi-
dence that tended to conviét my Lord Prefloi,
did by no means tend to acquit you; the Que-
ftion then was, How far my Lord Preflon was
concerned 3 my Lord infitted upon it fays he,
They were not taken from me, but from M,

Afbton y there the Queftion was not about you.

Mr. Apen, 1 humbly hope, my Lord, you
will forgive me for infitting upon thele Matters,

becaufe I am for Life.

L.C. 7. Pollexfen, 1 would do you all the
Right I can, 1 affure you, Mr. Afbion; but cer-
tainly there was no fuch Thing faid as you have
mentioned,

[
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Mr, Abton. My Lord, I do not queftion |yt
you will do me Right, and I thought fo, when I
chofe the Jury out of the firft that appeared,
without challenging any,

L. C.F. Holt. Well, Sir, pray go on to your
Defence,

Mr. Afiton, My Lord, my own Defence wil]
be very weak upon the Whole, for I am very il-
hterate and unskill’d in the Laws, but where
do fail of wking Advantage, to obferve whae
may be for my Advantage, I hope your Lord-
fhips will be fo kind to me, as well as juflt (I
may call 1) to yourklves, being upon your
Oaths, as to take notice of 1t. My Lord, in the
firft Place s

My, Seif, Treinain,  Before Mr, Afbtos proceeds,
I would obicrve one Word 1n a Letter that hag
been read, which s one of thefe Papers; it fays,
I Jay nothicg of eiother Geutleier thot takes Op-
partuiily to fee thafe Parts, but be bas fbewi 6 Zeql
eitd Siicerity i ibe dffoir eqial to inoft.

Mr. Sezy. Thompfon,  You hear, Gentdemen,
that there is notce taken of another Perfon be-
fides the Bearer.

Mr, Aéega, Pray, my Lowd, is it any Con-
fequence that T mult be the Perfon that muft be
meant, or that I mult know what the Contents
of the Letter was, There was another beides
me, and fo it is not plain who was meanty or if
I were the Man measnt in this Letter, it mudt pot
therefore tollow that I muft kaow of it

Mr. Serj. Tremain. 1 did not mention it as a
Proof that you were the Perfon meant, but only
to flicw that there was another Perfon befides my
Lord taken notice of in them,

L.C. 7. [0k« nwlt confefs, T think Mr,
Afbioir obierves right, it doss not concern him,
for as well as he was there, there was another,
and 1t 15 uncertain whether 1t relates to him or
the other, and fo it fignifies nothing at all; that’s
my Mind,  Pray go on, Mr, At

Mr., dfbton. My Lord, upon the Whole I have
this to obferve; firft as to my Bufinefs of going
Into Fragice, 1 mult mngenuoully own it, though
1 protelt to you I never own’d 1t or named it 1o
the Woman, though fhe had {worn 1, but yer I
do now, My Dcfign was to go to Fraice, and T
had very great and good Reafon for it, [ think ;
[ had endeavour’d all Ways I could in the World
to procure a Pafs to go to Fraice ; ’tis very well
known, I did Bufineis under Licutenant-General
Worden, that died half a Year ago; his Accounts
are now depending, and fuch Accounts as may
be prejudicial in fome Points to lus Famnly, to
whom T have always own’d, and mufl, a great
Obligation, and would be very glad upon all
Occalions to ferve it, and all the Branches of it:
This wasnot the Whole nor the only D:fign T had
m going thither, but I had likewile fome Bufi-
nels of my own, I have a confiderable Sum of
Money owing me, if it be neceflary to prove i,
I can prove it by 2 Bond from a Perfon that is
there; a great Sum it 15, a very confiderable
one to me at lealt. And, my Lord, I did think
if I did not go mylelf, it was impoffible for me
to do any thing in that Affair, and that was the
true and oaly Reafon of my Dcfign in going to
France, having been out of Hopes of getting. any
other- Convenience otherways ; this was not a
Delign juft now formed, as if T were juft now. -
upon fome Plot concerning the Publick, but it

has been my Defign ever fince Licutenant-General
Worden



16901 Oi B o
Warden died, and he upon his Death-bed ingaged
me to do it; and I once went down, hoping to
have gone from Dover, and there I was appre-
hended and taken. And, my Lord, I have ufed
all manner of Endeavours to go other ways, but
they have always fatled me, and this way I hoped
would have taken: My Lord, I do own I did
hire the Boat, and I did pay the Money; but
with Submiffion, I think that is not any manner
of Treafonable Act, my Lord; perhaps it is an ill
A&, but it does not amount in theleaft to Trea-
fon going to the King’s Enemues, fuppofe I went
upon that sccount, that 15 no manner of Treafon
in the World ; carrying Papers to the King’s Ene-
mies, except it be proved that I was privy to

them, and knew the Contents of them, 1f Law--

yers inform me right, is not Treafon ; then what
remains ? *Tis true, I muft own the Papers were
found upon me, and I beheve there is nobody
that has heard the Evidence that has been given,
but muft readily conclude, that I found them in
the Place where the Seaman fays I took them
up 3 and befides, my Lord, there 1snot any man-
ner of Proof {o much as aim’d at by the King’s
Council in all their Evidence, that I was privy
to any one of thefe Papers; {o that, my Lord,
1 think there is very little proved upon me at all:
] had the Misfortune to be taken in this Conmpany
that was going where thefe Papers were taken,
1t’s true, but they have not attempted to prove
that I was privy to, or knew any thing of them at

all, nor that I was more concerned than that they-

were taken tn my Stomach; this 1s all T have to
obferve upon the Whole: As to the Bulinefs of the
Indi@ment, there are great and grievous Aggra-
vations In 1t, and fuch as I am not able to com-
prehend the Meaning of, the Words confound
me; and therefore I humbly deflire your Lord-
fhip to tell me upon what Statute I am indicted.

L.C. 7. Holt. Pl tell you, Mr. Afliton, you
are Indicted upon the 25th of Edward the Third,
for confpiring, compafling and imagining the
Death ot the King and Queen, and for that Pur-
pole going to France, and endeavouring to Incite
the French King to invade the Kingdom, and
telling him how he fhould do it, and letting him
know in what State and Condition the Kingdom
was, and how fit to be invaded,

Mt. Afbton.  Pray, my Lord, is that at all
proved upon me ?

L,C 7. Holt. That 1s the Queftion that the
Jury are to judge of upon the Evidence that has
been given.

Mr, Abton, As to that of Compafling the
Death of the King and Queen, I am ignorant
of Dealings mm Law; but I conceive there are
leveral Species of Treafon mentioned 1n that Act
of the 2 5th of Edward 111, andas to the imagining
the Death of the King, that’s only to be proved
by fome Overt-Aft: Naw I think nothing at all
has been proved of any open At conducing to
prove the Imagination or Compafling the Death
of the King or Queen, no manner of Confulta-
ton or Treafonable A& at all; and therefore,
my Lord, I do not fee that there 15 any great
Matter that is proved upon me, and I hope you
are of that Opinion too.

L. C. 7. Holt, Mr. Afbton, that you may not go
away with a Miftake, any thatdefign’d the Depo-
fition of the King and Queen, and the Invafion
of the Kingdom, which js proved by any Overt-
A, is fufficient to prove that they compafs and
imagine the Death of the King and Queen.
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Mr, Afbton. 1 prefume it may be fo, T believe
that may be the Conftruction of the Law,
L.C.7. Holt. And I make no queflion but
thofe that you have confulted with have told you
as much,

Mr., Apton. Truly as to Council, my Trial has
been as hard as ever Man met withal.

L,C. 7. Holt, Why do you fay fo, Mr, Ap-
ton ¢ the Court has not been hard upon you,

Mr. Ahbtor, My Lord, I do not complain of
the Court, but as to the matter of Time, I had
Notice by that Gentleman, Mr, Bal, to prepare
for my Tral, and that was on Fridey, and not
before,

L. C. ¥. Polloxfer, Friday was Sevennight,
you mean, I {uppofe.

Mr. Afbton. Yes, T do mean Friday was Seven-
night, I was then a clofc Prifoner, I had not the
Opportunity or Liberty of feeing any Chriftian
Soul; I fpake to him then, and told him, Mr.
Bale, this 15 very fhort Notice, pray be o kind
as to move my Lord that 1. may have Council ;
truly he was civil enough, and faid, he would
do all he could; fays he, Will you give me the
Names of your Council? So [ gave him the
Names of four, and of a Scllicitor: but 1 uover
heard morc of him in the Matter: [ did with all
my Indultry and Skill give my Friends notice,
but I was under great Duficulry, for T had not the
Liberty of Pen, Ink, noi Paper, nor a Maa to
fend upon a Meflage, on Serwrdeys 1 gave my
Friends notice of 1t upon Sy, which was no
very good Day for Bufinefs, they applicd them-
fclves to my Lord Sydiey, whofe Favour and
Kindnefs I fhall always own as longas I live; he
gave me all the Difpatch pofiible, and gor me an
Order to fee my Wife that Day, though it was
Sunday 5 the next Day I made Application to have
my Council come to me, that was Moiday; he
with the fame Readmnefs procured that: but it
was Tuefday in the Afternoon before I couid fee
any living Soul but my Wife ; and forne of the
Council thiat I delired, would not readily come to
me, and 1t was ediefday betore 1 did fee any
Body of them, and fo I had but Zediefday and
Thurfday to confult with them i, On Fridoy I
was brought here, and I endeavour’d to procure
a Copy of the Pannel, thar T might inform my-
feif of the Charadters of the Men that were to
be my Jury; and, my Lord, Iwould defire you
to glve me leave to clear one Pomne, which
through Inadvertency flipt from me about the
Time that I defir'd to fend to enquire about the
Jury. Idid not mean, as was apprehended, to
fend to them to take them off, but I only meant
to enquire after their Characters; this was done
upou Fiiday 5 1had not a Copy of the Pannel till
laft Friday, when we were Arraigned in Court,
it was Two of the Clock before the Pannel was
agiven us, it was between Three and Four when
we came to Newygalz ; we were to come upon our
Trial the next Morning by Eight of the Clock;
fo that before the Copies' could be tranfcribed
for us, there were left but fix Hours for us to en-
quire into the Morals of fo many Men, of whom
fome lived eight, fome ten, fome fifteen Miles
ot of Town; for my Part] wasnot able to en-
quire after any one, and that your Lordfhip may
think, by my taking the firft T'welve that appear’d,
and believing myfelf innocent of this Matter,
I refolved to put mylfelf upon my Trizl by any
twelve indifferent Euglifh Men; I only beg

if
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if 1 have omitted . any Thing in reference to my-
felf, or misbehaved myfelf with refpect to the
Bench, that you would pleafe to fet me right,
and confider that I ftand here for my Life and
to grant me your Pardon for any thing wherein
I have offended your Lordfhips, to whom, and
to the Jury, I refer my Caufe; only 1 beg leave
to call two or three Witnefles, I know it hath been
allowed before in fuch Cafes, to give fome thort
Account of my Life and Converfation, becaufe
it hath been reflected upon me thatI wasa Papift,
becaufe I defigned to go into France 3 but 1 belicve
there is mot any Man, whole Devotion to the
Proteftant Religion eftablif’d by Law, 15 greater
than mine hath been, or to whom that Religion
is dearer than to myfelf.

L.C. ¥. Holt. You are not accufed of any fuch
" thing ; nobody pretends you are a Papift: but
call whom you will.

Mr. Afbion.  Pray call Dr. Burfs, Dr. Lake,
Dr. Fitz-IWilliains, and Dr. Davenant, There 15
Dr, Fiz-Williains 3 1 beg the Favour of you, Dr.
Fiiz-Williams, to give the Court an Account of
your Acquaintance with me, and partcularly
about my Religion,

Dr. Eiz-Wiliams, Will your Lordfhip giwe
me leave, my Lord?

L.C. ¥ Holt. Ay; Come, what do you know
of M. fbton.

Dr. Fuz-Hilliains. 1 fuppofe, my Lord, that

he calls me in as a Witnefs to his Religion, and

to his Morality, I think fo; with my Lord’s Per-

miffion I will give the trueft Teftimony I can:
I have known him for fome time, he ufed to be
frequently at the Service of the Church i the
Proteftant Part of the Family at St. Fames’s,
where I was Chaplain; during the Time I was
there, 1 obferved him to be a frequent Receiver
of the Holy Commaunion ; and, as faras I could
obferve, lived anfiverable to what he profefled to
be, a fincere Member of the Church of England,
and a ferious Chnft::n. For his Sincerity and Zceal
for the Proteftant Religion, 1 can give this In-
ftance, he had an Aunt that had a Relation to that
Family, one Mrs. Du-pee, who he thonght did warp
a little towards Popery, and he defired me, about
five Years ago, to have recourfe to her, and deflired
to know if fhe were diffatisficd with any Point
of Religton in the Church .of England, in Com-
munion with which (he lved vifibly, and I
would do my Endeavour to fatisfy her; as I do
not doubt but Icould, She wasdefirous to know
who wus the Perfon that fent me: I told her I
came of my own Head in the greateft Part; but
I fuppref’d the Interpofition of Mr. Afbton for
feveral Reafons, and told her, T had great Sufpi-
cion of her inclining the other Way; and 1 had
great Reafon for it, becaufe of her Husband, who
was a Papift, and the great Refort of Popith
Priefts to their Lodgings. She told me then,
She was fatisfied in every thing, and if fhe had
any Diffatisfaction fhe would fend for me to give
me an Account, Some Months after I camne to
St. Fames’s to wait, and obferving her to be mare
than ufually before from Prayers in the Chapel,
I went to her, and asked her the Reafon: She
told me, it was becaufe fhe was making fome
Linnen for her Mafter King Fames, which was
to be made in hafte : But fhe then defigned to go
for Flanders quickly; and Mr. Afbtor about that
Time, or two or three Days after, told me his
Aunt was gone to France, and [poke it with very
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areat Concern, and that he believed, under the
Pretence of calling over her younger Son, {he
was gone to declare herfelf a Papift, and he was
very much troubled at it.  This I know for ‘his
Zeal for the Proteftant Religion.

L.C. J. Holt. When was this, Dottor?

Dr. Fiz-Williams, 'This was, my Lord, about
five Years ago. ‘

Mr, Afbton.  ‘That 1s, as to the Bufinefs of my
Aunt I foppofe; I know not how he comes to
mention it, but as to my Life and Morals, you
can give a later Account,

Dr. Fitz-Williams, My Lord, I have Admi-
niftred the Sacramentto him,

L. C. F. Holt, What Queftions do you farther
ask him, Mr. Afbton? or can you fay any more,
Doltor ?

Dr. Fitz-Williams. No, my Lord, I can fay
no more, but that he received the Sacrament
about half a Year ago.

Mr, Serj. Thompfon. We have not objected
any thing, as to his Religion, at all.

Mr. dfbton. But 1 know it has been a Refle-
¢tion that has gone about of me, that I ama
Papitt, thercfore I beg leave to prove my Reli
gion and Converfation.

L.C.%. Holt. Nay, call whom you will, you
fhall not be hindered, take what Courfe you
pleafe.

Mr. Serj. Tremain.  Pray, Dotor, you fay he
has received the Sacrament latelys when was
that, and where?

Dr, Fitz-Williams. Tt was at Ely Chapel, with.
in this fix or feven Months.

L. C. . Pollexfen.  Have you been lately con-
verfant with him?

Dr. FizWilliaws, Truly, my Lord, I have
not been very lately.

L.C. F. Pollexfen. Pray what have you heard
him fay concerning his Affe€tion to King William
and Queen Mary ?

Dr. Fiz-Williams.
thing at all of that.

L. C, 7. Pollexfen. Have you heard him fay
any thing to the contrary 2

Dr. Fuz-Williais. No, 1 cannot remember
that.

Mr. Serj. Tremain.  What have you heard him
fay about his AffeCtion to K. Fames ¢

L.C.}. Helt. Do not ask him thats there
may be a Snare 1n that Queftion.

Furyman.  You fay, Dottor, that he received
the Sacrament fix Months ago in £ Chapel;
Did you deliver the Sacrament to him there?

Dr. Fitz-Williams. No, 1 did not,

Jurywman.  Pray, Doltor, were the Prayers
that were ufed at that Time altered, as theyare
now 1n the Common-Prayer-Book ?

Dr. Fitz-Williams. 1 cannot fay they were,

L.C. 7. Pollexfen.  Did you ever fee him drink
King Fames’s Health ?

Dr. Fiuz-Williams. 1 do not ufe to drink
Healths, I came here only to do an Office of
Juftice and Kindnefs to Mr. Abton, to teflify
about his Religion and Converfation,

Mr. Serj, Tremain, But anfwer the Queftion,
Did you ever fee him drink King Fames's
Health ?

Dr. Fitz-Williams.
did. .
Juryman,  “Was King #illiam and Queen Mary
pray’d for in thofe Prayers?

Dr, Fifz-

I do not remember any

I cannot remember I ever
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Dr. Fitz Williams, 1 cannot fay they were,

Mr. Fuf. Eyres. But the Farymar’s Queltion
was, Whether King William and Queen. Mary
were pray’d for? And whether the Prayers were
as they are now altered ?

Dr. Fitz Williams. My Lord, 1 fay, Idon’t re-
member there were any Names mentioned, as the
Prayers are now altered,

Mr. Serj. Tremain.  That’s very well.

Dr, Fitz Williams. 1 did netther read the
Prayers, Sir, nor adminifter the Communion at
that Time, ,

L. C. F. Pollexfen. But you were not at the
Prayers, as they are now altered, I percetve.

Dr. Fiz Williams.  Yes, I have feveral times.

Mr. Serj. Thouipfon. Not with that Gentleman,
Mr., Afbton. '

Dr, Fitz Williams. But I have been an hundred
times at the Prayers, as they are now altered.

Mr. Apton. 1 delire Dr. Lake, who is there
upon the Bench, that he may be asked what he
knows of me,

Mr, Ser). Trenain. But T have one Queltion to

ask of Dr. Fitz Williams before he goes.

L. C. ¥. Holt.  'What will you ask hun ¢

Mr. Serj, Tremain. 1 would ask you, Sir, one
Quettion. Have you taken the Oaths to this
King and Queen ?

Dr, Fitz Williams. No, T have not, Sir, that’s
my Unhappinefs ; but I know how to fubmit,
and live peaceably under them,

Mr. Aften. But there is one Dr. Lake that
has taken them, he’ll give you an Account what
he knows of me.

Dr. Fitz Williams. If any one can fay 1 have
done or acted any thing againft the Government,
I will readily fubmit to be punifhed for it.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Well, Dr. Lake, what fay you ?

Dr. Lake. My Lord, I have known Mr. Afb-
ton above thefe fixteen Years, we liv’d together
in the fame Family feveral of them; I always
obferved him to be a Perlon of exemplary Prety,
and fingular Devotion; he duly came to the
Prayers of the Church twice a Day, and to the
Sacrament once 2 Month ; he has taken Occafion,
that I know, feveral times, both at St Faines’s
and at Edinburgh, to teftify his Zeal aganft Po-
pery : and I am apt to think, that he has fuffered
jometimes for domng fo.

Mr. Abton, Dr. Buifb, Pray, as to my Reli-
gion, I beg you to give an Account what you
know of me ; particularly fomething you may
remember of me, of my perhaps Over-heat againt
Popery.

Dr. Burfh, My Lord, I have long known
Mr. Affton, the Prifoner at the Bar, and, till within
thefe two Years, frequently converfed with him
and while I did fo, I believed him a good Prote-
ftant, and I have fo many Inftances of it, and par-
ticularly before fome upon whom his Fortune de-
pended 3 but as to any thing of late, I can fay
nothing, becaufe our Converfation has ceafed,

Mr. Ser). Thompfon. Dr. Buib, have you known
any thing of Mr. Afbten’s Converfation for two
Years paft ?

Dr, Bush. No, Sir.

L. C. f. Hokt. Have you any thing more, Mr.
Afbton 2

Mr. Apton, No, my Lord, I have nothing
more, unlefs your Lordfhip defire any thing more
of this Nature,

L. C ¥ Holt, Call whom you will,

Vor. V.

Mr. Afbton.  Here is one Mr. Tomlinfon,

L.C J, Holt. Come, what fay you, Sir?

Mr. Tombinfon. My Lord, I waited upon Ma-
jor General Zorden when he was fick, and there
read the Prayers of the Church, and Mr. Afton
was a conftant Attender upon the Publick Prayers
at the Vifitation of the Sick, and was very de-
vout; that’s all T can fay.

L.C. ¥ Holt. When was this?

Mr. Tomlinfon. It was in the Sicknefs of Major
Gen. Worden.

L. C. f. Halt, How long ago was that ?

Mr. Zenbinfon. It wasabout half a Yearago.

L. C. F. Pollexfen.  Were thofe Prayers as they
are altered now, or not ?

Mr. Tomlinfon. It was only the Vifitation of
the Sick, and the Colle& for the Morning, and
ColleCt for the Evening, becaufe the General’s
Sicknefs was fuch, that he could not bear lono
Prayers,. 7

L. C. 7. Holt. Sir, have you been acquainted
with the Prifoner any time ?

Mr. Tomlinfon.  About eight Months,

L.C. 7. Holt. Have you any more Witnefles,
Mr. Abton

Mr. Afbten.  No, my Lord.

L.C. 7 Holt, 'Thenl would have you to an-
fwer me this one thing ; Why were you {o defirous,
and wfed fuch Imporwnity, that the Papers fhould
be thrown overboard ?

Mr. Afton. My Lord, that is a Point I ought
1o have fpoke to, to clear my flf,

L. C. F. Holt. It {eems material, and I would
not have 1t forgor, if you can an{wer 1.

Mr. Afbton. 1 humbly thank your Lordfhip,
and whatfoever my Fate is, I cannot but own [
have had a fair Trial for my Life, and I thank
your Lordfhip for putting me in mind.

L.C. F. Holt, And take this other thing with
it, Why did you defire Captain Billsp to go along
with you where you were going ?

Mr, Abton.  He has fworn it, my Lord, that
I did fo, but as I hope for Salvation, if T were
to dic immediately, I do not know that I fpoke
to him of any fuch thing ; How was it poffible
that I fhould prevail with him? or how was it
likely that I fhould force him to goalong with us,
when he had about twelve or fourteen Men with
him armed, and we unarmed ¢

L. C. F. Holt. Nay, it was not forcing, it was
but perfuading him to go.

Mr. Afbten, My Lord, I do not know any
thing of it, I'll aflure you; Lut as for endeavour-
ing to perfuade him to throw the Pacquet over-
board, I muft own I did endeavour to perfuade
him to it; and, I do prefume, there is no body In
Court, that had been engaged with a Perfon fo
unfortunate, that would not have done the
fame thing for any common Friend, not knowing
what the Contents of thofe Papers were, feeing
them in that Pofture, efpecially when I faw fome
body elfe fo near me, fo uneafy and concern’d te
have them feen.

L.C, ¥ Holt, Then, Mr. Afbton, there’s
another thing which you open’d, which I would
have you prove ; you fay you were to go 1alo
France upon the Affairs of Col, Wordew’s Family 3
firft you fay Col, #urden had a great Account (o
make up; how will you make that out?

Mr. Afton. My Lord, if your Lordfhip pleafe,
I will prove here in Court, though it is a fort of
Surprize upon me, that there is a great Acs

Ppp count
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count depending 5 I believe T may appeal to Mr.
Solliciter himfelt, who knows that there is a Peti-
tion in the Houfe of Commons, now depending,
from the
whom fhe owed 6Sooo/. She did aflign tl}f:
Ariears of fome growing Rents for the Satls-
faction of this Debt; but the King and Govern-
ment have not thought fit to let it be apphed to
her Uke, or to the paying of thofe Debts fhe
affign’d 1t to. Nay, it has gone farther, I can
appeal to feveral Perfons, there 1s one Man by
Chance in the Court, that 1 believe does know
that 1 promifed and engaged, and atually have
pad a great Part of this Debr; for believing
that the Money was good upon the Affignment,
I have actually paid fome of thefe Men out of
my own Pocket, and perhaps more than became
me (0 venture 3 I think it may very well call my
Difcretion in Queftion.

L.C.¥. Holt. Who will you have called, M.
J%fﬁﬂ 2

M. Abion. My Lord, here 15 Mr. Spaldiig,

L.C. F. Holt, That the late Queen does owe
People Money, that I believe s true.

N, Ao, Pray, Mr, Spalding, will you give
the Court an Account, whether there Is any Mo-
acy due from the Queen to your

Mr. Spaléing, Ny Lords, and you Gentlemen
of the Jury, I have a Debt due to me from the
Jate Queen, as har Coach Harnefs-maker; it is
470/, or fometiing theyeabeuts, and Mr. At
has paid me Part of this Pebrs this T do own,

Mr. Serj, Tigmcin,  Pray, how long have you
been acquainted with Mr, Ahoi, Sir?

Mr. Spalding. A dozen Years, Sir.

Mr. Serj. Tieinain., Have you any Intimacy
~with him ¢

Mr, Spalding. He and I have been very well
acquanted.

Mr, Serj. Trwimain, Have you ken Mr. dfbtoi
wrlte at any time?

Mr. Spalding., Ycs, 1 have.

Mr. Serj. Tremain. 1o you know his Hand 2

Mr. Spalding, Yes, I think I do,

L. C. ¥. Pollexfen. Pray how came Mr, Abton
to pay you that Part of your Money ?

Mr, Spalding, 1 prelsd Mr. Aflton, and told
ki my Neceffities, and he did advance me this
Money.

L.C. % ek, How much did he advance?

M, Spalding.  Almolt 400 4

L. C. . Pollexfen. When was it he paid 1t you?

Mr. Spaldinz.  Almoft a Year ago.

L.C.f Helt. Did he pay 1t out of his own
Pocketr?

Mr., Spaldinz. 1 helieve fo.

L.C. J. Hut. T believe fos or was it Money
that he bad returned to him 2

Mr. Spalding. T believe it was out of his own
Pocket, my Lord.

L.C.} . Holr. 'Why do you believe fo?

Mr, Spalding.  Truly I believe 1t was out of
his own Packet,

L C. F. Pollexfen. Pray who wasto repay him'?

Mr. Spalding. About that very Time we were
petitioning the Houle of Commons, that we
might have our Debts fecured, and our Money
out of the Arrears of Rents due to the late Queen,
according to her Affignment; and we fo far
pref’d the Matter, that there was a Claufe in-
ferted 1nto the Bill for the fecuring of our Debt ;
but upon the next Day, or the Day following,
the Parliament was Prorogw’d.
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L, C. J. Pollexfen. Which way did he expe& to
be repaid? p
Mr. Spalding. Tl tell you which way, I fup-
ofe, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. Pollexfer, 1id he not tell you which
way ° »

I{/Ir. Spalding.  No, he never told me.

L. C. 7. Pollexfen, Mr. Ajbtor, did you nevey
tel him how you fhould be repaid 2

Mr. Afbten. My Lord, I hoped to be repaid,
and concluded 1 fhould, out of the Arrears of
Rent in the Tenants Hands.

L. C. F. Holt, But you are very kind to pay
Money out of your own Pocket upon fuch
Hopes.

Mr, Serj. Tremain.  Pray, Sir, will you look
upon that Paper ; do you know the Hand ?

Mr, Spalding.  No, Sir, I do not.

L.C.F Holt, 1 fuppole he did compound
with you.

L. C. F. Pollexfen. ‘This does thew an extraor-
dinary Kindnefs towards fome fort of People.

Mr. Abton, If he difcounted the Intereft to
the "T'ime that we reckoned 1t would be paid, you
know that Preudice would be to him, and not
to me 3 1t may, Indeed; prove a Preudice at aft,
1if the Debt be not paid, becaufe the Receipt is
Conditional ; if 1t be not allowed him, fhe fhall
difcount to e again,

L.C.}. Pollesfen. 'Was there no Money re-
turn’d over from the Queen, K. Fanes’s Queen
that was?

Mr, dfbton.  No, my Lord, dire&ly nor indi-
rectly, not one Penny, 1 believe they are not
in a Condition to return Money,

L.C 7 Holr, Well, Mr. Afbioi, what have
you more ¢

Mr. Afbton, 1 have nothing more to fay, I
{ubmit my Caufe to your Lordfhip.

L C. 7. Pollexfen, Look yous Mr. Afbton, as to
fome Things that you have mentioned, Firft,
there’s nobody queftions but you are a Pro-
teftant 3 nay, as far as I difcern, {o they are all
that are concern’d in this Matter, The whole
Delign fhews, that they are all {o careful of the
Proteftant Religion, that they Defign to reftore
and eftablith it by the King of France; fo that it
appears they are all Proteftants concern’d in this
Project,

Mr. Afbton. Pray, my Lord, who is it that
propofes that ?

- L.C. f. Pollesfenn. The Papers that were carry-
mgdro France, Mr. Afbion, you have heard them
read.

M. Afbten. 1 hope, my Lord, that no doubt-
ful Infinuations or Suggeftions are to affect me?

Mr, Serj, Tremain, ‘There is a2 Gentleman that
was called to by the Prifoner, it may be, he
knows his Hand ; pray, Dr. Fiz Williams, look
upen that Paper, you have been acquainted with
him many Years, do you know his Hand ?

Dr. £ Williams, No, Sir, I do not know his
Hand, I never did fee him write; T cannot fay I
ever recelved a Letter from him, '

Mr. Ahbton, 1 entirely fubmic my Caufe to
your Lordfhip and the Jury. |

L.C. }. Holt, 'Then you have done, Mr.
Abton 2

Mr. Abton,  Yes,

Mr. Jult, Eyres. Mr. Afbton, becaufe you can-
not reply again upon my Lord Chief Juftice,
after he has fummed up the Evidence; there’s

another
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that you may give an Anfwer to 1t Captain
Billop {wears, before the Papers were found upon
you (and it feems to flick upon you) when he
was informed by the Seamen, that you had put
fomething in your Bofom, and he ask’d you
what it was, .you faid nothing but your Handker-
chief: Now, if you knew not what was In the
Papers, how came you to deny you had any thing
in your Boforn ?

Mr. Afton. For the fame Reafon that I would

have endeavoured to have had them thrown over-
board ; out of Kindnefs to the Perfon with whom

I happened to be taken.

L.C. F. Poltexfen. Confider, Mr. Abton, what
a ftrange many Things you run upon: Firft,
you would have 1t believed, that you had a mind
to go into France upon your own Account,

Mr. Abton. 1do own that.

L.C. Y. Pollexfen. Next then, that you hired a
Veffel for you and Eliet.  'Why would you have
Elliot to go with you into France?

Mt. Afton. Twounld not have him, he defired
the Favour of going.

L.C. 7. Holt. Who defired my Lord Prefion to
¢o, or did he defire to go with you ? |

Mr. Abton. T had not feen Mr. Elliat of three
Months before I went into the City to hire the

Boat,
L. C. Y. Pollexfer. Why would you have my

Lotd Preflorr go with you ?

Mr. Ao, Why would I have my Lord Pre-
ffor go with me? My Lord, I hop’d to have got
my Paflage free with a Perfon of myLord’sQuality.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Then you hired this Veflel for
my Lord Preflon ?

Mt Afbton. No, my Lord.

L.C. ¥. Holt, Was it my Lord’s Money, or
your own that you paid?

Mr. Afbtonr. The Money I paid; but how I
fhould be repaid I cannot tll.

L. C. . Holt. Would you, for your own Con-
venience, pay a Hundred Pounds fora Boat to go
to France, and yet hope to get your Paflage free
by taking in my Lord Preftor ¢

Mr, Afbton, Truly, my Lord, I cannot tell,
how it would have been ; at the utmoft, we could
but have paid our Share of it. ;

L. C. 7. Holt. But you can tell me if you will ;
I ask you, how it was agreed amongft you ?

Mr. Abton. Truly, my Lord, as1 hope to be
{aved, I cannot tell.

L. C. F. Holt. 'Then there 15 another Thing,
Why did you defire one of the Seamen to fay,
That you were to go to Flanders, and not to
France, and give him Half a Crown to fay fo?

Mr, Abton. 1 prefome, your Lordfhip knows
that it is a Fault, though it be not a treafonable
Fault, to go into Lrauce,

L.C. ¥ Pollesfen. But, Mr. dfbton, Truth is
the thing that we are enquiring after; and, that
is the Thing we would have prevall, and L hope
fhall in all Cafes: If you are not guilty, we hope
it will prevail of your Side ? if you are guilty, we
hope it will prevail on the other Side. Now how
likely is it that you fhould get into this fame Com-
pany by chance, without a previous Agreement?
you fent fomething from Burdei’s,a Hamper, and
a Trunk, and afterwards fome other Things went
from Righy's, who is your Father-in-law,

Mr. Afbton. No, There was nothing.at all car-
ried from Mr, Righy’s.
VourL. IV.

Jfor - High-Treafon:

another thing that I would put you in mind of,
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L. C. 7. Holt. Yes; the LeatherBag, I believe.
But another thtng 15 thiS, Thﬂt, 1f it be pofﬁble .
you will do well to give an Anfwer 1o, Why did
you enquire for a hiding Place ? Why did you ask
the Mafter of the Ship, whether there was 2 cop.
venient Place to hide in?

Mr. Afbton. As to that Matter, my Lord, I
had heard of divers People, that aQually had
Pafles, ‘and were going to Flanders, yet were ftop-
ped and brought to Town again. I believe my
Lord Nottingbam has bai’d many a One, and
your Lordfhip knows it to be fo, and has bailed
many yourfelf 5 and therefore T had grear Reafon,
upon that Account, toendeavour Secrecy as much
as [ could.

L. C. . Pollexfen. M. Abton, as T remember,
you faid yourfelf, you were once before a going
over, and had the Misfortune to be ftopt : now
0 ventare a fecond Time without a Pafs, was
fomething ftrange. Why had you not gone and
applied yourfelf to the Secretary for a Pafs ?

Mr. Afpton. 1 had made all the Application
I could to my Lord Nottingbam, 1 cannot fay in
my own Name, becaufe I was fure before-hand,
[ fhould be denied 5 but I did by others Hands
endeavour to have got a Pafs to have gone into
Flanders, becaufe it was of extraordinary Confe-
quence to me, as I tell your Lordthip, to go
quickly.

L. C. . Holt. It you had fuch an Occalion to
go, and had made 1t out to the Sceretary, an d
given Security, you might have got it fure. .

L. C. J. Pollexfen. One Word further, Why
fhould you be fo much concerned to have thefe
Papers thrown over-board ?

Mr. Abton, Perfetly out of Friendfhip, and
had I been travelling with your Lordfhip, or any
Man elfe, that had been {ounfortunate, I would
have done the fame. -

L.C. 7. Pollexfen. Well, have you any more
to fay for yourfelf ?

Mr, Ser). Twompfon. Mr. Apton. Call what
Witnefles you willy and fpeak as long as you will
for yourlclf, you fhall be heard at large.

Mr. Abton, Mr. Serjeant, Ithank you heartily,
I have no more at prefent.

L. C. F. Holt. Then the King’s Counfel defire
to fpeak 2 Word to the Jury.

M. Serj. Thomp, May it pleale your Lordlhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury: Itfalls out to be
my Duty to fum up the Evidence that has been
oiven, I opened the Caufe at the Beginning to
you, and I opened it at [arge, and many Particu-
lars there were mentioned, and truly, I do not
think we have failed in the Proof of any one ; I
know you are Men of that Obfervation, that I
need not, nor fhall take upon me to repeat all
the particular Circumitances; butasnearas I can,
I fhall touch upon the Heads of the Ewvidence,
and do it with as equal Regard to my Duty, and
as much Tendernefs to the Prifoner, as any. one
can do.

Gentlemen, in the firlt Place, you fee what
the Indi@ment is for; *tis for a High-Treafon
of -a very Great Nature, no lefs than the Depo-
fing the King and Queen, and Subverting this
Government, and that by a Fremch. Poj.a{_er and
Intereft ; if inviting an Invafion, and giving an
Account of the Weaknefs, and. whe_re the
Strength of the Government. lay, carrying I.::ﬁ'
pers to follicite-the French to come, and to incite

this Nation into Rebellion, that fo they might

Ppp2 depofe
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depofe this King, and fet up the late King Jaines
again : If thele be High-Treafon, as doubtlefs
they are, then Gentlemen, how far forth the
Prifoner at the Bar had a Share in it, T muft re-
fer to you from what we have proved.

He is the Man, it feems, that made the firlt
Step, for you may remember it was proved, that
he met this Woman at Burdet’s, in the City, for
the Hiring of this Ship, and after two or three
Meetings more, they come to a Conclufion, and
93 Guineas and Six-pence are depofited to make
up 100 /. which was the Price agreed upon, and
that was actually paid by Mr. Afbron ;5 this is fiworn
to be {o.

The next Thing is, to what Purpofe this Mo-
ney was paid, and the Ship hired, that is direct-
ly fworn, 1t was to carry Mr. 4fbton, and two or
three more of his Friends, not naming of them,
and they were to go for France, one of the Wit-
nefles fays, to any Port in France, it was not di-
retly declared to what Part. This, 1 fay, was
the Purpofe for which the Money was paid, and
the Veflel hired, and this was to carry you, Mr
Aton, and two or three more Friends of his tn-
to Lrauce.

It is true, Mr, Elio¢ afterwards did meet Mr.
Ahtoir, and T think was by at the Bargain making,
or at leaftwile, when the Money was paid; I
will not be pofitive 1 that, becaufe I would do
him no Wrong, he being to make his Defence
hereafter,

Mr. Afbton. No, he was not by, T made the
Bargain my felf. |

Mr. Sery. Thompfon, Then afterwards I remem-
ber one Circumflance 3 when he hired this Ship,
he was to hire a Ship that had a Place {to hide in,
and fo he muft needs know upon what Defign,
{ fay, by that he muft needs know, that there was
a Matter of great Moment which he was to tranf
alt, for he was to have fuch a Ship as he might
hide 1n,

After this Ship was hired, then they met in
Covent-Garden, and there they take Order with
the Man to~go down with them to the Stairs,
where the Waterman was called ; indeed Mr.,
Afbten did part from them in the Way, but pre-
fently after camé to them at the Stairs, and there
came my Lord Piefforr and his Man, who, toge-
ther with Eliot, that was there before, T think be-
fore, all embark’d tn the Boat, and were carried
to the Ship, and made all the Hafte away they
could for Framnce.

When they were there, and came to a Place of
Danger, near a Ship of War, there was Care
taken, according as they had enquired of the
Mafter of the Ship before, that they fhould be
hid, and hid they were, |

Afterwards, when they were paft that Danger,
when they came to the Block-Houfe at Gravef-
end, there they thought fit to hide again, and did
fo, and there they concealed themfelves, >tll
they were furprized in that Place by Captain Bil-
fop.

J?:)M],r Lord, after fuch Time as Captain Billop
had furprized them, he tells you, how he came
down after this Smack, you fee what happened ;
my Lord Preffon firft came up, and after he had

fearched my Lord Preffon, Elliot cameup, and he

was fearched, and after M, A/bron was once come
up, he went down to fetch lus Hat, and there

was feen to take up this Bundle of Papers, and
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there the Papers upon Search, were found in My,
Abbten’s Breaft,

This being fo found in his Breaft, you haye
heard what Applications were made by this Gep-
tleman, to get thefe Papers caft over-board, apg
what Promifes were made to the Captain, angd
what Likelihood there was of making his Fortune,
it he would go along with them, or throw away
the Pacquet.

You hear, Gentlemen, that after they came to
Whiteball, one of the Men fivear, that this Gen-
tleman gave them Money, that they fhould fay,
they were not hired for Lrance, but for Flandzrs,

Thefe, Gentlemen, are the feveral Circum.
ftances, that do appear in this Cale, which thew
the mighty Care and Diligence that was ufed to
get thele Papers fuppreffed that had been thus -
ken, or to get them agamn into therr own Cu-
ftody, and that is a Matter that fhews how far
this Gentleman was concerned in this Defign;
and taking all thefe Things together, I think
there can no greater Evidence be given, that Mr,
Abion was 1n this Contrivance, that he was con-
cerned in the Meflage, that he was to be fent,
and al] this Bufinefs that was to be done, was as
much Guilty, as my Lord Prgfion, who now
{tands convicted for it.

And the Court will tell you, Gentlemen, there
are no Acceffories, in Treafon, all are Principals;
though it be not aftually proved, that this
Gentleman did know all thefe Papers what they
were, yet in Cafe he hired a Ship for himiclf
and the Lord, whofe Papers they were, to go in,
and take fuch Notice of the Papers, as to take
Care of them, to fupprefs and conceal them, that
is an Evidence of his Knowledge of the Impor-
tance of them ? and if fo, he will be equally Guil-
ty of the High-Treafon.

L.C.F. Holr. 1 doubt that,

Mr. Ser). Thompfon. My Lord, I would not
willingly prefs any thing further, than the Nature
of the Thing will bear,

L. C.f. Holt. Pray, go on, Brother, we are
only talking among ourfelves.

Mr. Serj. Thompfon, The next thing is this,
that 15 to be confidered, That after fuch Time as
thefe Papers came to be laid open, what is it
that appears among them ? Truly I fhall not take
upon me to repeat fo much as the Subftance,
much lefs the Particulars of the feveral Papers;
but, I muft fay, that there does appear to be a
formed Defign of Subverting the Government,
of depoling this King and Queen, and of bring-
ing us all into War, Rebellion and Blood-thed, all
this under a Pretence of Eftablifhing the Pro-
teftant Religion, and our Legal Government again
(tho’ I can fee no Means they had to depend up-
on for it) but by a Popith Intereft, and a French
Power ; and how far that is poffible, or probable,
to promote fuch an End, by fuch Means, I leave
to your Confideracion,

Gentlemen, you have heard all the particalar
Papers read 5 here was the Refolution of a Con-
fult and Conference, where this Project was de-
figned ; here were Heads of a Declaration, that
was to be framed to make the Credulous believe,
what mighty Things fhould be done upon their
New Revolution: you fee, what Letters have
been produced, and cannot but eafily apprehend
what 1s the Import and Meaning’of them, I re-

folve, asI faid, not to mention the Particulars,
but:
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tut there is fcarce éne Line among them, but
what is Treafon, for it all tends to this Purpofe
and Defign, to depofe the King, and alter the
prefent Government,

Now upon the whole Matter, Gentlemen,
what this Gentleman has faid, I confels to me
feemns ftrange ; he faid indeed at firft, that he had
10 Defence at all, or that which was very weak,
and fo it fhould feem the Truth was, for you
e what his Defence has been.

He fays, That he went Into Franmce, that
he owns that he was going thither ; but what
was it to do ?"it was to fettle fome Accounts with
the Family of Colonel #orden, and to receive a
Sum of Money that was owing to him by a Per-

fon there.
Gentlemen, if the Defign had fo much Inno-

cency in it, certainly he might have had a Pafs,
at leaft, there was no need of hiring a Veflel at
fuch an extravagant Rate ; there was no Neceffity
of hiding in this fecret manner, and no Necef-
fity of impoffible Suggeftions, and proffering
Great Rewards for the difpofing of, and conceal-
ing thele Papers.

Gentlemen, You will remember many Paru-
culars more, which have not flipt your Obferva-
don s I fhall not take upon me to repeat them,
but leave them to your Confideration.

Only this I muft fay, That this s a Treafon
of a very high Nawre, & Treafon to depofe 2
King that has ventured all he had, cven his Life
has been in Danger, and his Blood has been
fpilt to eftablith this Government, and our Re-
ligion, and our Laws, and yet it feems there are
Men that think this may be better done by a
Popith Intereft and French Power, which I think
nobody of either Wildom or Honefty can ima-
gine, or will ingage in, and thercfore I leave it
to your Determination.

L. C. . Holt. Gentlemen of the Jury, you
underftand, that Mr. Afreir is now tried for
High-Treafon ; it is mentioned in the Indictment,
to be for confpiring the Death, and depofing
of the King and Queen, and for that Purpofe,
he did endeavour to go into France, and to carry
divers Propofals in Writing, and feveral Me-
morials to fhew how this Kingdom might be in-
vaded by the French,

To prove this, the Evidence that has been pro-
duced and given by the King’s Council has been
long, and confifts of two Parts, Witnefles Viva
Vace, they have told how Mr, Afhten deligned a
Voyage to France, and that he hired a Ship for
that Purpofe, and feveral Papers were taken out

of his Bofom.

In the firlt Place, the Witnefivs tell you, that
about the latter End of December laft, Mr. Ao
and Mr. Elliot came to Burdett's Houle, where
they met with Mrs. Pratt, and Burdeit having
before that fpoken to her about a Smack that fhe
called the Thomas and Elizabeth.

Then there was a Meeting appointed between
her and Mr. Apbton at the Wander Tavern, where
they did treat and debate about the Hire of 1t;
afterwards they came back to Burdets’s again,
and there the Agreement was made berwixt the

Woman and Mr, A/bton, the Prifoner at the Bar, to |
have a Hundred Pounds., Ninety-three Guineas’

and Six-pence was fetch’d down by Mr. Abten,
and told out, and depofited in the Hands of
Mits. Burdetty then there was a Six-pence broken,

and one Part Mrs, Burdeit had, and the other

for High-Treafon.
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Part Mr. Abtor had, and when either the Matfter,

or Mrs. Pratt, thould bring the Part of the Six-

pence that Mr. Afhbton kept, to Mrs, Burdett, the

Hundred Pounds was to be paid,

And this Agreement being made, *; '
ﬁfro_rn; that they did ask, g‘W]lt:l‘hE[‘ tl?egzﬁsf‘;li
hiding Place in that Veffel ? an Anfver was made
There was one, and thereupon a Note was givenj|t
that the Mafter and Mrs. Pras thould £0 (0 thf;
Seven-Stars in Covent-Garden,

Upon Weduefdoy Night, they went there ac.

cording to the Directions, where meets Afitor
| git
and Elljot, but before that, there was a Boat

hired at Surrey Stairs to carry them down to the
Ship through Bridge, over-againft the Tuzwer

but the Tide not ferving till about Ten a Coclz
at Night, they had agreed with a Waterman for
halt a Crown to carry them, arid he was to ftay
ull the Tide ferved. And when they went out
from Rigly’s they parted, Elliot and the Mafter
went together, Mr. 4fbtor did not go with them

hut_ came near about the fame time to Szfrre;
Stairs, where they took Water,

Being aboard, it was obferved that all thefe
Gentlemen were very timorous, and feemed ta be
much frighted at the Sight of any Vefitl, from
which there was any Apprehenfion of their being
taken notice of ; an%I therefore they went down
under. the Quarter-Hatches, which 1s a Place
very inconventent for fuch Perfons, where none
could ftand or fit upright, but they were forced
to lie upon the Boards, or upon the Ballatt,

It feems fome Intimation was given, that fome
Gentlemen had an Intention to go into France
to profecute fome Treafonable Defign: And
Captain Billbp being employed to purfue them,
which he did in a Pinnace,} when he came near
the Veflel where they were, he called to the
Vellel, and under pretence of preffing Seamen,
he went on Board: The Mafter of the Vefizl
faid he had a Protection from the Admiralty ; fo
that _there was no Caule for them to fear preffing,
nor indeed was there any for Gentlemen to fear
it, they being not liable to be prefled.

When the Captain came near the Ship, and
declared his Intent of coming on Board, thefe

Gentlemen were gone under the Quarter-Hatches
again; Captain Billp coming on Board, and
{peaking abour prefling of the Men, and faying,
There was 2 Couple that would make good Sea-
men for the King s the Mafter thewed his Pro-
eftion, and then the Captain faid he would
fearch further in the Ship, and fo he did, and
then he pulls up the Boards, and there he finds
all thefe Gentlemen, who were called up one
after another, and fearch’d by the Captain.

Gentlemen, There is one of the Witneffes tells
you, that when they were come up, he faw a
Pacquet that lay in this very Place under the
Quarter-Hatches, unto which was tied a piece
of Lead, which Mr. Abton takes up, and puts in
his Bofom, with which the Captain being ac-
quainted, Enquiry is made by him, what Mr.
Abton had there? Mr. Afbton faid it was his
Handkerchief, and nothing but that which he
pull’d out: But Captain Billpp puts his Hand in
his Bofom, between his Coat and his Body, and
takes out the Pacquet, and carried thele Gentle-
men on Board the George Frigat, where they
ftayed till the Tide ferved to bring them to
Ihitehall,

. But
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But before they came on Board the Frigat,
Mr. Afbton was very importunate with him td
throw this Pacquet into the Water; when they
were on Board the Geerge Frigat, and in the
Cabbin alone, they continue their Importunity.

Now, fay they, we have you here; and you
are alone, pray will you throw this Pacquet over-
board ; and particularly Mr. 4fbton faid it would
do the Captain no good to injure fo many Gen-
tlemen, and Mr, Elfist would have perfuaded the
Captain to take the Lead that was tied to the
Pacquet, and tie it to fome Letters that were
taken out of my Lord Preffon’s Pocket, and throw
the Pacquet over-board s and then have informed
the King and Council, that thofe Letters was the
Pacquet taken out of Mr., 4lew’s Bolom: But
the Captain very honeftly rejefted all their Mo-
tions of that kind.

Truly, Gentlemen, my Memory will not
ferve me to repeat all the Particulars, but I
queftion not your Notes will bring them to your
Minds, My, Elliot, it feems, was fo mightily
concerned at thelr being taken with thefe Papers,
that when they fhot Loudoi-Bridge, he wilb’d the
Bridge might have fallen upon them and knock’d
them on the Head; and, when they were got
through, he willd a Thunder-bolt would fall
down into the Boat and fink them: That, indeed
wias Mr., ‘Elliet, and not Mr. Afbten; but Mr.
Afbton was as much concerned about difpofing of
the Pacquet as Mr, Elfiot,

At Whitehall this Pacquet is opened, and you
have feveral Papers produced in Evidence, and
read to you; you have heard what Evidence has
been given, that thefe are the very Papers that
were in the Pacquet thus taken.

Firtt of all Captain Billgp tells you he carried

them to my Lord Nottingham, and that they lay
there in his Office; he withdrew, indeed, while

my Lord Nottingbam examined my Lord Preffon,
but the Pacquet was not opened in the Interim,
but there was only a Paper ftuck on the Out-{ide,
that my Lord had wken off before the Captain
returned into the Room, and there the Pacquet
remained intire, He fays, my Lord Nottinzhan
opened the Pacquet and putup all the Papers that
were in the Pacquet in his Prefence into a Cover

again, and fealed them up with his Seal. My
Lord Nottingham fays pofitively, he did put up
all the Papers that were in the Pacquet again, all
and no more, except the Cover, and that he
fealed up and delivered it to Captain Billap.
Captain Billap fays, he took thefe very Papers
from my Lord Nottinghem, and as he received
them, carried them without opening to my Lord
Prefident. :
My Lord Prefident fays, he lock’d them up,
unopen’d, in a clofe Cabinet in his Clofet-Room,
where nobody comes ; there they were that
Night, and the next Day he carried them intire
to the King, and fome of them were read by the
King, in the Prefence of my Lord Prefident ;
and they were all taken away again by his Lord-
thip, no more nor no lefs; and, my Lord Pre-
fident brought them all to the Cabinet Council,
where they were read, and were delivered to

my Lord Sydrey.

My Lord Sydimey fwears, Thefe Papers now
produced, are the fame Papers he had from my
Lord Prefident; and my Lord Prefident {wears,
That they are the fame he received by Billsp from
my Yord Nottingham, and my Lord Sydvey mark’d
them,
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So that there can remain no Doubt of thefa
bemng the fame Papers, that were contained jp
the Pacquet, that was taken out of the Bofom of
Mr. Abton,

‘Then, as to the Matter of the Papers, I think
it 15 plain, beyond all Contradiction, that the
Import of them is Treafonable : They fhew a
Defign of invading the Kingdom by a foreign
Force, and of Depofing the King and Queen from
the Government, and of fetting the late King

upon the Thione,
It 15 agreed, as it 15 mentioned at a Confe-

rence, between {feveral Noblemen and Gentle-
men, that were of the /7big and Tory Party, as
they call them; that the late King was to be re-
ftored, though by a French Power.

It was impoflible for them to effect it, by
going plainly to Work; and faying in plain
Words, the French fhould invade us, It was to
be done in this manner.

The French King muft pretend by all Means
to be our Friend, and a Mediator betwixt the
late King, and the People of Kugland, and this
was out of D:lign, plainly, to get a Party of the
Kingdom to join with them ; the moft credulous
and inconliderate Sort of People ;5 who when they
fhall be feduced into a Belief of the Fyeich King’s
great Kindnefs, 1t was not doubted but there
would be a Conjunttion between them and the
French Forces, to reftore the late King.

And to procure fuch a Perfialion in the Peo-
ple, the Freuch King was to thew himfelf kind
to the Englifh Proteftants, to appear and adt ano-
ther Part than he had formerly doney he was to
permit them the Exercife of the Proteftant Reli
gion, thereby to perfuade many, that his Perfe-
cution of his own Subjetts, the Hugonots, was
not out of any Averfion to the Proteftant Res
figion, but only to their Antimonarchical and
Refifting Principles.

Then an Inconvenience is to be removed ; for
they complain, that they are too full of Bigotry
at St. Gerinajns, and too bare-fac’d: For they
make an open Profeffion of Popery, and fpeak
truly what they do intend ; but fay they, if they
will have the Defign take Effect, they muft be
more Clole and Secret; For the Folly and Bi-
gotry at St. Geymains was a very great Obftru-
ction, Therefore, they propofed, that fome
Perfons might be {ubftituted as Agents to corre-
fpond here, that underftood the Temper of the
Nation, and what would eafilieft prevail with
the People: And a Model was to be framed at
St, Germains 3 the Proteftants are to be feemingly
carefled, Seven or Nine to be of the late King’s
Council, that fo we might believe, that he was
ours 1n Intereft again, and that we have a Rela-
tton to him.,

And if Things were carried with fuch Cunning
and Subtlety, they hoped to delude a great many
Peopie over into the Intereft of the late King; but,
if they went bare-faced, it would caufe fuch great
Jealoufies, that they muft totally defpair of Succefs.

Yet they did not hope by thele Artifices to
obtain fo many Friends here, as might have been
{ufhcient to accomplifh their Defign 5 and there-
fore they muft have recourfe to a foreign Force,
particufatly a French Force. For fays one of the
Papers, Ufe Foreigners to expel Foreigners; that
8, Ule French to expel Dutch Foreigners, who
are our Allies, and are fallly accufed by them to
have trampled upon the Rights and Liberties of
the Nation, There




1690 0. B.

There is one Argument ufed to encourage
People to affilt the_szcb in the Invalion of their
own Country, which I cannot omit; namely,
That as foon aS the French, with a confiderable
F xpence af Men and Mﬁ?ﬂ?’, bad F‘d_’fl‘ ored the Pro-
tefiant Religion, the late King 1o the Crown, and the
Pegple to thett Liberties, that be wonld withdraw
all bis Forces, and reap uo Profit or Advantage by
bis Succefs. I muft confefs, this carries fo lictle of
Perfuafion in it, that it is ridiculous to think thereby
to impofe upon any Number of Men ; but notwith-
ftanding the Weaknefs of their Arguments, 1t 1
apparent they were in good earneft ; the Papers
give an Account to the French, in what State and
Condition our Forts were, Portfmouth wot manw’d
coith above 500, and Gofport bow weakly fortificd.

It was a happy Juncture between this and the
Geft of March, when Advice is given to make
ufe of the Opportunity : For Men cannot give,
but Men may ufe Opportunities, and fomething
was to be done forthwith, and the Goods muit
be got in Readinefs, pariicularly Linnen, and the
Copper, are mentioned, which are myfierious
and dark Expreflions, and you may put a Con-
ftruction upon them as well as 1 for they are
written in a Style of Trade, as if they were 2
Correfpondence  between two  Tradelmen, and
the Linnen and the Copper are ordered to be
brought before the roth ot Adsich,

But however obfeure fome of thefe Lxpreflions
are, there are others that are more plain, 7/t
the French Fleet muff be out in April at farthefl,
and are to comie before the Conjnnilion betwoeei the
Englith ard the Dutch, and Jennings, Stricklind,
o Trevannian agre fo coime from St Malo’s 1z
oite Night, and 1o fight the Englith Fleet in the
Chops of the Chamiely and not to come [o bigh as
Baachy, twhere they came the lofe 2ear.

And there Is an Account given, mn what Con-
dition and State our Navy was, how many Ships,
what Rates, how mann’d, and who the Officers;
and then as the Freieh were to be in Readiels to
come in #prily fo they fay our Fleet was not to
be out till Fuse,

Gentlemen, there are a great many other
Particulars; but thefe are enough, nay halt of
them were enough to make any Man Guilty of
Treafon, that was concerned in them, or that
had a Hand in carrying or making ufe of them,

Belides, there are other Letters which can 1m-
port nothing, but the Writer was of the Iate

King’s Interctt; one diretted to Mr. Reddrig, the
other to Mrs. Reading 3 and thele were to go to
France, to let them know how zealous he was 1n
s Duty, and how the Interelt of the young
Mafter increafed. The Letters have thele kx-
preflions s That the’ the Famtly were decreafed, yet
ati- Titereft is increafed, which is yours, and I fpeak in
the Plural Number, becanfe I [peak the Sentiments of
wy elder Brother, and the reft of our Relations, aud
defire them io belicve they were zealous and cordial
in their Duty to Mr. Redding. Now what Inter-
pretation you will make of this, Il leave to you.
Then there is another Letter to Mrs. Charlton,
and another to Mr. Fackfon, and divers other
Things that have been read, and among the reft,
have been read the Heads of a Declaration at

farge, fhewing what fhould be done, and what

Methods fhould be taken in order to the reftoring -

the late King, and depoling this.
And there 1s alfo mention made 1n a Paper,
how divers Perfons, who were to be pardoned,

jfor High-T'reafon.
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as particularly, &l Fuflices of the Peace attually i
Commiffioir, are not to be exceptedy Outlaws are to
be pardoiicd ; Chinmey Monzy to be taken awey s and
all that coime tn within one and twenty Days, are 10
be forgiven.

So that it 15 platn thefe Letters import 2 Defign
to depofe the King and Queen, and the. King-
dom-to be nvaded by Forcigners; only a litle
to colour the Matter, nor to lofe the Pretence of
a Proteltant Intereft altogether, there was to

be 5 or 6oco Swedss to be made ufe of in the
Invafion.

Gentlemen, if there was a Defign of an Inva-
fion, be it by Papifls, or by Proteftants, if any
At was done tending thereunto, it is High-
Treafon within the Statute of 25 £. III. For pur-
pofing and intending to depofe the King and
Queen, manifefled by any Overt-Aé&, hath been
always held & be High-Treafon,

This, Gentlemen, is the Sum and Subiftance
of the Evidence that has been giving againft the
Prifoner at the Bar,

Mr. Albton fays tor himfelf, It is trae, faith he,
my Delign was to go to Framce. 1 was fo unfor-
tunate as to have the Papers taken about me, 1
did take them up; but, fays he, it is not at all
proved that any one of the Papers that are now
produced are my Hand : which is true: There is
no fuch Proof.

"The next thing is, that Mr, Afbton being ask’d,
What Occafion he had to go to Fraice 2 he fays,
He had formerly a Relation to Col. Werden, and
did tranfadt, and had the Management of his Af-
fawrs, which were very great, Col. Worden died
half a Year ago, and he enjoin’d him upon his
Death-Bed to go into France about {ettling fome
Accompts of his, and he was defired by the Fa-
mily of Col. Werden fo to do.

This Mr. Aforen alledges; but he has not pro-
ved it, *Tis very ftrange, that if Mr. Afbtor was
to go to Fraince to negotate that Afiair for Col,
[Vordew'’s Family, nonc of that Family thould be
produced to prove, that Col. ZZerden gave him
fuch Directions, or that the Family defired him
to go into France upon that Account.

Then Mr. 4o hath endeavoured to give
another Reafon for his Voyage mnto Fraunce: he
affirms, he had fome Affairs of his own with re-
lation to the late Queen; he was concerned for

her, and fhe did owe Monies here, and he paid
feveral Debes to Tradefmen, particularly 4004

fhe owed to the Coach Harnefs Maker; and he
having paid it, went over to reimburfe himfelf:
The Tradefman was produced, and he fays, Mr.
Abton did pay the Money a Yar ago; but
whether Mr, 4bton had Effets from the late
Queen, or patd it out of his own Pocker, does
not appzars Mr. 4bton fays, he paid it out of
his own Pocket, which is very extraordinary,
that he thould be fo kind to pay what he was not
obliged to pay, and have no Security to reimburfe
himfelf,

So that, Gentlemen, you had beft conlider
whether there be any thing at all faid or proved,
that can juflify Mr. Ahtow’s going to France, or
whether there be any good Reafon offered for it.

Then Ahtor has called Witneffes to prove,
that he was always a Proteftant, though he did
live in a Popifh Family, where they did encourage
Papifts and difcountenance Proteftants; for which
he had the I1l-will of thofe he did depend upon.

Gen-
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Gentlemen, all that is agreed, and 1t 1s nota
Queftion in this Cafe, whether Mr. Afbton be a
Prorefiant, or a Papift; bot the Queftion ls,Wl_lfC-
ther he be guilty of High-Treaon ? from which
the being a Proteftant does not fecure a Man,
But, Gentlemen, if Mr, Afbton had no Know-
ledge upon what Deflign the other Perions were
to go into Frasice, though he had atually gone
Into France, it had been a Crime in this Juncture
of Affairs, yet not High-Treafon; but to go -
to France, and carry a treafonabie Scheme of
a Defign, and Projet of an Invalion, that is

Treafon, |
Now the Queflion is, Whether Mr. Afbton

went with fuch a Purpofe or not, you arc to
confider ; 1 would not lead you into any Strain
of the Evidence, but only flate it how 1t ftands.
It is plain he was concerned all along in hirnng
the Smack, and as the King’s Cotincil obferved
to you, the Price was fomuthing éxtraordinary ;
they were to pay 100/, for the Voyage, to which
was added {fome Encouragement to the Woman,
that if the performed this Voyage well, fhe might
get 1000/, before Lady-Day, and the Money was
paid by Mr. dten, and he was takei aboard the
Vefiel

Mr. Afbion was much concerned to fecure the
Papers, by taking them out of the Plice where
they lay upon the Ballaft under the Quarter-Hat-
ches s and afwer they were talien out of s Bofom,
he was very importunate, and fo often, with Cap-
rain Billsp to throw them over-board.

And why fheuld he be fo earneft and concern-
ed, unlefs he very well knew, and was acquainted
with the Contents of thofe Papers ?

And he gave one of the Seamen 2 5. 6 d. to fay,
They were bound for Flaiders : Unlefs 1t was a
Matter of great Importance he went about, and
that was not fit to be known, why fhould he deny
it, or labour to have it concealed 2 An 100/ to be
paid for this Voyage, was, upon a joint Account,
as well for my Lord Preffon, as for Mr. Afbton and
Elliot5 Mr. Afhie . did pay the Money, and he
docs not make 1t appear whofe it was,

Gentlemen, 1t refls upon you to confider the
Lvidence you have heard, whether it s fufficient
to induce you to believe Mr, Afbron was going
into Freace with thefe Papers to carry on the De-
lign of Depofing the-King and Queen, and In-
vading the Kingdom: If you are not fatisficd in
your Confciences that heis guilty, then find him
not gutlty: On the other Side, if you are fatis-
fied that he 15 guilty, I do not queftion but you
will find him fo.

L.C.f. Poltexfen, Took you, Gentlemen of
the Jury, My Lord has rightly repeated and fta-
ted the Evidence to you 3 I fhall only fay but a
very few Words to it.

Mr. dlbten, as at firlt he did, fo in his Defence
has complamed of a very fpeedy Trial, and
would infinuate fomething of Favour that he
might find for that Reafon. Itdoes appear he had
Notice of hisTrial fufficient, and had Time enough
to prepare for it: But there is one Thing extraor-
dmary has happened to his Advantage, which I
would defire may be taken Notice of, If he had

c2n tried on Saturday, perhaps he had had more
Reafon to complain than now he has; for
he has now (and you fee he ufesit, and wifely
cnough too) the Advantage that happened to
him upon my Lord Preffon’s Trial 5 and has had
Tine fince Satnrdey to prepare for this Day’s
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Work ; fo that there is no hard Point upon him
as to that Matter, bat he has had pretty good
Fortone therein.

Next he does infinuate, that he is a Proteftant,
Gentlemen, the Law does not diftinguifh betweep
a Proteftant Traytor, and a Papift Traytor ; if he
has committed fuch an Offence, as by the Law i
High Treafon, the Law does not dittinguifh, nor
may we. And Proteftants may ferve Papifts De-
higns, though they do not direftly intend i,
Therefare the Iividence to prove him a Proteftant
is nothing before you 5 for the Matter is only, whe-
ther he be guilty of this Crime or not.

In the Tral of my Lord Pirgffon, then che L.
bour was, that my Lord was not the Man thas
was concerned, as the Bearer of this Pacquet of
Letters or Writngs wherein the Treafon is cop.
tained & but then it was Mr. Abton, the Pacquets
were found about hims but now it is not Mr.
Afbton, but my Lord Preffon, and thisis now the
Queftion before you, that he flands upon,

But if fo be they were all concernzd in the Car-
riage and Tranfporting of this Bulinefs, then they
are all alike gty of Treafon, and therefore they
cannot fhuftle it from one to another.

Now there appears fome Realon why they
would not all agree to be tried togethers for
now it 1 but turning it from my Lord Preffonup.
on Afbton, and M. Afbton upon my Lord Prefton,
and Efliot upon cither of them, and fo by this
Means all might efcape, if this were fuffcient
to ferve their Turn.

But the Queflion before you s, Whether all
thefe Perfons are notall in all equally concerned ?
and ’us the Evidence that mult be your Guide
and ours: for it 1s not Mr, Zfbton’s Affirmation,
that he had Bufinefs to eo into Framce, and he
happened unluckily to fall into thefe Mens Com.
pany, that will be a fufficient Excufe, unlefs he
prove it.

It had been an ealy Matter for him to have
proved, 1 he had been going into France upon
Bufinefs for Colonct 7ordzir; but at length that is
turned off, and then the Pretence for going is,
to recover fome Money he had owing to him
there, and that he had payed for another Perfon.
Had he Papers of Inftructions of this kind ¢ Had
he any one Witnefs of this Thing ?

The Merchandize that he carried out with
him is of another Import. Where were the Notes
or Bonds that he was to recover? Where is the
Accompt that he had to make up with any body
beyond Sea? There ts no Manner of Evidence of
any fuch thing.

Next, Gentlemen, do but confider, if the Man
were {0 innocent as he would infinuate, as if he
had not gone with the reft upon this Errand,
how came the Man to have {o heavy a Concern
upon him ¢ Why fhould he go to take up thefe
Papers, 1t they were not his Brats? Why thould
he clap them Irto his Bofom, if he knew nothing
what was 1n them ? Why was his Concern fo great
to have them thrown over-board ?

Gentlemen, if you expeét that the Hearts of
Men fhould be proved otherwife, than as Men
guels by one another’s Meanings, by their Actions,
tis impofiible to convi&t any Man of a Ciime;
for 1f his own Affirmation fhall be g Defence, he
will never want a Defence to keep himfelf from
being convifted : But that is not what the Law

aives Credit to; it mult be Proof and Evidence
that
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that you are to judge upon, But of all he pre-
tends to, he proves nothing,

How came he acquainted with my Lord Pre-
B2 Sure he was 2 Man fofficiently known 1n
he World 2 Why fhould he go with him and M.
Elliot? Are they not all known? Are they not
Derfons of the fame Difpofition, and much in the
fame Imployment?

He had been taken a little before, he fays him-
(elf, and was hindred from going; and he had
ftrangg ill Luck, 1f there was nothing elfe in the
Rufinefs than what he pretends.

Gentlemen, in fhort, if you do find by the
Tvidence, that he was going upon a good and an
hone{t Defign, and that he knew nothing of the
Danger that was in thefe Papers, and that thefe
Perfons were in, by reafon of thefe Papers, and
vet would go about to have thefe Papers concea-
led ; and endeavour to have them thrown away,
without knowing what was in them: Thele are
Fvidences that will be good for you to go by, if
yau have any fuch ; but to take lhis Afnrmation,
becaufe he fays it, when he proves nothing, thar
is no Lvidence to go by.

[ leave it to you, as my Lord has done, If
you are fatisficd upon the Evidence that he s
outlty 3 I doubt not you know, and will do your
Duaty, aad will ind him fo; and if you have no
juch Evidence, or any to prove the contrary,
that he is not guilty, then you ought to hind him

{o too.
Mr. 4pon. 1 beg your Pardon for one Word.

L.C.¥. FHolt. What would you fay?

Ms, Afiten, My Lord, T thall reckon it a
particular Favour, if you will pardon me one
Word, after your Lordfhip has given the Charge.

L.C. F. Holt, Well, whatfay you?

Mr. Afpton. 1 think, with Submiffion, that
thete is no Proof I knéw, or was privy, to the
Contents of any of thule Papirs. |

L.C. . Pallexfen. DPray, Mr. 4fbox, fhew any
Man any Reafon, if you can, why did you go
down and catch up thefe Papers, if you did not
Tnown what was in them ? ' they might be for your
Advantage to be fhewn, for any thing you pre-
tend to know,

Mr. Abton. 1did it for my L, Preflon’s Sake,
whofe Hand was proved, and he ftands convicted

as the Bearer of thofe Papers.

Mr. J. Eyres. But you forgot one thing thae

was phinly proved, Mr. Afbton, that when you
importun’d Capt. Bilfop to throw away the Papers,
you ufed this as an Argument, It wonld do biiis ito
good 1o injure three boneft Genticien.

Mr. Aften. 1 did not fay fo, my Lord, that

"

[ know of, tho® indeed he has fworn it
L.C.¥. Holt. TLook you, Mr. Abton, you

have been heard as Jong as you did defire to

peak, and wereask’d over and over again, whe-

ther you had any more? You are not now faying
wy new Matter; if you could urge any thing
thit had been omitted, which made for your
Advantage, 1 believe the Court would indulge
you, tho' it be againft the Courfe.

Mr. dfbpton. My Lord, 1 fay there is nothing

wnder my Hand, thete 1s no Privity proved ; Does

Suppofition condemn 2 Man? And is there any
thing but Suppofition againit
my Hand proved in any of the Papers. I befeech
your Lordfhip and the Jury to oblerve that.
L.C. ¥ Hult. Your being in the Company,
and being.fo concern’d, and importunately en-
Vo IV.

. ﬁ.r: High—Tréafon.

me? There is not

435

deavouring to have them thrown overboard ; the
Hiring the Veflel to go with thefe Treafonable
Papers to an Enemy’s Country, and the Papers
found about you, 15 Fact proved, and is left to
the Gentlemen of the Jury to confider of,

Mr, /fﬂ_.lff?;z. But does all this amount to more
than Sulpicion ¢

’ 1L.‘ C. ? Holt, l.ook you, Mr. _/Z,I?J}.'ﬂ!}: if you
P."'“l‘, after we have charged the Jury, you will
give ‘'us an Occalton of {peaking to anfiwer you;
the G_entlemcn of the Jury are Men of Under-
(tanding ; they have very well obferved the Evi-
dcn_cc, angi I perceive they have been very extra-
ordinary Intent upon it; they will be able to
make a right Judgment, no Queftton, of it.

Mr. Apton.  All that I defire, is; there is no-
thing proved upon me, of my knowing what was
In thefe Papers.

Mr. 7. Eyres.  And there 1s that which is very
conliderable top, that ’ds plain, what you fay
about Col: Worden’s Account, 1s but a Pretence ;
for when you were fearch’d, there was not one
Pape_r, nor one 'bit of Account found about you,
nothing but this Bandle of Treafonable Papers
and Letters.

Mr. dfbton, My Lord, I humbly beg you
will obferve what s for me, as well as whae 13
again{t me,

L. C. . Holt, Gentlemen of the Jury, doyou
think you fhall ftay out any time. The Court de-
I:m:s to know it, becaufe they will order them-
felves accordingly.

Furyan. My Lord, we do not know tll we
come together. +

L. C F. Holt, WNay, take your own Time,
only the Court would comply with your Conve-
niency in the Adjournment.

Then the Fury withdrew, and the Court adfourn’d
for balf an Houry and<chen they were returid,
the Fury came i to give their Verdif, and
being called over, anfioered to their Nawes.

Cl. of Ar#, Gentlemen, are you all agreed of

your Verdict

Jury.  Yes,

Cl. of Arr. Who fhall fay for you?

Fury,  Our Foreman.

Cl. of Arr. Fobin Affiton, hold up thy Hand.
Which be did, Look upon the Prifoner; How
fay you? Is he guilty of the High-T'reafon
whereof he ftands indiéted, or not Guiley 2

Foreman.  Guilty,

Cl, of Air. What Goods or Chatiels ?

Foremen,  None that we know of.

Maj. Richardfen. Look to him, he is found
ouilty of Higl-Treafon,

Cl, of Arr. Then hearken to your Verdit, as
the Court has recorded it. You fay, That Fobu
Aftan is guilty of the High-Treafon whereof he
fands indifted, but that he had no Lands nor
Tenements, Goods nor Chattels, at the Time of
the High-Treafon committed, nor at any fme
fince, to your Knowledge, and fo you fay all 2

1y,

‘Z. '(},‘ F. Pollexfen. Gentlemen, [ fhi“!{ truly
you have gone according to your Evidence,
which the Law requires you to do, anc} that 1t IS
which will preferve us all.  And tho’ it be truly
a Thing that falls hard upon t_he narticajar D{Ien
that are concerned in fuch Thingss yet notwith-
ftanding we muft have more Confideration of the
oeneral Good and Prefervation, and the Support

o the Government, and that the Law hgve its due
Q99 Courfe,
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Cﬁurﬁz, than of any p’lrtlcuhr Man’s Cafe, as
to thie hard Point of it: we muft look to thefe

Things, ‘or there will be no living in the World.

Sir 77. Heafg'es My Lord, we humbly defirc
of your Lordfhip, that we may.be difmifs’d from
further Attendance this Seflions.

L. C. F. Pollexfen. Ay.
Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen; you are difinifs’d, and

the Court thanks you for your Service.

Their the Court adjonrw’d for an Hour, and then
the Lord Mayor eind Deputy Recor der, wwith fe-
veral of the Fuftices and Alderimen, veturned into
the Conrt, aitd r”ﬂc’: Pioclamation for Silence,
‘Order was given to bring the Lord Prefton, and
My, Afhwon 1o the Bar., Which was done.
The Lord Prefton faiding «without the Bar,
aind M, Aﬂ]tﬂﬂ LJH!{N!I

Cl of Air. Sir Richard Grabme, hold up your
Hand. IVhich be did.

Fobir Aflitsiz, hold up your Hand. 77hich be did.

My Lord Prefleir, you ftand convicted of High
Treafon, for conl'plrm'-r the Death of the ‘(mﬂr
and Queen’s s Majellics, for ulhmw to the Klnﬂ‘ s
Foemies, and endeavouring to fubvert the Go-
vernment : What can you iay for yﬂurﬁ.l“, why
the Court fhould not proceed to give Judgment
againit you of Death, according to the Law ?

Lord Prefion. *Tis true my Lord, the Jury
have found me guilty of the Treafon afligned
the Indictment. My Lord, 1t is a Trealon of &
very heavy and black Narure, tis of fuch a Na-
ture, that if 1 had been coniclous to myfelf to
have deferved, I thould be very willing to under-
o0 that ]udtrmr:nt that 15 like prefently to pafs
upon me. It Is to endeavour to bring in the
King of France to conqum and invade chis King-
dom ; *ds a Thought 1 always abhorred 5 1 love
my Religion, my Family, my Country too well
to attempt or endeavour any fuch thing ; I mult
appeal to your Lordfhip, though now perlﬂps It
1S 100 hte, whether the TI&IﬁJn that s Jaid
againft me has been perfeétly proved ; for n the
Cafe of proving I Tinds, and particularly mn the
Cale of Colonel Svdiev, 1t was difallowed that
Comparifon of Hands fhould be Evidence 3 there
ought to be at leaft cne, if not two, Eviaences to
prove the Writing ot it. My Lord I know this
is too late, I'hould have offered this to the Jury
before, but being in the Crowd, and in great Dil-
order by ft:mdmcr fo long, 1h ad not Snentrth or
Abtlity enough 0 urge itas | fhould. T bave no-
thing more to fay In the Cafe, but fubmit to that
Judcrment that the Law has affigned.

Mr. D. Recorder. My Lord Ps cj/fafz, your Lord-
fhip knows the Procufdlno's of the Law in fuch
Cafes; there is no averring againft the Verdict
of the Jury ; they have found your Lordfhip guil-
ty, and the Law fays, that Judgment muft be gl-
ven upon you according to that Verdict. |

Lord Preflon. M. Rmzd’u, 1 do not aver
w‘un[’t the Verdift. T own it is too late; I fhould
h..we offered it before, and T muft fubmit to the
Judgmént of the Law.

CL. of dyr. obn Afpton, hold up thy Fand.
Which be a’:d

You are in the fame Cafe with the Prifoner
faft” before you, What can you £ fay for yourfelf,
why Judgment thould not be given againft you
to, die according to Taw?

M. Afbion. My L.ord I would humbly defire
I might have a Sight of my Indictment; I have

f:qme_ﬂga_f_’on, pe_rhjps, to bellcve thut lam tuund
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ouilty upon an Erroneous Ind:&ment 5 and if 3 be
o, I would defire to have C{Junul to argue. the
Errors of .the Indi¢tment.

Mr, D. Recorder. You have heard it twmemd
1) Er;g! ifh, and once 1[1 Lf;!nz, and that is all thay
is allowed to any one in your Cafe s I never knew
the Record of any IndiGtment thewn to any Prifo-
ner at the Bar.

Mr, Adfbton, Suppofe there be any Error in it

Mr. D, Recorder. 1 am not to fuppofe any fuch
thing 5 if there 15 any, it has beeb read to you,
affien it, and the Court will confider. of it.

M. f;’;?.i..aﬂ If Ican afign the Errors in the
Indictment, may I have the Advantage of it then?

Mr. D. Recordsr.  1f there be Errors, you will
have the Advantage of them, 1if you wlll aflion
them ; if there be 1 none, you cin have none,

Mr. Afbton.  Then I fay, if there be Words in
the [ndictment, that there are no fuch Word in
Nature, then, Sn, I am rold 1t 15 2 Vicious and
Erroneous Indictmenr, and that is enough to vict
ate the Indictment.

Mr. D. Recorder. No fuch Words in Nature ?
It is hard to tell what you mean by thats perhaps
thereare Terms of Artin the Law, which, though
you are not acquainted with, we are.

Mr. Afbton.  Then there are fuch Words in
Nature.

Mr. D. Recorder. That is an infenfible Expref.
fion, Hords in Nature!

‘m. Afbton,  Tam informed that even a LLttLl
in an Indictment s enough to viciate it, or if it
be falle Latin, that will make it an Erroncous
Indictment.

Mr. D. Recorder. No, that 1s not {o 3 but if you
will tell me what that Letter is, Pl tell you what
I fay to 1t icmay, oric may not be material.

Mr. Abton. We know 1t was lately difputed
in a Cafe of this Nature ac this Place, and I am
informed the Court were of Oplnlon if it had
been 1n the Body of the Indictment, it had been
an Lirror,

Mr. D, Recorder. It you pleafe to tell me
wherein the Error in your Indictment confifts, [
may be able to give you a good Anlwer to it, or
you will have the Advanmgc of 1.

Mr, Afpton. 1 fay 1t confifts m tlus; the Word
Cymba is written with an § in the Indictment,
whereas 1t fhould be with a C,

Mz, D. Recorder.  How do you know it?

M. Afbton. Tt 15 no matter how I know it;
[ have fome Reafon to know it, it may be.

Mr. D, Recorder. Mr. Hardefly, look upon the
Record,

Mr, dfbtor, With Submiffion, thatis an Error,
for there is no fuch Word as Gyinda withan §. -

Cl. of drr, It 1salong Indictment s will you
pleafe to ask him where about it i ?

Mr. D. Recorder.  Mv. Afbton, will you tell
me where 1S written ?

Mr, Afbton,  In the Indictment, when yoy
come te {peak of Cymba 2 Boat,

Mr., D. Recorder. By the Sound 1 cannot di-
ftinguilh whether it be'S or C.

Mr. Afbton.  Sir, I hope you will do me the
Juftice to examine tht: Inditment itfelf,

Mr. D. Recorder. The Clerk is lookmg upon It :
how is it, Mr. Har defly? Isitwith an Sora C?

L. fifz'ﬁr It is with a C.

Mr. D. Recorder, The Clerk has read it, and
he certifies me it 1 in bnth Places with a C. which

15 tme Lzm;;
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Mr, Apton, Ts it in all Places with a €' 2

CL of Arr. 1 have look’d in two Places, and
*tis right 3 I’ll look further, if you pleaf:

Mr. Afpton. Pray do, Which be did.

Clof Ar. Itiswitha C in all Places.

Mr. D. Recorder. 'The Clerk tells me 1t is the
fame, and right in every Place, and he has look’d
over all the Indi&ment, as to the Matter.

Mr., Afbton, Then, Sir, 1 fubmit to it

Mr. D. Recorder. Make Proclamation for Si-
lence.  Which was done.

Mr. D. Recorder. My Lord Preflon, or rather
Sir Richard Grabme, and Mr: Fobu Afbton, Ye
have been Indicted, Atraigned, and Convicted
of High-Treafon againft their prefent Majeities
King William and Queen Mary, whom God pre-
ferve, Ye have had a long, a fair, and favour-
able Trial, as any Perfons that ever have: been
tried at this Bar.

The Jury that has paffed upon your Lives and
Deaths has convicted you ; and the Court are now
to do their laft A&, which is to pronounce that
Sentence thar the Law does mflit upon fuch
Crimes as ye {tand convicted of,

[t 15 a great Trouble to me to pronounce a
Judgment that 1s fo heavy upon you; but I muft
fay, the Evidence that has been givenagainit you,
was fo clear, and, I fuppofe, not only convincing
to the Twelve Men that tried you, buttoall By-
ftanders, that I can do it with that Sausfaction
that becomes one who is intrufted with the King’s
Juftice, that the Law may obtain, and that there
fhould be no Interruption of Juftice. And the
Sentence that the Law has declared fhould be pro-
nounced tn this Cafe, is this:

That Xe do refpeftively go to the Place from
whence Ye cames from thence lo be drown
upoin a Sledge o the Place of Execution, to be
there banged up by the Neck, to be cut dowort
while Ye vre yet alive, to bave your Hearts
and Bowels taken out before your Faces, and
your Mewmbers cut off and burint, Your Heads
[eveied from your Bodies, Your Bodies divided
into four Quarters, Your Heads and Bodies re-
fpefiively to be difpofed of according to the
King’s Will and Pleafure 5 and the Lord bave
Mercy upon your Souls.

Then the Prifoners were conveyed away to
Newgate, the Place from whence they came.
Lord Prefton obtained a Pardon; but Mr.
Afbten was executed on the 28th of Faunary.

HE Queen having remitted that Part of
Sentence, as to Drawing and Quartering,
he went in a Coach, with two Divines, to Tyburn,
where he was executed, and his Body given to his
Relations to bury. He delivered this Paper to

the Sheriff,

Mr, Sheriff,

Having obferved, that the Methods of making
Speeches at the Place of Execution, were not
always attended with the defigned Succefies ; and
thinking it better to employ my laft Minutes in
Devotion, and Holy Communion with my God,
I have prepared this Paper to leave in yourHands,
as well to affert my Principles, as to teftify my
Innocency.

As to my Religion, I profefs, by God’s Grace,
to die in the Faith into which I was baptized,

Vot 1IV.
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that of the Church of Eugland, in whofe Commu-
nion (nothing doubting of my Salvation, thro®
the Merits of my Saviour) I have always thought
myfelf fafe and happy. According to her Princi-
ples, and late much efteemed Doétrine (tho’ now -
unhappily exploded) I have regulated my Life;
believing myfelf obliged, by my Religion, to look
upon my rightful, lawful Prince (whatever his
Principles were, or s Practices might be) as
God’s Vicegerent, and accountable, (if guilty of
Male-Admuniftration) to God only, from whom
he received his Power; and always believing it o
be contrary to the Laws of God, the Church,
and the Realm, upon any Pretence whatfoever,
to take up Arms againft him: And let all the
World take Notice in this Belief I die. But I
have more particular Obligations to the King, my
Mafter, whom I had the Honour to ferve, and
recetved many fignal Favours from him, for 16
Years paft ; fo that Gratitude (a Thing not much
efteem’d at this Time) as well as Duty and Reli-
gion, commanded the utmoft Service I could pay
him, And when I had thefe Confiderations, That
we were born his Liege Subjects 3 That we had
folemnly profefled our Allegiance, and often con-
firm’d 1t with Oaths; That his Majelty’s Ufage,
after the Prince of Orange’s Arrival, was very hard,
fevere, and (I may fay) unuft; and, That alf
the new Methods of fettling this Nation, have
hitherto made it more miferable, poor, and more
expofed to foreign Enemies ; and, That the Re-
higton we pretend to be fond of preferving, is now
much more than ever, likely to be deftroyed :
There feemed to me no Way to prevent the Im-
pending Evils, and fave thefe Nations from Po-
verty and Deftruétion, but the calling Home our
injur’d Sovereign; who, as a true Father of his
Country, has (notwithiftanding all his Provoca-
tions and Injuries,) a natural Love and Tender-
nefs for all his Subjets. And Iam fo far from
repining at the Lofs of my Life, that had I Ten
thoufand, T fhould rather think mylfelf obliged to .
facrifice them all, than omit any Juft and honeft
Means to promote fo good and neceffury a Work.,
And T advife and defire all my Fellow-Subjets to
think of their Duty, and turn to their Allegiance,
before the fevere Judgments of God overtake ’em
for their Perjury and Rebellion : But certainly the
Good and Intereft of thefe Nations, abltradted
from ail other Confiderations, will ¢’er long con-
vince them of the Neceffity of doing ic.

Having thus frankly declared my Principles, I
know the Inference will be, that I have acted ac-
cordingly, and confequently, that I am now juitly
condemn’d: But, as I ingenuoufly own the In-
ference, fo I as pofitively deny the Confequence ;
for whatever my Inclinations, or Acltngs have
been, yet, as to the Matter I was fr:ntﬂnced.tu die
for, I declare myfelf innocent. And I will ap-
peal, even to the Judges themfclves, whether or
no, upon my Trial, there appeared the leait Proof
that I knew a Tittle contained in the Papers; but
Prefumptions were with the Jury thought fuffi-
cient to find me guilty, tho’ I am told I am the
firft Man that ever was condemned forEigh- T'rea-
fon upon bare Sufpicion or Prefumption; and that
contrary to my Lord Coke’s, and other eminent

Lawyers Opinions. The Knowledge of my own
Innocency, as to the Indictment and Charge

againft me, was That thatarm’d me with fo much
Affurance, and occafioned my cafting my Life up-
on the firft twelve Men of the Pannel, without.

Qqgq 2 challénging
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challenging any. But tho’ I have, I think, juftRea-
fon to complain of the fevere Charge given by the
Jadges, and hard Meafure I have received 3 not to
mention my clofe Imprifonment, the hafty and
violent Proceedings againft me, nor the Induflry
us'd in the Return of fitting Perfons to pals upon
me; the denying me a Copy of the Pannel, {ge.
Yet, as I beg for Pardon and Forgivenels at
the Hands of God, Ido moft heartily pray for,
and forgive them, ‘and all my Enemies, all the
World 3 nay, even that Judge and Juryman who
did {o fignally, (contrary to common Juftice) ex-
pofe themfelves to deftroy me. But let the Will

of God be done, I rely wholly upon his Mercy,
and the Merits of my blefled Saviour, for Salva-

tion; I do chearfully and intirely refign myfelf
into his Hands, as into the Hands of a faithful
Creator, in fure and certain Hopes of a happy

Refurreétion.
Blefs, prote¢t and ftrengthen, O Lord God,

my good and gracious King and Mafter: In thy
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due Time let the Virtue, Goodnefs, and Typno.
cency of the Queen, my Miftrefs, make al} their
Enemies blufh, and filence the wicked and Uhjut
Calumnies that Malice and Envy hate taifg
acainft her, Make her and thefe Nations happy
in the Prince of #ales ; whom, from uhanfiver.
able and undoubted Proofs, I know to be her Son,
Reftore them all, when thou feeft fit, to their juit
Rights, and on fuch a Bottom as may fupport and
eftablith the Church of Euglend, and once more
make her flourifh, notwithftanding what the hatl,
received of late from her prevaricating Sons. For-
give, forgive, O Lord, all my Enemies 3 blefs al}
my Friends; comfort and fupport my dear affi&-
ed Wife, and poor Babes 3 be thou a Hufband and
a Father to them ; for their Sakes only I could have
withed to have lived ; but pardon that Wifh, O
good God, and take my Soul into thy everlafting

Glory. Admen. (a)
F. Ahten,
() See State Trials, Vol. VIIL. p. 464, 46s.
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CXLIX. The Trial of HENRY HARRISON, af the
Old-Bailey, for the Murder of Andrew Clenche, DocFor
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Wediefday, April 6, 1692.

( Lord Chief Juftice FHolt,
Judges prefent ;Lord Chict Baron Atkins,
Mr. Jultice Nevill

PHATHE Keeper of the Prifon of Newsare, did,

according to Order of the Court, being
then fate, bring up the Body of Hewry Harvifon,
Gent, 1o the Seflions-Houfe in the OM-Baily,
Londonr, who being at the Bar, was Arraigned
upon an Indictment of Felony and Murther,
found that Day by the Grand Jury for the City
of Laidon, in Manner following :

%}‘3' Eury Hayrifon, hold up thy
-

L 3

Cl. of dr. 3
=y Hand, 77hich be did. Yo
vt ftand  Indifted by  the
&3 Name of Hewry Harrifon,
late of Lounden, Gent. for
that you, not having the Fear of God before
your Liyes, bur being moved and feduced by
the Inttigation of the Devil, the fourth Day
of Famary, in the third Year of the Reign
of our Sovereign Lord and Lady, King
#idiain and Queen. Mary, of England, &c. a-
bout Eleven of the Clock in the Night of the
lame Day, with Force and Arms, &c, at London,
viz, mn the Parith of St. Peter, Corubill, in the
Ward of Lime-flreet, in Londor afarefaid, being in
a certain Coach with one Audrew Clenche, Doftor
of Phyfick, and a certain Man yet unknown, in
and upon the faid Audrezw Clenche, in the Peace of
God, and of our Sovereign Lord and Lady the
King and Queen, then and there being, violent-
ly, felonioufly, and of your Malice before-
thought, did make an Affwle, And that. you

the faid Heiry Harrifon, with the Help and Afli-
ftance of the fid Man unknown, with a Pocket
Handkerchief, witha Coal in the fame, being
put, of the Value of Two-pence, about the
Neck of him the tad Audrezo Clenche, then and
there felonioufly, voluntarily, and of your Ma-
lice before-thonght, did put, falten and bind;
and that you the faid Heiry Harrifon, with the faid
Handkerchief with the Coal aforefaid in it, by
you the fad Hewry Harvifon, with the Help and
Affiftance of the atorefaid Man unknown, about
the Neck of the faid Audresv Clenche then as afore-
faid, put faftened and bound, him the faid Andrez
Clenche, then and there with Force of Arms, £,
Felonioully, Voluntarily, and of your Malice
betore-thought, did choak and ftrangle, by Rea.
fon of which Choaking and Strangling of the
faid Andrews Clenche by you the faid Henry Hayri-
Jouy with the Handkerchief aforefaid, with the
Coal as aforefaid put in it, he the fid Audrew
Clenche inftantly died: So that you the faid Henyy
Hayrifon, with the Help and Affiftance of the faid
Man unknown, him the faid dudreww Clenche, the
faid fourth Day ¢f Famnary in the Year afore-
fard, at the Parith and Ward aforefaid, in Man-
ner and Form aforefaid, felontoufly, voluntarily,
and of your Malice before-thobght, did Kill and
Murther, againft the Peace of our Sovereign Lord
and Lady the King and Queen now, their Crown
and Dignity,

How fay you, Hemy Harrifon, are yoir Guiley
of this Felony and Murther whereof you ftand in-
dicted, or not Guilty ? '

Mr. Harrifon. Not Guilty in. Thought, Word
nor Deed,

CL. of 4ré. Culpieft, How will you- be tried 2

Mr. Harrifin.
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M. Harrifen. By God and my Country.
Cl. of Ar. God fend you a good Deliverance.

Then the [aid Mr. Harrifon was faken away from
the Bar by the Keeper of Newgate.,

And afterwards the fame Day, dbont Eleven of
the Clock in the Morning, the faid Hénry Har-
vifon was brought to the Bar, and be defired
the Cotrt that be wight then be tried, which
was granted, aid thofe Perfons who were
seturi’d upon the Fury were called over twices
and theiy Appearaices recorded.

Cl. of dr, You Hemy Harrifon, Thefe Men
that you fhall hear call’d, and Perfonally do
appear, arc to pafs between our Sovereign Lord
and Lady the King and Queen, and you, upon
Trial of your Life and Death ; if therefore you
will challenge them, or any of them, your Time

is to challenge them as they come to the Book to
be fworn, and before they be fworn.

L.C. . Holt. M. Harriforty, you may chal-
lenge fuch of the Jury as you fhall think ft be-
fore they be fwora.

Then the Fury was called and forn, and ther
wire counted s and the Twelve fworn were thefe
whofe Nawmes follow :

YURORS.

Jotir Lawford
Nicholas Wildeboaye

Fobn Rall
Nothanrel Houlton

Micharl Pindar Robert Williamfon
Faines Hulbert Williem Merrider
Fofeph Howe Thoinas Simpfor

Richard Chewone | Thoinas Pakeman

Then Proclamation for Information and Evideice
cvas wade as is ufual,

Mr., Harrifn, My Lord, T have made no
Challenges, becaufe I do believe the Jury to be
honeft Men.

Cl. of . —— iy Harrifon, Hold up thy
Hand. (Jbich be did.)

Gentlemen, you that are {worn, look upon the
Piitoner, and heurken to his Caufe.  He ftands
indicted by the Name of Henry Harrifon, lare of
Loidon, Gent, &, [he reads the Indictment.]
Upon this Indictment he hath been Arraigned,
and thereunto hath pleaded Not Guilty ; and for
his Trial hath put himfelf upon God and his

Country, which Country you are. Your Charge
is to inquire whether he be Guilty of this Felony

and Murder whereof he ftands indifted, or Not
Guilty, If you find that he is Guilty, you are
to inquire what Goods and Chattels, Lands or
Tenements he had at the Time of the Felony and
Murder commicted, or at any time fince, If you
find him not Not Guilty, you are to inquire whe-
ther he fled for it.  If you find that he fled for it,
you are to inquire of his Goods and Chattels, as
if you found him Guilty. 1f you find him Not
Guilty, nor that he did fly for it, you are to fay
o, and no more; and hear your Evidence.

Mr, Darnell, ——= My Lord, Mr. Harrifon’s
Agents or Friends have, fince the laft Seffions,
made or conveyed away a young Man that was
a Principal Evidence againft him,

L. C, ¥. That is a very ill Thing, and if it be

prov’d, it will no way conduce to Mr. Harrifon’s
Advantage.
- Mr. Harrifon. My Lord, 1 know nothing of
It. But, my Lord, one of my Witneffes, that
would have been material for me, 15 lately dead,
Sir Edward Hungerford’s Son,

Mr., Darnell. May it pleafe your Lordfhips,
and you Gentlemen that are fworn: I am of
Council for the King and Queen againft the
Prifoner ar the Bar, who ftands indicted for the
Murder of Dr., Audrews Clenche, which was as har.
barous & Murder as any that hath been commit-
ted in this Age. And confidering 1t was done in
the Dark, I think there will be given as clear an
Evidence of it againft Mr, Harrifox the Prifoner,
as can be expefted, And that it was upon
this Occafions One Mrs, Vanwicke 1 Widow (be-
tween whom and Mr, Haopvifon there was a great
Kindnefs) prevailed with Dr, Clenche, to whom
fhe was indebted Twenty Pounds, to lend her fo
much -more as would make it up One hundred
and Twenty Pounds, and to take a Mortgage of
a Houfe of hers in Buckingham-Court near Charing-
Crofs for his Security 3 and Mr. Harrifon was pre-
fent with Mrs, Vanwicke at the lending of the reft
of the Money, and executing of the Mortgage,
as he was wont to be at the Management of her
Affairs; but when the Time came that it was to
be repaid, the Doctor could not get his Money,
and Mrs, Vanwicke having but an Eftate for Life
1n the Houfe, and having long delayed the Doéor,
he brought an EjeCtment for the recovering of
the Houle, upon which the Prifoner came to
Dr, Clencbe, and abufed him with very {currilous
Language, and his Paflion growing higher, he
laid his Hand upon his Sword, and would have
arawn it, and if it had not been for one Mr. Fobu-
foiz, “twas thought he would have kill’d the Do-
Ctor at that time; fo that the Doctor delired Mr.
Johitfonn to take the Bufinefs upon himfelf, and
to at in his own Name, he was fo much afraid
of hin. And 1t will be proved further to you,
that at another time the Prifoner fud, That Dr,
Clenche was a Rogue and a Villain, and deferved
to have his Throat cut, And fome time after this,
Mrs. Vanwicke would have borrowed fome more
Money of the Doétor, but he rcfufed to lend
it her, whereupon fhe acquainting the Prifoner
wich it, he faid, Leave him to me (Madam) Dl
warrant you, I’ll manage him ; he 1s a Rogue,
and deferves to have his Throat cut.  And after-
wards, about St. Thomas’s Day laft, the Prifoner
went to Mrs. 2 the Uenant, who dwelt in
the Houfemortgaged to Dr, Clenche, and defired
of Mrs. /¢ to have fome Money for Mrs, ai-
wicke, and it {hould be dilcounted in Part of the
then next Chriffimas Rent, But the faid Mrs, /7gft
refufed to pay_him any, telling him, that fhe and
her Husband were forbid by Dr, Clenche and
the Ground Landlord, to pay any more to Mrs.
Vanwicke, and thercupon the Priloner exprefied
his further Malice againft the Doctor, and faid,
He is a great Rogue, and a Villain, and deferves
to have his Throat cut, and will not die in his
Bed, And, Gentlemen, foon after the Prifoner
began to put his malicious Defign againft the
Doétor in Execution, and the Method he took
was firft to change his Lodgings ; for on the Day
before Chriffmas Eve laft, he took new Lodgings
at one Mr. Garway’s in Threadveedle-Street, near
the Old Exchange, attended by a Foot-Boy, pre-
tending himfelf to be a Parliament-Man, and
that he was juft then come out of the Country,
and lay in his Lodgings there every Night, until
the firlt Day of Fanuary following, but lay out
that Night, and the two next Nights following,.
And whilft he lodged at this Mr, Garway’s this
Matter happen’d, which does conducg fomewhat

towards
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towards the Difcovery of this Murder; One
Evening the Prifoner being in his Chamber there,
and one Mrs. Fackfon, the Daughter of Mrs. Gar-
way, making a Fire for him, he did take out his
Handkerchief, and held it before the Fire to dry
it, which fhe took grear Notice of, becaufe it
was coarfe and dirty, and not fit for his %nhty
(as fhe thought) it being made of ordinary Indiai
Stuff, like her Mother’s Maid’s Apron. And
Gentlemen, this very Handkerchief was the
fame with which the Murder was committed,
and this Mrs. Fackfon will fwear 1t to be the fame ;
for 1t 15 a very remarkable one, and 1t will be
produced to you. And we fhall thew you further,
‘That on the third Day of Fannary (being the Day
before this Murder was committed) he caufed 2
fham Letter to be left for him at his Lodgings at
this Mr, Garway’s, as written from a Iriend of
his that was fick in the Country, carneftly prefi-
ing him to come quickly down to him: And we
fhall prove, that the fame Evening, he bemng with
Mrs. Fanwicke in Woodffreci-Compter, did again
threatenDr.Clonche, and faid, That he wasa Rogue,
and he would bave his Blood. And upon the
Fourth Day of Femary 1alt, he again changed
his Lodgings, and took new ones at one Mr.
Fores’s a Cane-Chair-Maker in St. Peul’s Church-
yard, and therc he pretended himfelf to bea Coun-
try Gentleman, juft then come out of Cumberfand,
and brought i a Portmanteau Trunk thither
And the fame Day he fent a Letter to Mrs, Gar-
way, where he had lodged before, acquainting
her, That he was gone out of Town for a Week
or ten Days. And, to give you farther Satis-
faction, we fhall prove, that upon the fame fourth
Day of Faimary, in the Night of which this un-
fortunate Gentleiman was murder’d, the Prifoner
was at one Mr. Robert Humflor's Lodgings at the
Golden Key in Fleetflceet, over-againft Fetter-Lane
End, at near Nine of the Clock at Night, and be-
ing afk’d by Mr. Hunflox to ftay and fup with him,
he fuid, he could not, for he had been about ear-
neft Bufinefs that Day, which was to be done
that Night, and that 2 Gentleman {tayed for him
in the Street, to go with him about it, and fo he
went away.  And foon after, about Nine of the
Clock the fame Night, two Men ftanding in
Flegt-fireet, at Fetter- Lane End, call’d for a Coach,
and ask’d the Coachman if he knew Dr, Cleuche,
who dwelt in Brownlow-fireet in Holborny and the
Coachman reply’d, he did know the Street, but
not the Doctor : whereupon they went into the
Coach, and ordered him to drive to the End of
Brownlpw-fiyeet 3 and when they came thither, one
of them called to the Coachman, and bad him go
to Dr, Clenche’s, and tell him, that two Gentlemen
in a Coach, at the End of the Street, defired him
to go with them to a Patient that was very fick ¢
which the Coachmin did. And he found the
Dottor in his Night-Gown and Slippers, and
juit 2 going to Bed 3 but he immediately dreffed
himfelt, and went to them into the Coach. And
it fell out very happily for the further Difcovery
of this Murder, that while this Coach ftood
at the End of Brownlow-fireet, a young Gentle-
woman {tanding at her Door near it, and
fancying that while the Coachman went on the
Errand, the Gentlemen would {lip out of the
Coach (T think they call it Bilking) fhe watch’d
them. And a Lamp that lighted crofs Holborn,
over-againft Brownloww-ffreet End, and another
about the Middle of Brownloy-fireet, gave fuch a
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Light into the Coach, that fhe plainly faw ope
of the Men that fat i it, and fee him look oyt
of the Coach after the Coachman, and hesrd
him fwear at the Coachman, becaufe he made
no more Hafte in going to the Doctor’s Houfe .
and fhe 1s very certain that the Prifoner at the
Bar 1s the fame Perfon that look’d out of the
Coach, and that did fwear at the Coachman,
and 15 more confident of it from the Remarkable-
nefs of his Voice. For fhe hearing of this Muyr-
der, and remembring thefe Circumftances, fhe
went to Newgate to fee the Prifoner, and hearing
his Voice in another Room, before the faw him,
fhe declared to the Perfons that were then with
her, that the Voice fhe then heard, was the Per-
fon’s Voice that fhe faw look out of the Coach,
and that did fwear at the Coachman; and af
terwards, when fhe came into the Room where
the Prifoner was, though with feveral other Men,
{he pointed to im as the Perfon, and fhe hearing
him then fpeak again, declared to the Perfong
with her, that both by his Voice, and by his Coun-
tenance, the knew him to be the fame Man. And,
my Lord, after thofe Gentlemen had gotten the
Dottor into the Coach, one of them called 1o
the Coachman, and bad him make hafte and
drive them to Leaden- Hall- Market, and when they
were come within Holberi-Bars, one of them cal-
led to the Coachman, and bad him drive fafter ;
whereupon the Coachman drove them very faft
throngh Holborn o Leaden-Hall-Market-Gate s
and when he came there, one of them bad him
drive to the Pye without Adgate (before which
Time, without Doubt, the Murder was commit-
ed upon the Dottor, for his Hat was found next
Morning in Holborn, near Fester-Lane End 3 but
the driving fo long about after, is fuppofed 1o be
done, left the Doftor might recover) ; and when
they were come without idgate, one of them
ordered the Coachman to ask there for one Hyiif
a Chyrurgeon ; which he did, and being anfwered,
that no fuch Perfon was there, he ordered the
Coachman to drive back again to Leades-Hall,
and when they came there, one of them called
the Coachman, and gave him three Shillings and
Six-pence, and bad him go into the Market
there to one Hunt a Poulterer, and buy them a
Couple of Fowls, but the Coachman could not
find any Huat a Poulterer ; but however he bought
a Couple of Fowls for three Shillings, and when
he came with them to his Coach, the two Gentle-
inen were gone, and the Doctor left in the Coach,
murder’d, with a Handkerchief tied faft about
his Neck, with a Coal in it (which will be pro-
ved to be the Prifoner’s Handkerchief.) Befides,
there was a Boy in the Street there, who took
Notice of the Coachman’s being fent of an Er.
rand, and faw the two Perfons come out of the
Coach in great Hafte, and he going towards the
Coach before they went out of it, one of them
did fwear at him to be gone, and of him the
Boy toole moft Notice, and was as pofitive as
any Man can be to the Perfon of one that he
never faw before, that the Prifoner now at the
Bar was one of them, and was the Perfon that
did then fivear at him; but this Witnefs is fpi-
rited away, and cannot be heard of, although he
hath been defcribed in the Gazette, and diligent
Search and Enquiry has been made after him.
But we have his Examination upon Oath before
the Coroner ; and we muft fubmit to the Court

how far that thall be admitted as Evidence.
Gen-
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Gentlemen, we will <all ourWitnefies, and if with Mis, Panwicke, in 2 Bond to perform Cove-

thEy prove all this Matter, 1 -believe every Man
here will be fatisfied:that the Prifoner -at the Bar
i's'guilty of this bafe Murder.

Mr., Darnel. Pray call and fwear Mr. George
Iff;lgma;'ﬁ_ ( Hho-was ﬁz:aﬁz with otbers, )

Mt. Darnel.  Pray, Mr. Wigmore, tell my Lord
and the Jury what you know.of any Money thac
waslent by Dr. Clenche, and to whom,

Mr. George Higmore. May it pleafe your Lord-
thip, there was a Draught of a-Mortgage from
Mrs, Vanwicke to Dr. Clenche, made by a Gentle-
man of Grays-Iun, for the Sum of One hundred and
twenty Pounds, and I ingrofs’d it; and I paid
by the Doftor’s Order, above threefcore Pounds
of the Money, and the reft of it-was fatished be-
fore 3 and .upon Sealing of the Mortgage for the
Money, Mr. Harrifon, and one Mr. Rowe, fell
out about their Dividend of the Money, and
called one another il Names; and Mr. Rowe
produced a Bill of what he had done and laid out
tor Coach-hirejand otherThings for Mis, Vanwicke,
and Mr, Harrifen and he had hish Words about it,
and called one another Rogues; fo I told them,
if they conld not agree, I would put the Moncy
up again, and carry it Home ; but Mrs. Vairwicke
and they did agree at Iaft, and fealed the Mort-
aaoe, and 1paid the Money 5 and Mrs. Vairsicke,
and Mr., Harrifon took out twenty Pounds of the
Money, and paid 1t to Mr, Rewe; and after
Mr. Rewe was gone,, they deflired me to go with
them to the 2Zoung Devil Tavern, and they both
ufed hard Expreflions there agamit Mr., Rowe.

L. C. f. Who was the Mortgage made to?

Mr. Wigmore. My Lord, it was made to Dr.,
Clenche for One hundred and twenty Pounds,

Mr. Harrifoin. Pray, Sir, will you tell the Jury
how much Money the Gentlewoman had, and
it Mr. Rowe had not {tept between me and her,
I had not been in Queftion,

Mr. Wigiore.  Mrs, Vamwicke acknowledged
Lhat the Money I paid her, made vp One hundred
and twenty Pounds,

L.C.7. What did you hear the Prifoner fuy
agandt Dy, Clesiche ¢

Mr., Wigmere. My Lord, I do fay that he was
very troublefome to the Dottor.

L.C. 7. Were there any Reproaches caft upon
the DoCtor at that Time ?

Mr. WWigmore. No, my Lord, only upon Rowe,
becaule he was a Truftec,

Mzr. Daruel. Did you hear him fay any thing
againft the Dottor ?

Mr. Wigimoie. Indeed I cannot particularly fay,

L. C.¥. Heisupon his Oath, and he is fen-
(ible and underftands the Quettian.

+ Mr, Wiginore, Hedid fay very ugly Words, and
when I met him afterwards in the High-Way,

he was very hufty, and I thought he would have
drawn his Sword upon me.

L.C.F. What did he fay of the Doétor ?

Mr. Wigmore. 1 cannot fay particularly what
~ he faid,

L.C.¥. Stand down.

Mr, Darnel, Call Mr. Theiias Fobufon, (Whe
was fuority aind flood up.)

Mr. Darnel, Sir, Pray give the Court an Ac-
count what you know concerning this Matter.

Mr. Fobufor, My Lord, I believe T fhall fay

nothing that Mr. Harvifere will contradict ; I was
Attorney for Dr. Clenche between him and Mrs.
Vanwicke, and 1 fued Mr. Rowe, that was bound

nants for'Re-payment of the Money lent her by
Dr. Clentbe upon Mortgage; and I advifed the
Dr. and told him, Don’t ‘et us trouble the Te.
nant, but let us take Rowe firlt; and I fued Rowe,
and had him arrefted, and after fome time, I faw
that the Mortgage muft do oor Bufinefs, for Rowe
could not pay the Money ; whereupon I caufed a
Declaration in Ejectment to be delivered againft
Mrs. Vamwicke’s Tenane of the Houfe mortgaged
by her to Dr, Clenche, and then Mr. Harrifon came
to me, and he exprefled himielf againft the Do-
Ctor after a ftrange rate, and Jaid his'Hand upon
his Sword 5 fo, my Lord, I faid to him, Whata
Fool do you make of yourfelf? muft none go
to Law, but they muft ask your leave? I fyppofe
Mr, Harrifor cannot deny this, Then Mr. Har-
rifon. preferred a Peticion to the Lords Commil-
fioners of the Grear Seal for Mrs, Vanwicke, and
thereby fuggefted to their Lordfhips, that fhe was
wronged 1n the Parchafe, and in the Morrgage
Money, and that twenty Pounds of it was a for-
mer Dcbt of her Husband’s ; and he finding fhe
could have no Relief before them without Pay-
ment of the Mortgage Money, be grew tronble-
fome s yet fays I, Mr. Haorrifor, What The hath
done, I cannot help, but if fhe would pay the
reft, Itold him I would abate her twenty Pounds,
and the Intereft Money alfo.

Mr, Daiiel. Pray, S, did the Doctor delire
you to act for him in your own Name, becaufe
he had no mind to meetr wich Mrs, Fumwicke and
the Prifoner ¢ |

Mr, Fobufon. The Doctor did find himielf too
deeply concerned with them, and he did not

care t0 have to do with them; whether it was
tgat he was afraid of his Life, I cannot fay;

but he faid to me, Pray, Sir, go on, I will put
all into your Hands, and I will truft you with
all the Affair, and let them come to you, and
not trouble me, own 1t to be your own; and I
told him I feared none of themn, and the Do-
Ctor gave out, That he had made over all to me,
although he had nor, and upon this, I fear, comes
this unfortunate Bulinefs, and the Dottor’s Lady
muft look after it herfelf.

L. C.¥. Whacdid he fay when he had Jad
lus Hand upon his Sword 12 your Study ¢

Mr. Febufor. He faid the Dr., had cheated the
Widow, and he faid, That he would be revenged
on him, as near as my Memory will ferve me; 1
fuppofe he will not deny it; whether he did this
in a Paffion, or to affight the Dottor or no, 1
cannot tell, |

L. C. ¥. Was that before you offered to abate
the ewenty Pounds ?

Mr. Fobufen. It was before1 offered to abate it.

Mr. Harrifon. How long was it before Dr.
Clenche was murdered ! _

Mr. Febufon. 1think it was about a Fortmght,
or three Weeks, or a httle more. _

Mr. Harrifoir. I never threatned the Dottor 1n
my Life, but I faid, Roewe had been a Villan, and
a Cheat, and he and Rswe were the Mew, and T
thall make it appear that the Dr. never wrong’a
the Widow. ‘

L. C. ¥ How came Rowe to be intrufted or
concerned with the Money ¢

Mr. Fobufon. My Lord, Mr. Coruelins Vandinair-
ker, a Merchant, gave a Legacy of five hundred
Pounds to the Widow Panwicke and her Children,

" and
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and Mr. Rewz was a Truftee on the Purchafe, and
had by that the Management of the Affair.

Mr. Daruell, Call Mr. George Howard.

(Who being fuwority Jlood up.)

Mr. Daruell, Mr. Howard, Give the Court an
Account of what you know concerning the Pri-
foner’s threatning Dr. Clenche. .

Mr. Heward. My Lord, Iwas at Foe’s Coftee-
houfe near Warwick-Houfe in Holbori, fome con-
fiderable time before Dr. Clenche was murdered,
where Mr, Harrifsr ufed feveral very virolent
Expreflions againlt Dr, Cliche; among others,
one was, That he was a Rogue and a Ralcal,
and deferved to have his Throat cut. Mrs,
Vairwicke was then in Company, and they both
faid, That they then came from Dr. Clenchbe’s.

Mr. Dainell, You are fure he faid that Dr.
Cleitche deferved to have his Throat cut?

Mr. Howard, Yes: He taid, That Dr, Clichey
deferved to have his Throat cut.

Mr. Harpifen, Who was [ talking to?

Mr. Howard, You were talking to Mrs, Mary
Sb“{ﬁr

Mr. Dasnell, Call Mrs, Mory Sheriff.

(WWho wwas forn, and flood up.)

Mrs. Sheriff. My Lord, Mrs, Fanwicre came
to my Houfe with Mr, Herrifon, and defired me
to go with her to Dr, Cluche’s Houfe 3 and when
we came there, fhe defired Lim to let her have
Twenty Pounds more, and he faid, No; If his
Houfe were full of Money, he would not lend
her any more, {o long as the kept Mr, Harrifor
Company, for he would fpend 1t; and he advi.
{ed her to be a Gentleman’s Houle-keeper, and
he would help her to a Place; and told her withal,
That {he owed him One hundred and twenty
Pounds, for which he would rake One hundrgd
Pounds; and we lefe Mr, Harrifon behind vs at
my Houfe, and did not take him with us, be-
caufe we were afraid he might anger the Doctor,
and fall out with him; fo when we came back,
Mr. Harrifen asked NMrs, Pawicke, what Dr, Cliche
faid 3 Why, fays 1., he faicth, That he will not
lend me any more Money while I keep you
Company, for you will fpend 1t, and that I muft
go to Service. To Service! fud Mr, Harrifon,
God damn him, have a Perfon of your Quality
go to Service! he deferves to have his Throat
cut; let me alone, Il manage him as never any
Man was managed ; and {o away they went to-
oether.

Mr. Hariifon.  Did not you fay, That as you
hop’d to be faved, that I was innocent of the
Thing ?

L.C.7. She does not accufe you of doing the
Fa&t, but gives an Account of fome Expreffions
that pafled from you. '

Mrs, Sheriffs You were always talking againit
Dr. Cleitche, and you fuid, God damin him, he
was an old Rogue, and that Mrs, Zaiwicke was
almoft flarved to Death,

Mr, Hairifon. Rowe, Rowe, T meant, my Lord,

(The Prifoner then being in a Paffon.)

L. C. F. Mr. Harrifon, do not fall into a Paflion;
it may be more to your Advantage in the malk-
ing your Defence, if you keep your Temper.

L. C.¥. Wimefs, what were the Words that
he faid againft Dottor Cleiche ¢

Mius. Skeriff. Why, he fpeaking of Dolor
Clenche, faid to Mrs, Vanwicke, God damn him,
would he have a Perfon of your Quality go to
Service! he deferves to have his Throat cut;
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Well, Madam, fays he, be contented, I} manage
him as never-any Man was managed.

Mr. Harrifor. What had you for your Swear-
ing ?

Coroner for the King and Queen. Witnefs, he
asketh you, If you had any thing for your Swear-
Ing againft him ?

Mius. Sheriff. No, 1 had nothing, neither have
I nced of any thing ? I had not fo much as my
Coach-hire. '

Mr. Darnell. Call Mrs. Elizabeth IVeft.

(HWha <was fworn.)

Mr. Darnell. Miftrefls, give an Account to the
Court, what you know about the Prifoner’s com.
ng to demand Rent of you, and what paffed.

Mys. /gft. May 1t pleafe your Lordfhip, this
Gentleman, the Prifoner, came to me two or
three Days before St. Thoiias’s Day laft, and
defired me to give him fome Rent for Mis,
Vairwicke, and 1 told him I had no Power to pay
hum, becanfe I was warned by Dr. Clacke to
pay no more; fays he to me again, Dr, Cluche
and Roie, are great Rogues, and great Villains,
Siry fays T to him again, I believe that the Do-
Ctor Is a very honeflt Man: No, fays Mr, Her-
rifeir, he 15 a grear Villain, and he will never
die in his Beds which of them he meant, My,
Rowe or Dr. Clnche, 1 cannot tell.  And Mis,
Vanwicke, and Mr. Herrifon, a little time before
that, prefled me to let them have fome Shop
Goods in Part of her Rent, to grow due, and
(he made great Complaint, that her Children
were ready to flarve, and I then told them, that
Mr. Fobuforr had fore-warned me to pay more
Rent to Mrs, Vanwicke, and if I did, I fhould
pay it again and therefore I would not pay any
more Rent to her, or deliver her any Goods,
until the had agreed with Mr. Fobufon 5 and then
Mr. Harrifon faid, that Mr. Fobufor was a great
Vilfain and a great Rogue, and that they had
all combined together to chear the Widow.
Apg Mr. Fobifon being at my Houfe, Mus, Vo
wicke tell upon him in a great Rage, and faid, fhe
would tare his Throat out, and laid hold on him,
and Mr. Fobifoir got from her, and went away in
great Hafte,  And the laft time I faw Dr. Clenche,
I prefled very hard upon him, to let Mrs. Van-
witke have more Money ; and the Doctor faid,
that fhe would never do any good with ir, for
fhe {pent it all upon Mr. Harrifony and I withed
him to let her have twenty Pounds more, and he
faid, That he advifed her to go to Service, and
that he had withed her to a Service of Twenty
Pounds a Year, and fhe abufed him for it.

L. C. F. What Cloaths had the Prifoner on ?

Mis. #74ff. My Lord, he had an old Thread-
bare black Cloth Suit of Cloaths on, which look-
ed very fhabby.

Mr. Harrifer. What Religion are you of,
Miftrefs #

Mrs, 7728, 1 was born and bred a’ Proteftant.

‘Mr, tairifon. 1 believe you are a Papift, and .
will fwear any thing; you keep Roman Ca-
tholicks in your Houfe, they have murdered
Dr. Cleiche, for onght I kno.

L. C.}. Did Mr. Herrifon ever lodge in your
Hounle ?

Mrs. g, No, my Lord, 1 have none but
Perfons of Quality lodge in my Houfe, and
they belong to the prefent Government. -

Ml‘. Deruell Call Aun Hatfou,

(I7ho was fworn. ) -
Mr. Darnell.
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Mr. Darnell. Pray, tell my Lord and the Jury,
what you know of Mr. Harrifor’s taking of Lodg-
ings at Mr. Garway’s Floufe, and when it was ?

Ame Watfon. He came about fix a Clock at
Nighe, the Day before Chriffmas-Eve Jalt, to-my
Mafter’s, Mr. Garway’s Houfe, and told us, that
he was newly come out of the Country; and
lodged there that Night, and fo he did unul
and upon the laft Night of December; and on
the firft Day of Fanuary he went out, and ftaid
out that Night ; and on the Swnday, the third of
Yamuary laft, at Night, he came again with a
Perfon with him, and fetch’d away his Port-
manteau-Trunk and Things, and paid for his
Lodging 3 and in his Abfence there was a Let-
ter left tor him, which I gave him, and he faid,
it came out of the Country, and that he had a
Friend fick-in the Country, and did intend to go
down to fee him, being one from whom he ex-
pected a Legacy, and he left that Letter on the
Kitchen Window, and on the Mauday after, being
the fourth Day of Faanary laft, he fent a Letter,
fignifying he was gone out of Town.

(Then the Letter was produced, marked with the
Penny-Poft Mark.)

Mr. Darnell. Who knows Mr. Harrifon’s Hand ?
Mr, Fobnfon, take that Letter and look upon 1,
and tell the Court 1f you think it to be Mr, Har-
rifon’s Hand.

( My, Johnfon takes the Letter and looks upon 11.)

Mr., Yobufin. My Lord, I believe 1t to be
Mr, Harrifan’s Hand.

Mr, Darnell. My Lord, I defire that the Let-
ter may be read.

L.C. % Mr. Clerk of the Peace, read the

Letter 3 and the Subfcription firft,
(Clerk of the Peace reads.)

To Mrs. Garraway, af the Hand and Apple i
Threadneedie-Street, #ear the Royal-Ex-
change, Prefet.

Mrs. Garraway,

AM ferry it [bould be fuch an Tncowveniency to
I you, as it is, I have left with your Maid,
Three balf Crowns, and if it is not enough, I will
grve you tiore. I am gone out of Town for a Week
or Ten Days, and as foon as I come agaim, I will
wart on you s which is all till I fee yon, froms

Your Friend,

and Servant,

H, Harrifen,

4th Fan. 1691,

Mr. Dariell, Call Mr. Henry Garway¥nd his
Wife. (Who were called aind fworn.)

Mr. Darnell. Mrs. Garieay, take that Letter,
and look upon it, and tell the Court, when you
received It.

Then fhe takes the Lettcy which was produced,
and read as before, and looked upon i,

Mrs, Garway. My Lord, 1 received this Let-
‘er on Monday the 4th Day of Fannary laft,

L C ¥ Wafm, when did he Jeave the
Lodgings, fay you ?

Ame Watfon. He went away the firlt of
Fanvary laft, about nine a Clock in the Morn-
ing, and returned not that Night, but on the
fecond of Famnary laft, he was at my Miltrels’s
Shop again (as my Mifltrels told me) apd he
came about five a Clock on the next Sunday Night
(being the third of Famuary laft) with a Perfon

Vor, IV,
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with him, to my Mafter’s Houfe, and fetch’d
away his Portmanteau-Trunk and Things, and
left Three Half Crowns with me for his Lodg-
ings, which I gave to my Miftrefs.

Mr. Darunell,  Call Mrs. Catherine Fackfon,

(Who was fworn.)

Mr, Darnell. Pray, tell my Lord and the Jury,

what you know concerning Mr. Harrifoi’s coming

to lodge at Mr. Garway’s, and when he went
away, and what you know of any Handkerchief

he had.

Mrs, Fackfor, He came on the Day before
Coriftmas-Eve, to lodge at my Father’s, Mr, Gar-
way’s Houle, and lodged there feveral Nights,
and went away the third of Fannary at Night,
with his Things, but was abfent fome Nights be-
tween his coming and going away, and whilft
he lodged there, 1 obferved a Handkerchief in
s Hand, as I was making a Fire for him in his
Chamber, and the more, becaufe he had faid he
was a Parllament-Man, and 1 thought it more
ke a Seaman’s Handkerchief, than a Parlia-
ment-Man’s, and our Maid had an Apron of the
fame kind of Swff.

(Then the Handlerchief was produced in Court
by the Coroner, awd the Coal in 1t, where-
wilth Dr. Clenche was flrangled.)

Mr, Darnell. Mrs, Fackfon, 1 delire that you
would look upon that Handkerchicf, and tell the
Court what you know of It

Mrs. Fackfon. This is the Handkerchief that
I faw Mr. Harrifon hold to the Fire, when I was
making of it in his Chamber, or very like that
Handkerchief, for I obferved it to be very like
my Mother’s Maid’s Apron.

. (Their a Piece of the Muid’s Apron wwes pro-
duced, and they being comipared, were very
fike. )

Mr. Harrifen, Did you hear me fay, [wasa

Parltament-Man ?

Mrs. Fackfon. Yes, I heard you fay fo.

Mr, Harrifir. Perhaps, you might near my
Boy fay fo,

Mris, Fackfon, Your Foot-Boy fud, you were
a Parliament-Man : And you faid fo yourfelf.

Mr. Darnell, Call Mr, Garway again,

(He appeared.)

Mr. Darnell, Where 1s the Letter you recetv’d
from Mr. Harrifon, {ince he was a Prifoner ?

L. C. ¥, What do you fay about a Letter that
came to your Houfe from the Prifoner ?

Mr., Garway. My Lord, I had this Letter
from him latt Saturday, direfted to my Wife,
and T believe it to be his Hand.

(He produceth the Letier.)
Mr. Darwell, My Lord, I defire that the Let-

ter may be read.
L. C. ¥ Read the Letter, Mr. Tanner,

| (Clerk of the Peace reads.)

To Mys. Garway, at the Hand and Apple 2
Threadneedle-Street, bebind 1he Royal-Ex-

-changge, Prefent.

Mrs. Garway,

Was informed Yefterday, that you are 1o appear

againft me at wext Seffons. L am fare, you
never beard me mention Dr. Clenche, i all your
Life; and if you do, it will look like Melice. My
Lord Chicf Fuftice is fenfible of the Wrong done

me. This is all from
Yaour Servait,

Henry Harnfon,

Rrr L.C ¥
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L.C. ¥. Mr. Harvifon, Did T ever tell you,
That 1 was fenfible of it ?

(To which be made no Reply. )

Mr. Daruell. Call Mr. Fobn Cartwright.

(W#ho was fworn.)

Mr, Darnell. 1 would have you declure, what
.you heard Mr. Harifen fay, concerning Doctor
Clenche.

M, Cartwright. My Lord, upon the Third of
Fannary latt, Mr. Herrifen came to [Voodffreet
Compter ; it was on a Swunday in the Evenmng,
about Five or Six a Clock, I was ftanding In
the Gate, and I lec him in, Affoon as he came
in, he asked how poor Mis. Vamwicks did; fays
he, She hath been wronged of Five Flundred
Pounds within thofe 12 Months: Then 1 let him
mto the Court, and he went into her Chamber
and about half an Hour after, T was fent by my
Mafter, to require fome Chamber-rent of M.
Vanwickey and 1 heard Mr. Harrifonr and fhe at high
Words, and in a great Paffion, and | heard M,
Harvifen fwear, Ged damn his Blood, he would
be reveng'd of that Rogue, and named Clenche
or Vimbe, 1 cannot tell which, and he would
have liis Biood, cre it were long,

Mr, Haprifsn,  Where were you?

7. Carrwright, Ny Lord, I was at the Cham-
ber-door, and there was no Body on that Stde of
the Houfe, but Mr. Heprifon, Mrs, Vaneicke, and
my {cif.

Mr. Darnefl. Call Mrs. Mary Fones.

(IFho was fworn,)

Mr, Dariell. Now, my Lord, T will call one
to prove, where he took a new Lodging, the
very Day the Murder was done,

L. C. J. Carrwright, was that in Mrs. Vanwicke’s
Chamber that you heard him fwear fo?

Mr. Cartzeright. Yes, my Lord, in her Cham-
ber, and nonc was with her, but hc only.

Mr. Dasiell, You, the laft Wimels Mrs. Foues,
when did Mr. /7 #im come to lodge ar your
Houfe ?

Mis. fones. He came on a Moiday.

Wr. Daruell, What Day of the Month wasit?

Mis. Foies, 1 can’t well what Day of the
Month, for Idid not et 1t down.

Mr. Daruell, Was 1t the Monday before he was
taken?

Plrs, JFones. Yes, 1t was the Monday before.

Mr. Darnell, Whence did he pretend to come?

Mius. Foues, He faid, That he was come out of
the Country, and had formerly lodged n Fleet-
Sreet, and that where he had lodged formerly,
they had left off Houft-kecping, and were gone
into the Country.

L.C.7. Where is your Houfe ?

Mrs, Fenes. In St. Paul’s Church-Yard, at the
Sign of the Golden-Ball.

Mr. Darnell, Call Faines Howofeman,

' {WWho was fworn.)

Mr. Darrell. Do you tell what you know, about
Mr. Haeriifor’s being at Mr. Yones’s Houfe,

Howfeman, My Lord, he came 1o about
Eight a Clock at Night, and brought a Porter
with him, and a Portmanteau Trunk 3 and after
that, the Porter went out a lictle before him,
and then he followed him, and went out after,

Mr, Darnell, Did you hear him fay, from

whence he came?
Howfeman., No, 1 did not,

Mr. Darnell,  Call Aune Evans.
(Fho did not appear )
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Mt. Darnel, Then call Mr, Robert Humfton,
(Who was fworn.)

Mz, Darnell. Mr. Humflon, 1 defire you will
oive the Court an Account of Mr. Harrifon's being
at your Houfe that Night Dr. Clenche was mur-
dered.

Mr. Humfton. My Lotd, I met Mr. Herrifon on
Monday the 4th of Fanuary laft, and he told me,
he was going to the Compter, to a Gentlewonmar
that was much opprefled, and that he wanted
Money to get her releafed ; upon which, I gave
him fome Money, and after fome Difcourte, |
defired him to bring home my Gown, thac
[ formerly let him, and feemed angry with
him, for that he had feveral times promifed me
to bring it home, but had failed therein: and
thereupon he pr0miﬁ:d, tl_mt I thould have 1t that
Night: And that Evening about Nme of the
Clock, he came to my Lodgings, and brought
home my Gown, and when he came, Iasked him,
if he had gotten Mrs, Vanwicke releafed: And
Mr. Harrifon anfwered, No. Upon which, I
blamed him for negletting an old Friend 5 and
Mr, Harrifon execufedt, telling me, That he had
met with fome Perfons upon earneft Bufinefs,
which prevented him. And then Tasked Mr.
Hzrrifonr to ftay and fup with me, but he refufed
it, faying, That he had been about extraordinary
Bufinefs that Day, which mult be done that
Night, and that a Gentleman ftay’d in the Street
for him, and they two were going to do it.

L. C. 7. Where doyou live? And how long
{tayed he at your Houfe ?

Mr., Humflon, T lodged then at the Golden-Key
in Fleet-fireet, over againft Fetter-lane End: He
came to my Lodgings about Nine of the Clock at
Night, and ftayed there bat a little ume,

L. C. 7. What manner of Cloaths had he on?

Mr. Humflon, My Lord, he had 2 Cloak on,
but I cannot tell what Cloaths he had under it, he
brought my Gown up under his Cloak,

Mz, Darnell. Swear Efther King.

(1Fho was fworn.)

Mr. Darwell, Do you know what time Mr.
Harrifon was at Mr. Humflon’s Lodgings ?

Efther King. It was on Mouday the fourth Day
of Fanuary laft, about Nine of the Clock at Night,
as near as [ can guels, the Shop was (hut vp, and
I let him out.

Mr. Daviell.  Where was 1t ?

Bfther King. At the Golden Key n Fleer-fireet,
over again Fetter-lane End,

Mr. Darnell, What Cloaths had he on ?

Efiber King. 1 cannot tell well, but he had a
Cloak oh, 1 do not know what Cloaths he had on
befides.

Mr. Harrifen. Was it Eight or Ninea Clock?

Eftver Kiug, It was near Nine, as near as !
cin guefs,

My Darnell. Swear Fobu Sikes the Coachman.

W hich was done.)

Mr. Daruell, Give an Account to the Court
what you know about carrying two Men in your
Coach, and how you found Dr. Clncke murdered.

Jobn Sikes. My Lord, on the 4th of Fansa-
ry laft, being Monday, 1 was at the Play-Houft,
and there 1 took up a Man and a Woman,
and carried them into the City; fo I-brought
the Gentleman back again, to the. Gres-
Dragen Tavern.in Fleet-fireet 3 and then, he faid,
he would pay me by the Hour; he faid, Fhat it
was bur much about Nine a Clock. Fhen Ill_t‘-ﬁ:
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him, and was driving up the Street towards the
Temple, and two Men ftood in Fleet-fireet, about
Fetter-lane End, and they asked me, if I knew
Dr. Clencke, who dwelt in Brownlbw-flrcet in
Holborn? 1 told them, That I did not know
Dr. Clenche, but I knew the Street.  So they
went into my Coach, and one of them bad me
drive thither, and I did, and ftopt at the Street’s
End ; becaufe the Gate at the other End was
{hut, {o that I could not turn my Coach: And
one of them bid me go and tell the Doétor, That
there were two Gentlemen 1n a Coach at
the Street’s End, that would defire him to go
with them to fee one that was not well. The
Doftor asked me, If I could twll who they
were ? Or, who 1t was, that he was to goto?
I told him, that I could not tell, The Doétor
was in his Night Gown and Slippers, and he
dreffed himfelf: and when he came to the
Coach, one of them removed from his Place,
and gavz him the hinder Part of the Coach, and
told him, That they had a Friend, that was not
well: And one of them bad me drive to
Leaden-Hall: Market 3 and when I came  about
Holbern-Bars, one of them called to me, and ask-
ed me, Why I drove {fo flowly? And bid me
drive fatter; fo I drove faft, and came to Leadcn-
Hafl: Aund then one of them bad me drive to the
Pye Tavern without Aldpate, and there or-
dered me to ftop, And when I had {lopped
there, one of them called to me, and told me,
That I need not ftir out of my Coach-Box ; but
call to the Boy at the Tavern, and ask for one
Hupt a Chyrurgeon, which I did do: And when
the Boy came to me again, he faid, there was
no fuch Man. Then one of them bad me drive
back again to Leaden-bally and in the Time I
ftayed there, and wirned my Coach, Aldgate was
fhut ; and when I came to the Gate, one of them
gave Six Pence to the Watch, and the Gate was
opened, and I drove to Leaden-ball Gate. And
when I came there, I ftopped again, and one of
them gave me half a Crown, and bad me go
and buy a Fow! of one Hmmt a Poulterer; but
after I had gone a little way from the Coach, he
callcd me again, and faid, Here, Coacliman, you
had as geod take another Shilling, and buy a
Couple: fo I went, and bought a Couple of
Fowls, but could find no fuch Poulterer as Hunt ;
fo I bought them of another, and I gave three
Shillings for them. And when T came back to
the Conch-Side, 1 found Dr. Clenche, (as I thought)
fitting againit the Fore-feat, with his Head againtt
the Cufhion : T pull’d him, and cryed, Mafter,
Mafter, for I thought he had been in Drink, but
I could not get one Word from him; and then I
went to the Waich, who were near ; and when
they came, we found him Strangled, with a
Handkerchief about his Neck, and a Coal 1n 1t,
plac’d juft upon his Wind-Pipe, but the other
two Men were gone,

L. C. 7. Had one of the two Mena Cloak on ?

7. Sikes. I cannot remember that,

L. C. ¥. What kind of Habit had he ? Had he
black Cloaths on?

7. Sikes. My Lord, I cannot tell juftly what
Cloaths he had on ?

L.C. ¥, You have heard him fpeak. What
faid he ?

¥. Sikes, My Lord, he never fpoke to me;
it was the other Man.

Mr. Harrifon. What kind of Man was the
other? Was he lefs than I, or taller?
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% Sikes. He ‘was taller than you, with his
own Harr.

Mr, Darnell.  Can you be pofitive that the Pri-
foner at the Bar 1s one of thofe two Perfons?

¥. Sikes. My Lord, one of thof two Perfons
had a Perrtwig on, of a lisht coloured Hair: And
I do verily believe, that the Prifoner at the
Bar i1s the fame Perfon ; I cannot be pofitive he
1s one of them, but as nearas I can judge of a
Muan whom I have feen but once, he is one of
them, |

Mr. Harrifon. My Lord, T defire your Lord-
fhip to obferve the Time that he took the two
Men up, aud what Time it was they ran out of
the Coach,

L.C.#. Coachman, what Time was it that
they left your Coach?

[ Sikes. About half an Hour paft Ten, and
1t was about a quarter of an Hour paft Nine,
when I took them up,

Mr, Darnell. Pray lets ask the Coachiman one
Thingmore. Coachman, look upon that Hand-
kerchief, do you know it, and where did you
fee 1t ?

The Honakerchief was produced by the Coroner,

7. Sikes, 1 do belicve that it is the fame
Handkerchief that was about Dr. Clirche’s Neck
when he was found murdered.

L.C. ¥, Call the Coachman agan, Hark
you, In what Pofture did you find Dr. Cleache
when you came back to your Coach?

7. Sikes. My Lord, he was fat in the Bottom
of the Coach, leaning on one Side, with his Head
againft the Cufhion,

L.C 7. Was a Handkerchief then about his
Neck ?

7. Sikes. Yes, my Lord, I untied this Hand-
kerchief, and this s the fame; and here is the
Coal that was lapt init: 1t was lapt in the Mid-
dle of 1t, and it laid juft againft the Doltor’s
Wind-Pipe.

Mr. Darnell, Call Mr. Rebone and Mr, Marriot,

(1o were fiworn.)

Mr., Darnell.  Mr. Rebone, tell what you know
concerning the Handkerchief, and how you
found the Doctor.,

He takes the Handkerchief, and looks oi 12,

Mr, Rebowe. This Handkerchief was about
the Doctor’s Neck, and the Coual in 1t, and it lay
juft upon his Wind-Pipe, when I faw him dead
in the Coach, The Coachman came to Mr.
Marrist’s Houfe, and ask’d for a Conftable, and
we went to the Coach-Side, and there we found
him lying along; and we took him, and car-
ried him to the Bzl Inn, and there he was et
Blood on the Arms, and the Chyrurgeon took
about half a Spoonful of Blood out of his Right
Arm; and he was let Blood on the other Arm,
but that did but juft trickle down, and we could
not get him to Life again; and we found a Silver
Ink-horn in his Pocket, and that, and the reft of
his, Things, were fecured. This is all I can fay
to the Matter,

Mt. Darnell. Call Mrs, Elianor 4bbolt.

(Who was fworn.)

Mr, Darnell. Pray tell my Lord, and the
Court, what you know of any Perfons you faw
in a Coach at Browwlow-fireet End, that Night
Dr. Clenche was murdered.

Mrs. Abbolt. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, I
went out of an Errand for one Madam rwel,

a Gentlewoman who lodges at my Mother’s

Rrr2 Houfe,



496

houfe; and coming home again, Ifaw a Coach
{top at Brownlsw-fireet End, between Nine and
Tena Clock at Night, and the Coachman went
to the fide of the Coach: And one in the Coach
bad him go to Dr. Clenche’s, and tell him, That
there were two Gentlemen ftayed for him ma
Coach; and as he went up the Street, he went
flowly, and looked back two or three times :
‘Whereupon, one of the Perfons leaned out of the
Coach, and did fwear at the Coachman to make
Hafte ; and I went round the Coach, and could
difcern Mr. Harrifow’s Face 5 and I ftayed, and
faw Dr. Clenche go into the Coach, and one of
them gave his Place to the Dottor.

“*Mr. Daraell,  Why were you fo curious, Mi-
ftrefs, and what did you obferve further ?

Mirs. Afbbolr. 1 thought they might give the
Coachmana Slip, I well obferved Mr, Harrifon,
but do not know the other Man. There were two
Lamps burning, one in Brownlow-firecs, and
the other in Holbouri, over again{t the End of
Brownlow-ftreet, and they lighted quite through
the Coach ; and the Men pulled themfelves back-
wards, when they faw me look on them: It was
that Night that the Doftor was murdered. 1
went to Newgafe afterwards.  Madam Clenche
defired me to go and fee Mr. Harrifon 3 and when
I came to Newgate, it feems, he was writing
Letters, fo I {taid before I went into the Room -
And there were two Men with me, and Mr. Har-
rifon was talking very loud ;3 faid they to me,
Who 1s that fpeaks now ! Why, fays I, it is one
of the Perfons that was in the Coach when
Dr. Clenche was murdered.

L. C. ¥. Who are thofe two Men that were
with you ?

Mrs. Afbbolt. One of them was one Mr, Fones.
a Coachmaker in Helbourn, and the other was
Madam Clenche’s Coachman.

L.C. ¥. Did you know the Prifoner, when
you faw him in Newgate, to be one of them that
were In the Coach :

Mrs. Albolr.  Yes, 1did; I knew him to be
the fame Man, as foon as [ faw him: And he
changed Countenance, as foon as he faw me,

Mr. Harrifon, My Lord, This Woman is cer-
tainly hired by the Villains that are againft me,
Pray, afk her, my Lord, Why the did not make
a Difcovery fooner ?

L. C F. WMiilrefls, What fay you to that ?

Mrs. dbbelt. 1 acquainted Madam Aiwel!
what I had feen and obferved, and fhe told
Madam Clenche, after laft Scflfions ; and then the
delired me to go to Newgate, to fee Mr. Harvifon,
and I went accordingly ; and I fhould have teld
it to Madam Clenche fooner, but my Mother was
toth I fhould be concerned about fuch a Thing,

Mr. Darnefl, My Lord, we have fome Wit-
nefles who can give your Lordfhip an Account,
that one of our Witnefles, whom I mentioned to
your Lordfhip before, is {pirited, or withdrawn
from us, by a Gentleman that faid he came to
him from the Prifoner, and defired him to be kind
to the Prifoner ; which Witnefs is fince abfent,
and not to be found : his Name was Audrew
Bowfell, 2 Youth, and an Apprentice to one
My. Toms, a Shoemaker.

L.C.¥. You muit prove upon him, that he

made him keep away,
Mr, Darnell.  Call Barnabas Smith.
- (Whbo was fwern.)
Mr. Darnell.  Give my Lord and the Court
an Account, what you know of this Marrer.
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Mr. Smith. My Lord, This dudrews Bowwfel],
which the Council for the King fpeaks of, was
fent to Leadenball-freet of an Errand, to the
Buli-head Alehoufe there, And as he was going
along, a Gentleman met him, and afked him, if
he was not an Evidence againft Mr. Harrifin : And
being told by the Boy that he was, he delired him
to be kind to him and pulled out a Piece of
Money, and offered it him, defiring him to be
kind to Mr. Harrifon. Upon which the Youth re-
plied, That he owed him Nothing, and Nothing
he would take. Then the Gentleman told him,
That he would come again another Time, and
lend for him near to his Mafter’s. So the Boy
fad, and told me: And faid further, That if he
could have gotten him to have gone to the Bufl
bead Alchoufe, he would have feized him.

Mr. Darnell, 'What is become of the Boy ?

Mr. Smith,  Truly, we do not know what is
bacome of him, we never heard of him fince the
fixth Day of March laft., ,

Mr, Darnell,  Call his Mafter, Mr. Richard
Tiins. (IWho was fworn.)

Mr, Daruell.  Tell my Lord, and the Court,
what you know of this Matter, and what is be-
come of your Apprentice, Andrety Botfell

Mr. Tims, My Lord, He wentaway from me
on the fixth Day of Aueh lalt s he was inticed
away by three Soldiers that Night, and on the
Morrow-morning oneof them came and demanded
his Coats, Shirts, and Neckcloths : Says T to him,
Who fent you, and who is your Captain? and he
antwered, why, Captain Harris : He huffed, and
fard, That it T would not give him the Cloaths,
he would fend his Officer 5 and then I told the
Soldier, Iwould have him beforea Juftice of the
Peace, {o he went away, and never came to me
again : And I could never hear of my Apprentice
fince, tho' I have made great Enquiry after him,

L.C. 7. Dd your Servant tell you of any
Money that had been offered him by the before-
mentioned Gentleman ?

Mr., Tims, No, my Lord ; he did not tell me,
but he told Mr. Sunith, the Witnefs at was laft
examined, as he told me.

Mr. Darnefl, My Lord, I defire that A
drew Bowfell’'s Examinations before Mr, Fobi
Browie, the Coroner of Loundon, upon Oath, may
be read.

Which being proved by the Coroner, were diveffed

to be read,

Clerk of the Peace reads. 12, Januarii, 1691,

Aundrews Bowfell, Servant to Richard Tisms, Shoe-
maker, {worn and examined touching the Death
of Andrewo Clenche, Doctor in Phyfick, deceafed,
faith, that he, this Informant, being fent to Mr.
Parker’s, at the Bull-head Alehoufe in Leacenball.
Street, on Monday 1aft was Se’nnight, being the
Fourth of this inftant Fauuary, between the Hours
of Ten and Eleven of the Clock in the Evening,
faw a Coach franding againtt Leadenball-Market 5
and heard fome Perfon that was in the Coach fay,
Make Hafte : And this Informant fays, that,
according to the beft of his Remembrance, he
heard him talk of 2 Poulterer’s, And this Infor-
mant fays, That foon after the Coachman was
gone Into the Market, this Informant faw two
Perfons go out of the Coach, one whereof had,
as this Informant believes, 2 black Coaton; and
that this Informant faw the fame Perfon, as foon
as he came out of the Coach, fling a Cloak over

him: and then both the Perfons went through
| | ~ the
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the Market on the Weft Part. And this Informant
faith, That this Informant going to Jook into the
Coach, the Perfon that had the Cloak on him,
cry’d Damn him ; and this Informant faith, Thar
he, this Informant, thereupon going away, went
to Mr. Parker’s, and told them, that two Perfons
had cheated a Coachman, or to that Effect.

And, Bowfel] being further Examined the 234
Day of Fanuary, 1691. touching the Death of -
drew Clenche, faith, That he hath feen Hen. Harrifon,
now a Prifoner in their Majefties Gaol of New-
gate, and believes he was one of the Perfons that
came out of the Coach at Leaden-ball, a litile
after Ten of the Clock at Night, on Mouday the
4th of this Inftant Famwary ; and believes he
knows him by his Voice, And foon after, this In-
formant underftood that the faid Awdrew Clenche
was murder’d in 2 Coach, being the fame Coach
which the faid Harrifon, and another Perfon un-
known, a little before went out of.

L. C. ¥. Mr., Harrifor, What have you to fay
againft that which hath been proved againft you ?
what Defence can you make?

Mr. Harrifen. My Lord, I did attend Dir.
Clenche about a Moregage that was made him by
Mrs, Vanwicie, and Dr. Clenche did pay one Hun-
dred Pounds, but this Gentlewoman would pay,
or allow Rewe but Fifteen Pounds, and we did
not know how to get the Money from Rowe, fo
we petition’d the Lords Commiffioners about i,
which was above Six Months before Doltor
Cluche was murder’d 3 and Mr. Fairbeard won-

der’d that | would put Doétor Clnche’s Name

into a Petition with fuch a Rogue as Rewey and

I do pofitively fay, That T had not feen Doctor

Clenche in a Month before, and 1if Doltor Clenche

had died in his Bed, it had been the fame thing

to me 3 and, my Lord, Mr. Febufon and I had ne-
ver any angry Words between uss and I have the

Report in Chancery, which I had from Sir Fobs

Hrftins, which I will read, 1f your Lordfhip pleafes,

L. C 7. LeUs fec it

IFhich <was bhanded to the Lovd Chief Fuftice,

Jitting on the Beneb.

Mr. Harvifor. My Lord, thatis the Original,
which it your Lordfhip pleafes to remember, I
had Rewe before you twice about it ; and it is
Rowe that hath been the Rogue, and therefore
what Occafion had we to be angry with Dottor
Clenche 2

Then the Report was perus’d by the Lord Chief
Tuftice, and rveturi'd to bim.

L. C. 7. Mr. Harrifon, this will do you no
good, not being to the prefent Purpole 5 there-
fore proceed in your Defence.

Mr. Harifon.  Now, my Lord, I have fome
Witnefles to prove where I was at the Time that
the Coachman fays the Murder was done.
Cryer, call Thomas Turner a Porter, and AMr.
Maccaffee.

Who appeared, but were not fworn, and examined
opart, at ithe Requeft of My, Darnell, #he
King’s and Queen’s Conncil,

Mr. Harrifen, My Lord, 1 fhall prove by thefe
Witnefles, that T was elfewhere when the Coach-
man faid he took up thofe two Men, a little af-
_ter Nine o’Clock. Pray, Mr.Turner, give an Ac-
count to the Court, what time it was I called you
to carry my Trunk,

Tho. Turner. My Lord, I was, about Seven of
the Clock in the Evening, the 4th Day of Fe-

nuary laft, at the Two Kings and Keyin Fleetfireet,
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over againft Salifbury-Conrt 5 and I was told, That
a Gentlemanat Joe’s Coffec-houfe in Salifbury-Cours
wanted a Porter; and I prefently went to him
thither, and it was this Mr. Harrifon; and he bad
me take up his Trunk, which I did, and carried
it to the Two Kings and Key, and he went with
me 3 and he afked me to get fome Linen wafh’d
for him againft the next Day at Noon ; and he
gave me fome Linen, which I carried to m
Wife to wath for him, and return’d to him again
prefently ; and I went with him from thence,
and carried his Trunk to his Lodgings in Panl’s
Church Yard; and when I had deliver’d his Trunk,
I left them there; and then it was about Eight of
the Clock at Night,

L.C.7. Acwhofe Houfe was it you deliver’d
the Trunk 2

Thoras Turner. My Lord, it was at Mr. Fones’s
Houfe in Panls Church Yard, -

L.C. 7. And did he ftay within ?

Thoinas Turner.  No, my Lord, he went out
prefently after me.

L.C.J. Were you any where elfe with him
that Night, beflides at the Places you have men-
tioned ?

Tho. Turper. No, my Lord.

Mr. Harrifon. My Lord, I will prove that
Mr. Humfton miftakes an Hour,

Mr. Humfton. I cannot miftake an Hour, be-
caufe the Shop Is fhut up about Nine a-Clock, and
it was fhut when you came firft to my Lodgings.

Mr. Harrifan, My Lord, there ftands in Court
one Thoinas Jobufon, Apprentice to Mr. Pemmel ;
he can tell what time a Night 1t was I came to M.
Humfton’s, he let mein? I delire he may be call’d.

Mr, Darnell, Swear Thomas Fobufon.

(Who was fworn.)

L. C. ¥. What time of the Night was it that
Mr, Harrifon came to {peak with Mr. Humflon, on
that Night Dr. Clenche was murder’d ?

Tho. Fobufon, My Lord, on the 4th of Fanuary
laft at Night, Mr, Harrifon came to my Mafter’s
Houfe, and knock’d at the Door; and I went to
the Door, and open’d it, for I had fhut up the
Shop ; and he afk’d me if Mr. Humflon was with-
in? And I told him, he was : And he came in,
and went up to Mr. Humfton’s Chamber ; and 1t
was then about Nine of the Clock, as near as I
can guefs.

L.C.¥. Whereis your Mafter’s Houfe ?

Tho, Fobufen. My Lord, it is the Goldein Key
in Fleet-ffreet, aver againft Fetter-lanz end.

Mr, Harrifon.  Pray call Adain Maccaffee, Mr.
White, Mr. Carden, and fobn Allen.

WWho appeared.  And My. Maccaffee flood up.

Mr. Maccaffee.  Upon Monday the 4th Day of
Fannary laft, the Prifoner was at my Houfe, and
ftay’d from Nine a-Clock till paft Eleven, and
play’d at Cards with one Mr. Baker, and one Mr.
IWhite and his Wife ; and he ftay’d «ll it had
ftruck Eleven a-Clock.

L.C.¥. Whereis your Houfe, Si?

Mr. Maceaffee. My Houfe is in Chancery-Laite,
over againft Serfeants-Inn.

L.C.¥ Did he tell you where he had been
before 2

Mr. Muceaffez,  He faid, That he had been to-
wards the City, and was very cold.

L.C. ¥. Did he fay any thing of Mr. Humfton?

Mr. Maccaffee.  No, my Lord, _

Mr, Darnell. Pray what Room were you mn

Did you play at Cards in the Kitchen ?
| Mr, Maccaffze.



